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ORDERS OF REFERENCE
Fripay, 16th February, 1951.

RESOLVED,—That the following Members do compose the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts: —

Messieurs:
Anderson, Diefenbaker, Maltais,
Ashbourne, Drew, ’ Maybank,
Balcer, Fleming, Nowlan,
Beaudry, Fournier (Maisonneuve- Picard,
Benidickson, Rosemont), Pinard,
Beyerstein, Fraser, Richard (Gloucester),
Blue, Fulford, , Richard (Ottawa East),
Boisvert, Fulton, Riley,
Boivin, Gauthier (Portneuf), Robinson,
Brisson, Helme, Sinclair,
Browne (St. John's Homuth, Stewart (Winnipeg
West), Johnston, North),
Cauchon, Kirk (Antigonish- Thatcher,
Cavers, Guysborough), Warren,
Cleaver, Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Welbourn,
Cloutier, Larson, White (Hastings-
Croll, Macdonnell (Green- Peterborough),
Cruickshank, wood), Winkler,
Denis, Major, Wright—>50.

(Quorum, 15)

ORDERED,—That the Standing Committee on Public Accounts be
empowered to examine and inquire into all such matters and things as may be
referred to them by the House; and to report from time to time their observa-
tions and opinions thereon, with power to send for persons, papers and records.

‘MonpAy, 19th February, 1951.

ORDERED,—That the Public Accounts of Canada and the Report of the
Auditor General for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1950, which were tabled in
the House on Wednesday, January 31, 1951, be referred to the said Committee.

TuaurspAY, 1st March, 1951.

ORDERED,—That the said Committee be granted leave to sit while the
House is sitting. :

That the said Committee be authorized to print from day to day 800 copies
in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and evidence,
and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.
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Tmmsnu, March 8, 1951.

ORDERED -That the name of Mr. Caniptey be subskituted for that of
Mr. W'mkler’ on the said Committee.

J ¥ 5,;,
b

LEON J. RAYMOND,
Clerk of the House.




MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or ComMons, Room 497,
TuaUurspAY, March 1st, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 16.00 o’clock a.m.
The Chairman, Mr. L.-Philippe Picard, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Ashbourne, Benidickson, Boisvert,
Boivin, Browne (St. John’s West), Cauchon, Cavers, Cleaver, Croll, Cruickshank,
Fournier (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Fraser, Gauthier (Portneuf), Helme,
Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Larson, Macdonnell (Greenwood), Major, Picard,
Pinard, Robinson, Sinclair, Stewart (Winnipeg North), Thatcher, Warren,
Winkler, Wright.

Mr. Thatcher, on a point of order, questioned the method of election of the
chairman.

Whereupon Mr. Picard left the Chair and the Clerk of the Committee
attended to the election of a chairman.

Mr. Cruickshank moved, seconded by Mr. Cauchon, that Mr. Picard be
elected Chairman. :

Mr. Thatcher moved, seconded by Mr. Wright, that Mr. Fraser be elected
Chairman. :

The question having been put on the motion of Mr. Ctuickshank, it was
resolved, on division, in the affirmative (Yeas, 15; Nays, 5.)

Mr. Picard again took the Chair.

On motion of Mr. Cauchon, AR

Resolved, That the Committee ask leave to sit while the House is sitting.

On motion of Mr. Major, ;
Resolved, That the Committee ask leave of the House to print from day

to day 800 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of Proceed-
ings and Evidence.

Mr. Stewart .(Winm'peg North) moved that Mr. Thatcher be elected Vice-
Chairman.
Mr. Larson moved that Mr. Croll be elected Vice-Chairman.

And the question having been put on the motion of Mr. Stewart it was,
on division, resolved in the negative. (Yeas, 5; Nays, 17.)

And the question having been put on the motion of Mr. Larson it was
unanimously resolved in the affirmative.

The Chairman read a letter, addressed to him, from Mr. Thatcher. (See
verbatim printed report of today’s proceedings.)

Mr. Croll moved that the Chairman proceed with the election of members
to act with the Chairman as a steering sub-committee.

After some debate thereon and by leave of the Committee, the motion of
Mr. Croll was withdrawn.

v



vi : STANDING COMMITTEE

The Committee then discussed its program for future sittings.

On motion of Mr. Thatcher,

Resolved, That the Committee devote not. more than five meetings to the
study of the Auditor General’s Report and thereafter proceed to the examination
of Public Accounts of National Defence.

On motion of Mr. Wright,
Resolved, That the Chairman proceed forthwith with the selection of mem-
bers to act with him as a steering sub-committtee.

The Chairman informed the members that he would communicate with Mr.
Watson Sellar and arrange for the latter’s appearance at the next meeting of
the Committee.

At 10.45 o’clock a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Room 430,
TaURsDAY, March 8th, 1951.

The Committee met at 11.00 o’clock a.m. The Chairman, Mr. L.-Philippe
Picard, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Ashbourne, Beyerstein, Blue, Boisvert, Brisson,
Cauchon, Cavers, Cloutier, Croll, Cruickshank, Fraser, Fulton, Gauthier (Port-
neuf), Helme, Johnston, Kirk (Antigonish-Guysborough), XKirk (Digby-
Yarmouth), Larson, Macdonnell (Greenwood), Major, Maltais, Picard, Pinard,
Richard (Gloucester), Riley, Sinclair, Stewart (Winnipeg-North), Thatcher,
Welbourn, Winkler.

In attendance: Mr. Watson Sellar, C.M.G., Auditor-General.

In accordance with the resolution adopted at the meeting of March 1st,
the Committee proceeded to an article by article study of the Auditor-General’s
Report for the year ending March 31st, 1950.

Mr. Watson Sellar was called. The witness was -questioned on various
clauses of his report.

At 1.00 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ANTOINE CHASSE,
Clerk of the Committee.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE
Traurspay, March 1, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts begs leave to present the
following as its

FirsT REPORT
Your Committee recommends:
1. That it be granted leave to sit while the House is sitting.

2. That it be authorized to print from day to day 800 copies in English
and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and evidence, and that
Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

L.-PHILIPPE PICARD,
Chairman.
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ORGANIZATION MEETING

VERBATIM REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS
March 1, 1951.

The Committee met at 10 a.m.

The CramrMaN (Mr. Picard) : Gentlemen, the meeting is open. I wish, first,
to thank you for your renewed mark of confidence in me by re-electing me for
the seventh time as chairman of the Public Accounts committee.

Mr. Taarcuer: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order: I do not think the
practice followed in the election of the chairman of standing committees is quite
in accordance with Beauchesne. I think any committee should be permitted to
elect its own chairman. Under the present practice there is a meeting of all
the members of all the standing committees, and I do not think that practice
is regular or comes within the rules. I am raising the point just as a matter of
formality because I think the election should be held by the committee itself.

Mr. Picarp: Mr. Thatcher’s point is quite proper because in fact the pro-
cedure that has been carried on in parliament for the last twenty-five years has
not been strictly in accordance with the rules; but, as they say in the British
house, precedence makes rules; and, inasmuch as for the last twenty-five years
it has been the custom to send out notices to members of parliament to assemble
so that they would elect at one time the chairmen of all the standing committees
it would appear that the rule is pretty well established here. However, as Mr.
Thatcher points out, we could not verify attendance at the general meeting to
elect chairmen of the standing committees, the members are not registered as
is the case at meetings of the individual committees; and so, as I say, we cannot
verify whether or not there is indeed a quorum of a committee present; so,
technically, Mr. Thatcher’s point is well taken, and if there is any doubt about the
propriety of the election held then it is & reflection, by the way, on all of us.

Mr. CruicksHANK: The government always names the chairmen of the
standing committees.

The CramrMAN: ‘That being the case I will then step down from the Chair
and ask Mr. Chassé, the clerk of the committee, to attend so that nominations
can be placed before the committee and a chairman elected in proper form. The
members in attendance are registered and we have a quorum so I will step down
and ask the clerk to take the Chair.

The CLerk: Nominations are in order, gentlemen.

Mr. CruicksHANK: Mr. Chassé, I will move that Mr. Picard be elected
chairman of this committee.

Mr. Cavcuox: I second the motion.

Mr. TaarcuEr: Mr. Chassé, I will move that Mr. Fraser of Peterboro be
elected chairman. I think I am permitted to speak to that motion. I so move,
not for any personal reasons, but I would point out that in England the chairman
of the committee has always been a member of the opposition, and I think that
if we are to do our work effectively a member of the opposition in the chair
would be advantageous. I might say, also, that the government have an over-
whelming majority in this, as in other committees, if they wish to use it.

Mr. WrigHT: I second the motion.

Mr. Masor: Before we vote on this motion I want to say to the committee

that I am going to vote not because I live in England but because I live in Canada.

1



2 ] STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. Picarp: Mr. Chassé, may I be permitted to say a word on the question
of procedure in England so the record will be clear. In England they have
followed that practice for quite a number of years; the chairman has been
chosen from the opposition, usually the former secretary of the treasury, or a
member of a former government, a man well versed in public finance and well
known throughout the country, and a man whose outstanding a'blllty is recog-
nized by all parties. There is another thing also which exists in England; and
it is that the people who are appointed on that committee do not consider when
they get there that they have any political affiliations; and the custom in the
past has been for that committee, shall 1 say, not to play politics—I am not for
one moment suggesting that that sort of thing takes place in our committee here.

Mr. Tuarcuer: You are playing polities now.

Mr. Picarp: No, I am not. Nevertheless, that has not been the practice in
this country and I think the committees are, and should be, free to choose who-
ever they want to be their chairman.

Mr. WricHT: Mr. Chassé, I would think that this would be a particularly
appropriate time in which to change our custom and place a member of the
opposition in the chair of this committee. At the present time the government
has a rather unwieldly majority in the House—

Mr. CruicksHANK: And it always will have.

Mr. WricHT:—and as a consequence of that tremendous majority it has a
majority on all committees. I think it would be a very fine gesture on the part
of the government if they would support the nomination of a member of the
opposition as chairman of this committee. ‘

Mr. Picarp: May I point out, Mr. Chassé, it is not the committee, it is not the
government itself that has made that majority, it is the people of Canada; and
such a situation has always been reflected in all committees; members are
appointed to committees on the basis of party representation in the House.

Mr. Fraser: Mr. Chassé, when the meeting of standing committees for the
purpose of electing chairmen was held 1T was not present as I was at another
meeting. I did not know that my name would be brought up at that time.
However, I did know that it was to be brought up here today, and I am allowing
it to stand as a protest against the way this matter has been handled in the
past; but I will abstain from voting. I think that is the only fair thing to do.
I know also that there is an overwhelming Liberal majority here, a government
majority, and that I have no chance; but I am allowing my name to stand
because I protest against the way the government has had control in the past.

The CrLerk: Gentlemen, I will put the question on the first motion of Mr.
Cruickshank and if that carries then there will be no necessity of putting the
question on the second motion of Mr. Thatcher.

. The question is on the motion of Mr. Cruickshank, that Mr. Picard be
elected Chairman of this Committee.

(The motion is resolved in the affirmative. Yeas, 15; Nays, 5.)

Mr. BrowNE: On a point of order, Mr. Chassé, is it usual to have these
votes taken by a show of hands or by secret ballot?

The CLERK: By a show of hands, unless some member asks that the vote be
recorded ; in which case I then record the names.

I declare the motion for the election of Mr. Picard carried, and I would ask
him to take the Chair.

Mr. Picard in the Chair.

The CrARMAN: Gentlemen, I thank you a second time; and now, let’s get
down to work. At the first meetmg it is usual for a member to move for the
committee to ask leave of the House to sit while the House is sitting.

T RN
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Mr. CavcHoN: I would so move.

The CaAIRMAN: Are you ready for the question?
Carried.

Mr. Brow~Ne: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order. Has a vice-chairman
been appointed?

The Caamrman: I am coming to that in just a moment, Mr. Browne. It is
usual for us to deal with these routine motions first. There is no rule for that
but it is usually done in that way.

The next motion in order would be for someone to move that the committee
ask leave of the House to print from day to day 800 copies in English and 200
copies in French. We are reducing the number to be printed slightly from what
1t was last year in the interests of economy; and also because of the request of
the King’s Printer that we do so on account of the shortage of paper.

Mr. Majgor: I will so move.

Mzr. Fraser: Do you need that many copies?

The CrAmRMAN: I have been informed that the distribution office last year

had a call for about 700, and they tell us they need a margin of 100. Shall the
motion carry?

Carried.

The CHAmRMAN: Now, I think the time has come for the committee to
select a vice-chairman.

Mr. StEwART: I would move that Mr. Ross Thatcher be vice-chairman.
Mr. Larson: I would move that Mr. Dave Croll be vice-chairman.

The CramrMAN: The first motion is by Mr. Stewart, who proposes Mr. :
Thatcher as vice-chairman, and under the rules he is entitled to have his motion
put first.

Those in favour? Those against?
I declare the motion lost.

The Cuamrman: Mr. Larson moves that Mr. David Croll be elected as
vice-chairman.

Carried.

Now, some little time ago, on February 22, I received a letter from Mr.

Thatcher addressed to Mr. Louis P. Picard, Chairman of the Public Accounts
Committee—

Some Hon. MEMBERs: Oh, oh.
The CHAIRMAN: So on the 22nd I was probably the chairman.
Mr. Fraser: We knew that March 1 was going to be stormy.

By the Chairman: ‘
Dear Sir: :
I understand that according to the rules of the House, I must direct
@ this letter to you.

I am anxious to have the Public Accounts Committee called at the
earliest possible moment—in order to deal with the accounts of the
Department of National Defence.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) W. Ross Thatcher, M.P.,
Moose Jaw.”
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I answered Mr. Thatcher the next day in the following words:

Dear Sir:

Your letter of February 22 requesting an early meeting of the
Public Accounts Committee is hereby acknowledged. Prior to receiving
same, the first meeting of the committee had been set for Thursday, the
first of March, at 10 a.m.

And I did not sign as chairman of Public Accounts; I just signed my name.

Now, gentlemen, at this time it is customary for the committee to decide
on its agenda. We have one proposal here, that is to go into the accounts of
the Department of National Defence. Are there any other suggestions?

Mr. Crorn: Mr. Chairman, had you not better arrange for a steering or
agenda committee before dealing with the actual agenda? It has been the custom
in the past to refer these matters to the agenda committee.

The CaAlRMAN: My point in not mentioning it is not a reflection on anyone,
far from that, but last year we did select a steering committee. As you know, the
steering committee sits in camera and, when we came before the whole committee,
members objected to what had been decided—on the propriety of the decisions—
and the fight started all over again.

Now, we all know what we want. My suggestion, and certainly a humble
suggestion, is that we clear the matter up right away. I know it is customary
to appoint a steering committee but, since it happened that last year when we
had the steering committee whatever was decided by the steering committee was
the cause of long discussion, I thought we might deal with the matter now in the
committee.

Mr. WricHT: I think you are perfectly right. The whole body should decide
what is to come before the committee and then when the agenda committee is
arranged it can decide procedure.

The CuAlRMAN: There is no need for one because we will do the work right
here.

Mr. WricHT: No, I think there is need of an agenda committee on matters
of procedure and to deal with certain witnesses we want to call. I think it is
necessary to have an agenda committee but I think this commlttee should give
certain instructions to it.

The CuamrMaN: Usually the purpose of an agenda committee is only to do
what you just suggested and I suggest that once the decisions are taken by the
committee the chairman makes arrangements to get witnesses and the only

“object of a steering committee is to decide on an agenda. If we decide that here
we do not need a steering committee. The discussion is open, unless somebody
wishes to make a formal motion.

Mr. Crorr: I move that the chairman appoint an agenda committee. It
has been customary for the chairman to appoint that committee in the past.

The CuAmMAN: Mr. Croll moves that an agenda committee be selected
that the choice of the members be left as in the past to the chairman of the
committee.

Mr. Fraser: I would like to make an amendment to that motion, that those
words be struck out and that this committee right now decided that they go
into defence expenditures.

The CuAmRMAN: That is not an amendment it is a counter proposal.

Mr. Benmickson: 1 was going to suggest that T agree with the chairman.
We are all here and I think at the first meeting of this committee it would be
desirable that we hear from as many members as possible as to their hopes of
accomplishment for this committee during the coming session. For that reason
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I propose to vote against Mr. Croll’s motion at this time. The chairman may be
right in suggesting that we can continue to meet as a committee of the wholp to
decide our program throughout the year. I rather doubt that but I certqlnly
think at the first meeting we could defer the setting up of an agenda committee
whose main job is to decide on the precedence of evidence and, for that purpose,
I just indicate now that I propose to vote against Mr. Croll’s motion.

Mr. Croun: Let this be understood. My thought was that although we
should set up an agenda committee perhaps here today the members can express
their views as to what topics they want brought up. There will be further
inter-party discussion and no decisions made at the moment. Those matters,
however, will be sent to the agenda committee and planned. TUnless you have
planning beforehand you will find that this committee will roam all over the place.

Mr. BenmicksoN: You may be perfectly right but I think your motion is
premature and for that reason I propose to vote against it.

Mr. MacponNELL: Are there not two points: first, whether we want an
agenda committee; and second what its duties are? I have listened to what has
been said about the danger of discussions first here and then in the agenda com-
mittee. However, I suggest, as Mr. Croll suggested, that it might be useful from
time to time to have such a committee. We do not divest ourselves of the power
to do anything and we don’t delegate it to that committee.

The CuamrMaN: I think Mr. Benidickson’s suggestion might be appropriate
that we first get the views of the members as to the agenda and then later on if
we decide it is necessary we can appoint the steering committee. I have no
personal feelings.

Mr. Sincratr: Did I understand the suggestion is that the first item should
be National Defence?

The CuamrmaN: That has come from a letter I read a moment ago which I
received from Mr. Thatcher. Then Mr, Croll got up and made a proposal that
we could leave the choice of the agenda to a steering committee. I objected to
that and said that last year we had a steering committee and whatever was
decided there was brought back before the committee and discussed for a long
time. We were never satisfied, so I thought we would have the whole discussion
in the open and get away from that situation.

Mr. SincrAr: The very purpose of a Public Accounts committee is, first of
all, to consider the public accounts and the recommendations of our servant,
the Auditor General. Surely we should first consider the Auditor General’s report
and then go into whatever department the committee as a whole or the steering
committee decides. Surely it should not be left to a steering committee to decide

to consider our first responsibility, the report of parliament’s servant, the
Auditor General.

Mr. Bexmickson: I think it is quite appropriate that we have points of
view of that kind at this time, and we have all morning to listen to these points
of view.

Mr. MacponNELL: That is what happened last year. We spent so long on
the Auditor General’s report—

The CuARMAN: On the Auditor General’s report we spent only five meetings.
We spent alot of time on a memorandum submitted by the Auditor General.

‘It is up to us not to ask him to submit a memorandum but to ask him to come

here and go over his report which we covered last year in five meetings. The
report itself was covered in only five meetings and the other time we spent with
the Auditor General was on the memorandum he had prepared. He had asked
permission to submit his views on the estimates. As Mr. Sinclair has just sug-
gested the point here is that we should go into the Auditor General’s report, but
it is not the same thing as last year.
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Mr. WrigHT: The Public Accounts committee of this House has not met
every year. It has only met when something has been referred to it—

The CramrMAN: I am sorry, I did not catch that.

Mr. WricHT: The Public Accounts committee has not met every year. It
has only met when something has been referred to it either by the House or by
way of a letter written by someone asking that the Public Accounts committee
be called together. Last year a letter was received by the chairman asking that
the committee be called for a specific purpose, to go into the accounts of the
Canadian Commercial Corporation and the defence department.

The CramrMAN: The Canadian Commercial Corporation only. Last year
there was a letter from Mr. Stewart. I can bring the letter; it said Canadian
Commercial Corporation only. I am quite positive of that.

Mr. Stewart: I think it also said national defence.

The Crarvan: I have the letter in my files in my desk.

Mr. WricHT: I think I have the floor.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. WricHT: The committee had 32 meetings and we never reached the
objective for which the committee was called together last year, namely, the
particulars set forth in the letter you received asking that the committee meet.
Now, again this year we find the same thing taking place. We find this com-
mittee is called together as a result of a letter written to you as acting chairman,
as you were not chairman at that time. Now we find the committee again
apparently being diverted from the purpose for which the letter asked that it
be called together. Now, I do not think that that is good procedure in a public
accounts committee. I think as a private member of parliament, that any member
has the right to ask the public accounts committee to investigate anything which
he may think should be investigated. It does not necessarily mean that he is
implying that there is something wrong.

 In the defence department and through the Canadian Commerecial Corpora-
tion we are spending hundreds of millions of dollars and I think that this com-
mittee might very well spend its time in checking those expenditures. I do not
see why we should go into all of the public accounts. We simply cannot cover
all of the public accounts. We have got to concentrate on some particular
matters. That objective was set last year as well as this year by means of a
letter written to the ‘chairman of this committee asking that we meet for a
specific purpose.

There was objection when I used the word “side-tracked”—that the com-
mittee was side-tracked last year—but certainly if it was not side-tracked, it
was diverted. |

The Cuamman: The committee itself was not side-tracked because it was
the committee which decided to do that.

Mr. WricaT: I know, Mr. Chairman, but the purpose for which the cam-
mittee was called was diverted to some other objective. I am afraid that the
same procedure will be started again and I do not think it is good. It would
mean that public confidence would be lost in democratic procedure and in parlia-
ment if a member of the House cannot have an opportunity to bring up some
particular matter which he would like to have investigated by this committee

Mr. Fraser: Mr. Chairman, on more than one occasion the late Mr. King,
when talking about public accounts, distinctly said that any member could,
on his own, ask that the public accounts committee be called and that a specific
item be discussed at that time.

Mr. TaarcaEr: Mr. Chairman—

The CHAIRMAN: Are you finished, Mr. Fraser?
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Mr. Fraser: Yes, Mr. Chairman, but I remember Mr. King saying that on
more than one occasion.

Mr. TuarcuErR: Mr. Chairman, I think I was the one who wrote that
letter.

The CramrRMAN: This time!

Mr. THATcHER: Yes., Should not this committee, in principle, decide whether
or not it is going to go into the question? It is my right as a private member
to ask that the committee consider it. I have no objection to a steering committee
being set up; but I think, in principle, we should decide what we are going to do.

The Prime Minister, in the House this year, did give assurance to opposition
members that we would have an opportunity to go over national defence public
expenditures. There is no harm in the Parliamentary Assistant’s suggestion that
we spend some time on Mr. Sellar’s report. The only thing I am afraid of is
that if we spend as much time this year as we did last year on that matter, half
the session will be gone. I think we should pin-prick our work and take this
one department and do a thorough job on it. I think we should, first of all,
in principle, decide whether we are going to go into national defence.

Mr. CRUICKSHANK: Mr. Chairman, what are we to discuss unless it be the
Auditor-General’s report?

Mr. TaATCHER: Public accounts, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. CruicksHANK: You have gone rusty!

The CralRMAN: It is not a question of whether or not the committee wants
to go into a given department at this particular moment. I read this letter. It
is up to the committee to decide what it wants to do. I am sure the only point is
what the order of precedence is to be. Does the committee want to do something
else or does it want this matter gone into now? This is the time for members of

the committee to express their views, and following that we can see what the
general consensus is.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Mr. Chairman, I observe that Mr. Thatcher has said
that as far as he is concerned if we want to spend a modest amount of time on
the Auditor-General’s report he would not object. Personally I do think that
considerably less than five meetings would be sufficient. Does anyone here
doubt that the defence department’s estimates are immeasurably more important

- than any other matter that can possibly come before this committee for several

vears? I need not go into them. I cannot believe that any of us would doubt
that. d

The CuHAIRMAN: You are right.

Mr. SiNcrLAIR: Mr. Chairman, what defence estimates have we got before us?
We have before us the public accounts of 1949-50,

Mr. MacpoNNELL: That is one of the questions I was goihg to raise. You
are saying that what we are to deal with is something that happened a year ago
March, 1950.

Mr. Sincrair: I did not say that!

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I was going to ask Mr. Thatcher what he intended. Are
we interested only in what happened up to March 1950, a year ago?

Mr. CruicksHANK: How can you consider anything else?

The CuamrMAN: The public accounts committee has for its work the review-
ing of the Auditor-General’s report and the public accounts of Canada for the
year ending March the first, 1950. That is the consensus of the committee; to go
over the expenditures which have been audited by the Comptroller of the
Treasury and the Auditor-General, and to consider the report of the Auditor-
General. That is our only work, the only thing we are empowered to do.
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Mr. MacpoNNELL: That is so, Mr. Chairman. That is my impression too.
But what was troubling me was that somebody has already quoted remarks of
the Prime Minister which appeared to indicate—whether or not as a special
concession—that this year this committee would be enabled to go into current
accounts. I may be wrong, but that was my understanding. Perhaps whoever
quoted the Prime Minister would correct me.

The CuarMman: He said the public accounts of the Department of National
Defence. And I think that unless the rule of the House were changed—the House
always has the right to refer anything to us—the practice is to go into the public
accounts. I think the Prime Minister said that the expenditures of the Depart-
ment of National Defence could be brought before the committee in due course.
I think that was his statement.

Mr. BrowNE: Up to date?

The CaamrMAN: We cannot bring them up to date, because they are not
audited by anybody. ‘

Mr. CroLL: Mr. Chairman, I withdraw my motion.

Mr. TearcHER: Mr. Chairman, I move that the principal business of the
committee be that we first go into the Auditor-General’s report on defence items,
and then go specifically into national defence.

The Cuarman: Would you put that motion in writing, Mr. Thatcher? It is
important that it be in writing in case any amendments are in order, The
members will then know the exact wording of the motion.

Mr. CruicksHANK: What is the motion?

The CrarrMaN: We do not know yet. Mr. Thatcher is putting it in writing.
While the motion is being drafted anyone who has heard it or understood it
- might in the meantime speak on it if he wishes to say anything.

Mr. BenipicksoN: I am not able to support Mr. Thatcher’s motion as it is
now stated because I think Mr. Sinclair is perfectly correct in stating that our
first act should be to examine the Auditor General’s report. Now, having said
that—

Mr. Frasgr: May I interrupt you a moment?

Mr. Benioickson: —having said that, I was going to say that I was very
disappointed with the agenda that took up so much.time during last year’s
sessions of the Public Accounts committee, although I was a member of the
agenda committee I want to say that when we first assembled a year ago I felt
this committee could do nothing better than follow the suggestion that was
advanced by Mr. Stewart, that we do examine the expenditures of the Department
of National Defence. In other words there is a feeling among the people
that a lot of money is being spent by the government, a government, any govern-
ment. I feel that instead of a lot of expeditions into policies and methods of
administration that we have a duty to examine something in a concrete way, to
see if we can establish confidence in our minds that those in charge of these very
big enterprises are carrying them out with the greatest possible respect for the
taxpayer’s money. Now, I feel that that imposes a great responsibility on the
members of this committee, both opposition and government, to challenge expen-
ditures, and if they see expenditures being made that should not be made I feel
. they should take the responsibility for saying that those expenditures should be
cut out. I hope that instead of taking items in total and saying so much money has
been spent on travelling expenses or so much money has been spent on public
relations activities that we would go to the roots of those things and take the
responsibility for saying this or that is unnecessary as the case may be. I do
not think it matters whether we examine the accounts for 1951 or those for 1950.
Let us make a start. I am assuming that inasmuch as we have not got audited

|
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statements in a printed form we cannot examine accounts of the Department of
National Defence other than those ending in the year 1950, but I say if we examine
those and we find confidence in those expenditures I think it will be something
that the public will appreciate; they will recognize that the people in charge of
defence at that time are very much the same people who are in charge today.
Now, I think that would be a very fine thing to do in view of the increased expen-
ditures and the increased burden which will, as a result, fall upon the taxpayers.

Mr. Brownge: Mr. Chairman, may we hear the motion now?

The CuamrrMaN: Moved by Mr. Thatcher, seconded by Mr. Wright, that
the committee discuss the Auditor General’s report for not more than five
meetings and then proceed with the public accounts on National Defence.

Does anybody want to speak on this motion, or do I eall the question now?

Mr. AsuBourNe: What about Mr. Croll’s motion?

The Cramyan: Mr. Croll has withdrawn his motion. The question is on Mr.
Thatcher’s motion. All those in favour will please raise their hands.

I declare the motion carried unanimously.

Mr. CruicksHANK: I do not see how we can set up a deadline.

The CrARMAN: It is not unanimous but I declare the motion carried. Shall
we now consider the question of a steering committee or shall the chairman
just call the witnesses? The Auditor General will be called before us, and the
meeting will stand adjourned to the call of the chair. Unless there is objection,
the first witness for five meetings or less—if we finish with him in less than that
time—will be the Auditor General. We will consider the Auditor General’s report.

Mr. CroLr: Mr. Chairman, do you not think we ought to have a steering
committee?

The CrARMAN: It is up to you, but the steering committee would be set up
to do the work we have done now. The Chairman now has nothing left to do but
to call the witnesses, and that is what the clerk does.

Mr. Bexmickson: I do not think that is entirely the result of the discussion.
I will now be prepared to support Mr. Croll’s motion and for this reason that we
have limited ourselves to five meetings. I have seen from experience how easy
it is to devote a considerable time by getting into a longer discussion than
necessary on some few items, such as a discussion on the first five items out of
seventy or eighty in the public accounts report. Now, in view of the fact that
the chairmanship was contested today I think it would be very advisable to
set up an agenda committee; that committee could look over Mr. Sellar’s report
in advance and, with the chairman, see if they could not in their own minds
try and ration out the discussion based on Mr. Sellar’s report. As you can
appreciate, the members of the opposition would have representation on that
agenda committee and therefore would be, with the chairman, in a position to
decide what is to be taken up.

Mr. Crorr: That is very dangerous of this reason: we have a majority on
that committee and the minute we start rationing we are the people who are
doing the rationing. ;

The CuamrMAN: I think so. We ought to leave that to the full committee
at least until we get through with the Auditor General. I know I would not like
to be a member of the steering committee that would limit one meeting to so
many articles and another to so many other articles of the report.

Mr. BEnmicksoN: I suggested it as a measure of fairness.

The CuamMAN: It might be acceptable to members but the minority may
feel that they have been deprived of some rights. We know what the report is,
we have time to look into it before the Auditor General attends, and until such
time as we finish these five meetings we should have the Auditor General before
us and go ahead with the study of his report.

81751—2
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Mr. Rosinson: There is one other point, Mr. Chairman. I am quite certain
that it would not be the wish of this committee to take any senior officer from a
very essential job to spend time before the committee unnecessarily and I think
in that respect a steering committee might be helpful in deciding how that could
be done without any interruption of essential services if it is a question of
bringing senior officers before the committee. I think the steering committee
might be helpful in that respect.

Mr. Sincrair: When you speak of senior officers you are talking of senior
officers of the services, not senior officers of any administrative department?

Mr. RoBinson: That is right.

Mr. WiNkLER: I think a steering committee would be very useful in case
anything unforeseen comes up.

Mr. WrigHT: I really think a steering committee would be helpful; other-
wise, we would have to take the responsibility of calling witnesses whom we
might want to have appear before us.

The CuairmMAN: My view was that this motion applied only for the first
five meetings. If you want to appoint a steering committee, alright.

Mr. WricaT: I move that a steering committee be appointed.

Mr. Borsverr: I will second that motion.

The CHARMAN: It has been moved by Mr. Wright and seconded by Mr.
Boisvert, that the chairman select a steering committee to advise him on the
question of agenda.

Carried.

Shall we then adjourn to the call of the chair? 4

Mr. Major: Before we adjourn may I suggest that when we consider Mr.
Sellar’s report we deal with it straight through from item 1, consecutively, and
not jump from one item to another the way we did last year. It would seem to
me that in that way we would make better progress on that phase of our work.

The CuamrMaN: That was the practice last year when we dealt with the
report in five meetings.

Mr. Wricar: Can’t there be some indication from the chair as to when
we may. have our next meeting?

The CuairmAN: Probably early next week. I shall have to get in touch
with Mr. Sellar. In the meantime we will adjourn to the c¢all of the chair.

a
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE
March 8, 1951.

The Committee met at 11 a.m.

The CuamrmAN: Gentlemen, the meeting is open.

The steering committee met at 10:30 o’clock this morning, and Messrs.
Cauchon, Croll, Johnston, McDonnell, Thatcher, Winkler and myself were
present. It was unanimously agreed that we would start on the report of the
Auditor General immediately and proceed article by article. It was also agreed
that we would assume that members have read each article of the report and that
we would not ask the Auditor General or the Chairman to read out each of the
paragraphs; that the Chairman would call number one, number two and so on,
and any questions on that paragraph would be in order, questions relating to
any matters concerned in that item; and that the questions would be limited
to the item under review. Suppose we are dealing with an item which concerns
agriculture, we will limit ourselves to what is in that item and not spread out
to the whole of the department, in order that we can get through within the
limit of time set to the committee for compleing the work on the report of the
Auditor General. That was the unanimous agreement of all members of the
steering committee; and, as you know, all parties are represented on the agenda
committee.

Mr. Sincramr: Mr. Chairman, if the question was one, let us say on agri-
culture, who would be here to represent that department?

The Cruarmax: Just the Auditor General himself. We are asking him
questions as to why he put this or that in his report. We would want to get
through with his report in five meetings, unless someone made a motion that it
was highly advisable to get a particular item of information, let us assume it was
on agriculture—I mean, that might have been raised. I assume it was the
intention of the members that we have just the Auditor General as a witness
and have him go through his report. Should any member require a statement
on a particular item I suggest that he might make a motion that we call the
appropriate official to be heard at a time that would be agreed on by the steering
committee. The steering committee agreed to call the Auditor General himself
and to limit questions to each item seriatum, and to confine questions and dis-
cussion to matters that are included in the individual item. It was also agreed
that once we were through with the work on the Auditor General’s report the
agenda committee would meet again and arrange for the appearance of witnesses
from the Department of National Defence.

Now, we will call Mr. Sellar:

Mr. Watson Sellar, Auditor General, called:

The CualRMAN: Now, gentlemen, number one, that is to say the item on
page 2 of the Auditor General’s report. His report is at the end of the blue
book. Are there any questions on item one?

By Mr. Macdonnell:
Q. There are two cases that you comment on there, one of them is the
custodian of enemy property; and the Auditor General points out that, unlike
these others, there is no report presented to Parliament. I would like to ask

11
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why that is so. Also, why are the Yukon accounts not tabled?—A. I am very
glad Mr. Macdonnell has brought that point up because the sentence in my
report dealing with the custodian of enemy property may be misleading. Up
until 1947 the custodian of enemy property was under no obligation to report
to the House of Commons and it was not the practice to make one. .In 1947
there was the legislation called Trading With the Enemy (Transitional Powers)
Act, which requires the custodian to make an annual report on his operations.
The custodian makes a report on those operations and the report for the year
which is now under review was tabled in the House of Commons on the 14th of
March. That review did not include the Auditor’s report because the audit was
not completed as of that date. We are always delayed by reason of the fact that
we have to get the reports from the various custodians throughout Canada who
hold securities and other property, and our report was not signed in time to be
included. However, the report of the custodian did include a statement regard-
ing the financial transactions, and you can accept that report as setting out, all
the material things that were set out ultimately in the Auditor’s statement. So
far as the Yukon Territory is concerned, sir, they operate indepéndently of the
government of Canada. There is a special Yukon consolidated fund and they
operate as a separate entity, but by law the Auditor General of Canada audits
their funds.

Mr. TaarcaER: Mr. Chairman, last year the committee made a recom-
mendation to parliament concerning these Crown corporations, and there is a
recommendation on page 1013 of the evidence of last year which says:

Your committee is of the opinion that the yearly report of every
Crown corporation should be referred for study to a select committee of
the House.

1 wonder if either the Chairman or the Auditor General could tell me whether
that has been done in any case; and, if not, whether it will be done?

The CuARMAN: It will be for some member of the government to inform
us whether it has been done, or if the government intends to carry out the sug-
gestion contained in the recommendation from our committee. I do not think
that either the Auditor General or myself is the proper person to answer that
question. We do not know the intentions of the government. The committee
has made a report and that report is before the government. Your question is
one which should be put on the order paper in the House, but I do not think the
Auditor General or myself could answer it now.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. Well then, perhaps the Auditor General could tell me whether any of
these companies listed here came before any parliamentary committee in the
past year?—A. All of them were audited by me, sir. Their accounts are in the
blue book before you.

Q. Are any of them coming up for scrutiny before any committee of par-
liament that you know of?—A. Other than this?

Q. Yes—A. We know that the Canadian National Railways, for example,
come here every year. ;

Q. I mean companies of the kind you have listed here; have any of those
companies - come before a parliamentary committee?—A. Not other than this
one, sir.

Q. That means then that the only scrutiny they get is what you give them,
is that correct?—A. And this committee. You examined practically all of them;
you asked questions last year with regard to a very large number of these com-
panies that are in the list there.

Ve %
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Q. Of course, this committee has not the time to do it properly. Mr. Chair-
man, I would like to suggest again with regard to these Crown corporations some
of which have the power to borrow public funds, and many of which have the
same special immunities which are enjoyed by the Crown—some of them I know
are concerned with our war effort, and their efforts I think will probably become
more serious if we do reach a stage of war—surely, Mr. Chairman, it is not
unreasonable to ask that these companies should come before a parliamentary
committee of some kind. I think that is the recommendation we made, and
I think we should make it again, definitely; if we can as a result of suggestions
save the Canadian taxpayers maybe hundreds of thousands of dollars. I think
we should make it imperative that some serutiny should be given to them, and
this Publiec Accounts committee cannot do it properly or adequately.

Mr. MACDONNELL: May I just say that, as you will recall, a recommendation
of that kind appeared in the report of this committee. The committee spent a
lot of time and did a lot of work on that phase last year. I think you are
perfectly correct in saying, Mr. Sellar, that you cannot answer for the government
on matters of policy, but might we not expect after all the work which was
done by this committee, that after they make a recommendation of that kind
we will at least get an answer and not have to go and raise the question on the
orders of the day or put it on the order paper in the House. I mean, it makes one
wonder whether these committees are taken as seriously as we would like to
think they should be. ;

Mr. Sivcrair: I would suggest that the matter is one which might very well
be brought up when the revision of the act is up in the House later this year.
I can assure you, Mr. Chairman, and the members of the committee, that
certainly suggestions made by a comrmttee of this sort are very very carefully
studied by all those dealing with these matters; and, speaking for myself, I
can assure you that that is so.

The Cmamman: It is not for me to suggest to members that they should
ask questions in the House, but I do think that Mr. Thatcher’s question is one
which should have been put to the Minister of Finance in the House, or to the
Prime Minister. It is not for me to say whether they intend to carry out these
suggestions or recommendations. The committee has gone as far as it has
powers to go in making the recommendation that it did. It is a question of
government policy and, as I see it, it is not one that comes within the scope
of our authority at all. So, as you have mentioned it, I suggest that you might
ask the Minister of Finance, or whoever it is, in the House whether it is the
intention to comply with the recommendation made last year by this committee,
to refer these reports to a special committee. It is not open to us to act on it
any more than we did last year. We made a report. As Mr. Macdonnell
graciously said, I made the first draft myself and I included that in the first
draft and then it went before the committee. It is your view that it might be
appropriate that these matters should be referred to a special commitee; but I
just want to point out that it is up to the government to decide what they are
going to do, and only a member of the government can indicate what their
intention is.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. I wonder if Mr. Sellar could tell the committee in round figures what
the total investment of the taxpayers is in these different companies?—A. I
am sorry, sir, I haven’t got the figures. I can bring them together for you.

Qi I wonder if you could get that information, for instance, in connection
with the Polymer Corporation. There are millions of dollars invested in that
Corporation, and so far as I know, there is no way of going over their revenues
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and expenditures from year to year. Theoretically, it is up to the committee
to review that, but I have never seen any of the Polymer accounts in any way
in which questions could be asked about them, except for items in the estimates,
and things like that. It simply is not practicable to give that company a blank
cheque—and you have the same thing with many others.

The Cuamrmax: If you would prefer to take Polymer ahead of T\Iatlona]
Defence, all you have to do is to make a motion in the committee. As you know,
we have a big task ahead of us, but if you think that Polymer is more important,
it will be up to the committee to decide which they prefer to take.

Mr. TuarcaEr: Mr. Chairman, you are being facetious. I understood that
they would go to a select committee.

The Cuamrman: As I say, we have a pretty big load here right now, and if
we are to attempt to do that—

Mr. TraTcHER™If we were to sit twenty-four hours a day, six days a week
here in this committee from now until the end of the session we could not go
over all these companies.

The CrAlRMAN: That is right. My answer is not restrictive. I did not say
we should not take these matters up before a select committee. All I say is that
if we wanted to we could do it in this committee, if we gave preference to that
heading instead of to another. I agree with you that it was suggested last year
that these matters be referred to a special committee. It is up to the Govern-
ment to indicate what they want to do.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. If one of these companies wanted to borrow money are there any restric-
tions? Can they go out and borrow an unlimited amount? What restriction is
there on their borrowing capacity—speaking of any of the Crown corporations?—
A. The only company which has any borrowing power—you are speaking of
borrowing from the bank or the publie—is the Canadian Wheat Board; all the
rest of them are dependent on the Consolidated Revenue Fund.

Q. Suppose this Polymer Corporation decided that they needed two or
three million dollars in a hurry, do you mean that they would have to go to the
minister and get an order in council, or come to parliament and get a vote to
borrow that money?—A. There would have to be an appropriation.

Q. They cannot borrow on their own?—A. No.

Mr. Fraser: I suppose they would not have to go to parliament.

The Wirness: There would have to be an appropriation. The Minister of
Finance only has the power to loan up to $500,000 in the case of any company,
under the provisions of the Government Companies Operations Act, that is
the limit.

Mr. Fuurox: Is that the total amount or the amount to each company?

The Witness: $500,000 to each company.

Mr. Bomsvert: But they can borrow from the government, through the
Minister of Finance, up to $500,000?

The Wirxess: They can go to the government for up to $500,000.

The CHARMAN: Are we through with questions on item one?

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. Have there been any occasions, to your knowledge, where any of the
companies have been embarrassed by not being able to get the money they
needed?—A. No.

Mr. BoisverT: Mr. Sellar, is there any particular reason why the accounts
of the custodian of enemy property are not presented to the House of Commons?

PR ————
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The Wirness; -1 am sorry, sir. A moment ago when I answered a similar
question I faced Mr. Macdonnell. A report by the custodian of enemy property
has been presented to the House of Commons since 1947. That is required by the
statute. But the auditor’s statement cannot be included in the report because
the audit is not completed by the time the report of the custodian is presented
The custodian in his report last year set out his financial transactions which, when
we completed our audit, we found was reconcilable with the information he has
given. What I was referring to, and what I am dissatisfied with in my wording
of the report, is this; I should have said that the audited statements are not
printed in the Public Accounts. The custodian does present his report and it
includes the financial transactions in a quite extensive fashion.

The Crarmax: Item 2:

Carried.

Item 3:
Carried.

Ttem 4:
Carried.

Item 5:

Mr. Fraser: On this item 5, Mr. Chairman: as I recall it, starting with
last year, the Department of Transport had a revolving fund set up. Would
that take care of things such as we find here? He said:

However, had the year-end issue of stores, to the amount of $17,256,
from the Department of Transport stores account been recorded as
charges, vote 453 (Departmental Administration) would have been
exceeded by $10,480 and votes 456, 461 and 465 by small amounts.

Well now, would this new fund which was set up, I think just this last year, take
care of things of that kind?—A. No. The legislation of last year increased the
amount which the Minister of Transport had available to use for the purpose of
purchasing stores throughout the year. In parliament there was some discussion
as to the method employed in controlling the funds and the Minister of Trans-
port gave an undertaking that the system was being reviewed by his own officers
and officers of the comptroller of the treasury, and also by my office, and that
he was hopeful that this sort of thing would not recur. This arises out of the
fact that issues are made all over the country from points ranging from Prince
Rupert to Halifax. At the year end they may be running over on some particular
item; for example, in one particular case, the item for fuel might be over-drawn—
I do not think you need to worry about it. I had to bring it to your attention.
I do not think it is anything you need worry about.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I notice, on item 5, Mr. Chairman, that the Auditor
General makes a suggestion. He says:

In a revision of the Consolidated Revenue Audit Act, consideration
might be given to directing that this annual listing be repeated in the
public accounts, because refunds and remissions are of audit concern
only when irregularly made.

Now, it is a small point, but there is a suggestion there, you go on record as
being in favour of a revision?

The CuarMAN: Yes. I am not sure; of course I cannot speak for the
Treasury officials; but I understand the matter is now under review in the
Department of Finance and that this is being considered as an amendment to the
Audit Act. We might make a note to report on it but before we have time to
report the bill might have reached the House. We will make a note of it for
future reference. :
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The WirNess: Might I add that in my report this year you will find quite
a number of paragraphs which are related to the expected revision of the Con-
solidated Revenue and Audit Act. They are not in there by way of criticism
but rather for the sake of information so that members may have an opportunity
of familiarizing themselves with these matters if they think they are of impor-
tance, when they come to consider that bill. I am not criticizing the items in
particular. I knew that this bill was coming up, therefore I put them in.

The CHAIRMAN: Page 4, Item 6. Are there any questions? Then item 7?

Mr, MacpoxNeLL: I would like to ask if the Auditor General could give us
details of the decrease of $16 million odd under the heading of “Return on
Investments”? Or is that something which we should have looked up for
ourselves before we came here?

The CHAlrRMAN: Where is that, please?

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. I refer, Mr. Chairman, to the item entitled “Return on Investments”,
which is to be found in line 4 of Item No. 7, and which shows a decrease of
$16,360,000.—A. Mr. Chairman, that arose in the main through the sale of
securities which were held as temporary investments of the government of
Canada. ,

Q. Under some one department, or just in general?—A. During the war
years the Minister of Finance had a security investment account. He was
permitted by order in council to make temporary investment of idle balances in
the consolidated revenue fund so that they would be earning money. He accum-
ulated quite a lot of money. Some of these securities matured and they were
redeemed. In effect, therefore, they ceased to produce interest.

Q. You mean he bought them at a premium?—A. He may have bought some
of them at a premium. He bought them on the market, some at a discount and
possibly some at a little over, at a premium; but they were paying 3 per cent
interest. Of course, when he sold them, that source of income disappeared.

By Mr. Fulton:
Q. Did he invest that money in government bonds?—A. Oh, yes, govern-
ment, bonds.

By Mr. Macdonnell :

Q. It was'my understanding that we had been maintaining the price of our
government bonds so that they would never go down.—A. It was not a support
of the market proposition. It was to keep idle money earning interest. For
example, he would float an issue during the war of, let us say, two or three billion
dollars. He would not need all that money at once. And if it lay idle in the
bank, he would get no return on it. But if he put it out into government
gecurities, he would get 3 per cent interest.

Q. Then this $16 million odd represented returns on money which was only
temporarily available; and when it became needed for a certain purpose, it
would have to be spent?—A. It was converted.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. What effect does it have on the revenue and expenditure picture of the
country, when you invest your money in securities and pay yourself interest on
it and then show that interest as revenue?—A. You have to do it. You have to
show the interest paid on debt to the public as an amount which you pay out;
and on the revenue side you show what you get in yourself. It is a cross entry,
but you cannot avoid it.

Q. Tt is cancelled out?—A. Yes, and you cannot avoid it.
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By Mr. Macdonnell: .

Q. I notice a reduction of $26,065,000 under the heading of “Manufacturers’
Tax on Beverages”. Would that be due to lessened consumption?—A. I think
that happened as a result of the repeal of the tax.

Q. I suppose so. But I had hoped it was due to lessened consumption.

The CrAlRMAN: Are there any more questions on Item 7? Now, Item 8.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. Mr. Chairman, with respect to the item “Settlement with United States
on Munitions, Inspections Account”, could we have it explained what that
covers?—A. During the war, Canada and the United States had an agreement
whereby there was joint inspection. And when it was all over, in settling the
relative amounts payable by each for these inspections, the United States owed
Canada $11 million, and they paid Canada the money. I think we were perhaps
the only country in the world which ended the war having the United States a
debtor to us.

Mr. MAcpDONNELL: Are we on Item 8, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. '

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. I wonder if the Auditor General would say something to us about
renegotiation of war-time contracts? What I have in mind is just a general
idea as to the principle which was used.—A. Mr. Chairman, in the case of
most of these contracts, there were cost audits carried on by the comptroller of
the treasury section to establish the real cost. These reports would be made to
the Minister of Munitions and Supply. He, in turn, had a financial branch
which was headed by Mr. F. H. Brown, who was on loan from the Canadian
Bank of Commerce. He would review them and bring them all together. And
wherever the minister was of the opinion that the profit to a contractor or on
a group of contracts had been excessive, they re-negotiated the contract so that
the government became entitled to a refund. As to this $16 million odd, you
will notice that the amount is decreasing. Now, how does this money come in?
The contractors assign to the government their rights to the refundable portion
of the business profits tax which had been collected by the Department of
Revenue. Therefore, as that money becomes repayable, in accordance with
the law—instead of it being paid to the original taxpayers, it is paid over to-the
government of Canada. There will be about $5 million coming in this year
in that regard.

The CHAIRMAN: Item 9?

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. Not yet, Mr. Chairman. What about this “Park Steamship Company
surplus” of $3 million odd? Does that arise out of the sale of ships?—A. No.
That arises out of the chartering of ships. They charter these ships and this
represents the profit on it.

The CHAIRMAN: Item 9? Item 107

By Mr. Fraser:
Q. With respect to Item 10 I read: :

Rental charges were set at 50 per cent of the company’s gross profits
ag established to the satisfaction of the government.

How does your department check to find out whether or not those figures
are right? Do you take the company’s word, or do you have an auditor in
there?—A. On this particular contract with the Roe people, the agreement pro-
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vided that the first figures would be those certified to by the auditors of A. V.
Roe and Company. But the Minister of Trade and Commerce by the agreement
had the right to put in either myself or another firm that he might select to
evaluate as to the accuracy of these figures.

In this particular instance—I think it is a fact although I cannot vouch
for it—the Minister of Trade and Commerce had the benefit of the experience
of Mr. Scully, the Deputy Minister of Taxation. The revenues have been
approved with great care. He is an experienced accountant of long standing.
He was the man who would deal with that. This item is essentially one related
to the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act, that is, with respect to the use of
the powers of a corporation in dealing with public monies. I think the last
sentence contains the point of this thing. I am not questioning the settlement
or anything else.

By Mr. Macdonnell:
Q. It says:
The rental charges were set at 50 per cent of the company’s gross
profifs.... « .

Is that not a rather unusual basis for rental? One would have thought that
would be to the satisfaction of the government. Is that just a formal statement
or was there some special understanding with regard to it? One would think
that to pay 50 per cent of your gross profit might create a pretty difficult
bargain to carry out?—A. I cannot give you any information as to the reason
that was taken. I did not participate in any way in it. You would have to ask
the department for information as to why that was taken. From my view-
point it seemed to be beneficial to the department.

Q. It struck me as being strange. And when we have a strange arrange-
ment, we feel we would like to understand it better—A. I cannot help you.
I am sorry. I can, however, give you the gross profits shares by years, if you
would care to have them.

Q. T was just going to ask you about that—A. The financial year of the
company is July 31. Do you want round figure or precise ones?

Q. Round, but not too round—A. 1946, $16,800; 1947, $151,000; 1948,
$251,000; 1949, $240,000.

Those are round figures.

Q. Perhaps my next question should not be asked either; but I would like
to raise it at any rate. There you have profits going up from virtually nothing
to a fairly substantial amount, in 1949, of $240,000. Then we find that the
company exercises its option to purchase. It is an option which was set out
earlier at $2,500,000; and an order in council was passed fixing the value at
$1,950.000, but not for all of the property.—A. There was a reduction in the
quantity of the property taken.

Q. So presumably $1,950,000 covered that part of the property which they
wanted, and out of which they had been making profits. Now, when they made
$240,000 profit in 1949, that meant that the government had received a rental
of $120,000. Of course, those are gross figures. So you sold for $1,950,000
property from which you were getting $120,000 a year. When was this done?
Evidently in 1949. I suppose at that time one would say that the tremendous
speed-up we have had since was not in sight. But when we look at it now,
we find that that price looks to be a pretty sick one in the light of first wisdom
after the event. I wonder if you can say anything more about it?—A. Mr.
Chairman, I think you have to bear in mind in regard to this transaction that
the government ended the war with that plant at Malton. It was a very
important thing to have employment locally. The A. V. Roe Company offered
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to go in and operate that plant and develop it, and in particular to endeavour
to develop a new type of aireraft. They came in and fortunately they have
been very successful. I think you have to off-set those facts against the dollar -
figure, T mean the value of having a going concern in the locality, from the view-
point of the country as a whole.

Q. You do discuss it at some length in the second paragraph. You discuss
the merits of it and I believe they are substantially what you have just said.—
A. T had to explain why I doubt the actions of the War Assets Corporation in
handling this money the way it did.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. The figures show what they actually paid. Taking the basis for the
plant which they were getting at 24, and the gross rental at $241,000, that would
work out to be rather less than one-half of one per cent of the value of the
plant they were occupying over two years—A. But the government got the
advantage of the experimental work, and it is off-set in the rental now. If you
want to get more information in connection with it, you should eall someone
from the Department of Trade and Commerce who knows the facts.

Mr. MacponNELL: You say that the government had the advantage of the
experimental work. But so did the A. V. Roe Company have that advantage
as well.

Mr. Fuuron: Yes, and on a part of the plant for which they paid $241,000
rent for two years.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I think this is a very complicated transaction, Mr. Chair-
man. I wonder if we ought not to call some more witnesses concerning it?

The CrAIRMAN: According to our agreement we will leave this subject and
after we have dealt with Mr. Sellar’s report, if we are still within our preseribed
time, T would have no objection, provided the committee wishes to spend the
time on this matter, to looking into this more closely. Therefore, we shall let
item stand.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. Might T ask Mr. Sellar this question: I take it from Mr. Sellar’s obser-
vation in connection with this transaction what has happened is that as a result
of the action taken, War Assets Corporation, relative to the exercise of the dis-
cretion, as it were, has relieved the company of any liability for paying rent
over and above $14,000 odd. They had paid $209,192 as rent. And that, if
War Assets Corporation had not taken that action, this matter would have had
to come before Parliament, as it would have had to come out of the Consolidated
Revenue Fund, and Parliament would therefore have had an opportunity to
investigate the equity of the settlement, an opportunity which Parliament is
not now getting. Is that your point, Mr. Sellar?—A. My point is that War
Assets ‘Corporation acted as agent for the Receiver-General in collecting that
money. Now, had the Receiver-General received that money, it would have
gone into the Consolidated Revenue Fund and it could not have been paid out
without parliamentary approval.

War Assets, however, is selling public property all the time and it has
certain moneys in its hands and it made the adjustment out of those moneys.

Q. With regard to the last two sentences in the first paragraph on page 5,
you have simply made two observations without any comment. You say:

For these reasons, it considers that the refund was regulated by the
provisions of the Surplus Crown Assets Aet and not by the Consolidated
' Revenue and Audit Act.
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What is your opinion? Do you agree with the -opinion of the War Assets
Corporation?—A. No, sir. I do not think that the War Assets Act applies at all to
this transaction. But that is just my opinion.

Q. Then what you have already said is that as a result of this action
parliamentary control over the payment was dissipated?—A. As I have said,
this item is placed in here because I had in mind the revision of the Consolidated
Revenue and Audit Act, and that maybe they would make provision regarding
this sort of transaction. And, if the government should bring in such a measure,
you would have here a sample case. It is just a broad proposal which is made.
I am not disturbed at all over this transaction in any way whatsoever.

The CuamrMAN: Item 11?

By Mr. Fraser:
Q. Do you know what the total cost of that building was before it was
destroyed?—A. No, sir.
Q. You have no idea of it at all?—A. I have no idea of it. That was the
approximate value of equivalent buildings at that time.

The CuAmrMAN: Item 127

By Mr. Thatcker:

Q. I wonder if Mr. Sellar could say if this payment has subsequently been
made?—A. My note is to the effect that settlement is to be made during the
1951 shipping season.

Q. They have made arrangements, then?—A. Yes. The company has offered
to allow them to use $10,000, or to settle in the 1951 season, and the department
has decided to adjust in the 1951 season.

By Mr. Macdonnell: ;

Q. Could Mr. Sellar say a word or two as to the special situation which
caused a departure from the regular practice here? Was this a dredging operation
which had really béen done for the exclusive, or almost exelusive benefit of this
corporation? Was there an understanding in advance? Or is there any principle
with respect to free dredging which obtains on the St. Lawrence, and T suppose
elsewhere too?—A. In answering you I shall have to depend upon hearsay. I
cannot be factual. However, my understanding is that this was undertaken in
the ordinary way as a public works necessary for the welfare of Canada.

Q. And where is it located?—A. Somewhere up in the Georgian Bay area,
I think, although I do not know. It is in the province of Ontario.

Q. It was not undertaken for the benefit of the tourist trade?—A. Oh, no.
There was a mine there, and it was done in order to facilitate the removal of a
commodity from that mine, and also the fact that this mine was operating to bene-
fit very materially the area there. The government felt the company should make
a contribution towards it and they agreed that as this was to their benefit they
would make a contribution. They said you must spread it over a period of
years and that is what is being done.

The CHARMAN: Shall we pass on to Item 13 now?

By Mr. Macdonnell:
- Q. Could we have a word about the item “Loans and Advances”?—
A. “Loans and Advances” is set out in paragraph 16.

Mr. THATCHER: Are we on Item 13 yet, Mr. Chairman?

The CuamrMaN: We are on Item 13, May we not deal with your question,
Mr. Macdonnell, when we come to Item 16? Have you any questions on Item 13?
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By Mr. Fulton:
Q. “Continuing Appropriations”. Might I ask what they are? Are they
items which appear in the estimates as statutory authorizations?—A. Yes, sir.

By Myr. Thatcher:

Q. I wonder if Mr. Sellar could say whether all of this lapsed money was
ever returned to the Treasury or spent?—A. It never left the Treasury.
Q. I read a paragraph in the Montreal Gazette a while ago which says:
The law, for instance, requires that any amount voted by Parliament,
and not spent within that fiscal year, must be declared and returned. The
object of this law, of course, is to keep a firm grip by Parliament upon the
public moneys. But Mr. Sellar discovers every year that quite a number
of these moneys are neither spent nor returned.

What does it mean?—A. The Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act provides that
at the end of March all balances in votes which have not been spent shall lapse
and be written off. In other words, the power of the department to spend the
money is cancelled. The money, however, is in the Treasury. It is a figure.

Q. But as I understand it, according to this editorial that has not always
been done. Is that correct, or are they mistaken?

The CaarMAN: It depends on the word “returned”; that is the point at
issue. It cannot be returned because it never left the department. The depart-
ment is authorized to spend it, but if it does not spend it, it lapses, so it cannot
be spent. But as it has never left the Treasury, it cannot be returned. You
cannot return a thing which has never left.

Mr. Fraser: But do they not get it on their estimates for the following year?

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. You do not find any cases where they spend it the following year instead?
—A. They cannot spend it. :

Q. Then I must take it that this article is incorrect—A. You have to bear
in mind that each government has its own plan. This government had a different
plan a few years ago. Before this present Act came into effect, each department
had a letter of credit which they spent and then made a settlement with the
Department of Finance later on. Therefore there was a return of unspent bal-
ances in the letters of credit. But the modern practice, so far as the government
of Canada is concerned, is that there are no letters of eredit and therefore the
money does not leave the Consolidated Revenue Fund. It is just written off.

By Mr. Sinclair:
Q. That has not been done since 1931, has it?—A. No, not since 1931.
The CHAIRMAN: Are there any more questions on Item 13?

By Mr. Ashbourne:

Q. With respect to the amounts which are allocated and passed by parlia-
ment for expenditures by different provinces—consider the province of New-
foundland for which some allocation has been made—what about amounts which
are not spent? I presume they go into a dropped balance, or lapse? Do they
have to come up for a revote in another year before they can be spent?—
A. Might I ask what you have in mind?

Q. T refer to the allocations or appropriations that are made concerning, let
us say, public works in Newfoundland. Supposing they are not spent in a given

vear in which they are allocated: what has to be done to get them into operation?
—A. A new appropriation, sir.
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Q. You mean just a re-vote?—A. You can call it a re-vote or a new appro-
priation whichever you like. It means the same thing.

The CHAIRMAN: Item 14?

Q. What about the item “Active Assets”? Can you tell us if that means
accounts receivable or accounts in connection with some contract which will
materialize at some future date? I would like to know about it? Could you
give us some information about this $75,000,000 which has been ear-marked?
Was it ear-marked in a general way or was it set up to take care of some
definite loss?—A. This reserve started out, sir, about ten years ago at $25
million a year. Then more recently the Minister of Finance increased it to
$75 million a year. In my previous reports I have taken exception to it on the
ground that it was not established to us just how this figure was computed. Now,
the Minister of Finance is a prudent man and he does not desire to have his
financial position over-stated. So he takes into consideration the fact that he
has got a large number of loans outstanding, some of them to provinces, some
to foreign governments, to the Canadian National Railways, and to various other
objectives. So this reserve is predicated upon the assumption that if he tried to
realize on those assets at the value at which they are set up in his balance sheet,
he might not get that money. Therefore, in order to be honest with Parliament,
he has set up a reserve. We do not take in accounts receivable. Take for
example the case of someone who is assessed for income tax but has not paid it.

Q. That-is not taken in?—A. No, sir. ‘

Q. I wonder if you could explain why there has been an increase since
the year 1949-50 of $75 million? There must be something there which is
not going to materialize?—A. That is something for which you would have
to get your answer from the Department of Finance.

Q. But speaking as an auditor, would you not question this increase, or
would you not ask for reasons for it?>—A. I have challenged it in the past and
I have noted it in reports coming to this committee, but this committee has not
been interested, so I have not repeated it. I think this is the first time the
question has been raised.

Q. But in the course of your audit, did you question the $50 million?—
A. Not this year, sir.

Q. You did not?—A. No, but I did two years ago.

Q. You have no idea what the $50 million increase is for?—A. No.

By Mr. Thatcher:
Q. Could you tell us what the total of that reserve is now?—A. You mean

the total amount?
Yes.

By Mr. Macdonnell :
Q. Yes, and tell us what it is invested in?—A. Oh, it is just on paper, a
bookkeeping entry. *

By Mr. Thatcher.:

Q. Thank you, Mr. Sellar. And I might say that in the meantime Mr.
Bryce has pointed out to me that the sum amounts to $320 million—A. I knew
it was about that figure.

Q. Could you tell me this: In the past three or four years what has been
done with respect to moneys owed to us by foreign countries? Have those moneys
just been written off against this reserve?—A. No, sir. Parliament a few
years ago authorized a write-off against this reserve in connection with loans to
the Prairie provinces. There was legislation adjusting them, and they were
written off in the current year. An item of $1,800 in connection with a loan made
to a company out in the west during the war was written off in 1949-50.
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Q. Now, with respect to the main purpose of this reserve for loans made to
foreign countries, such as loans made after the war to Greece, to Great Britain
and to countries of that nature, what have you to say about that?—A. To obtain
an answer to your question, you would have to ask the deputy minister of
finance or the Minister of Finance. I have explained the principle as to how it
was computed.

Q. As far as these debts are concerned, could you tell us if the payments
have been made up to date or are any of these foreign countries behind in their
payments?—A. Certainly. Greece and Roumania have been in default for
many years.

Q. Do you not think it would be more sensible to write them off against
this reserve?—A. We have got no power to write them off. Parliament alone
has the power to write off thls kind of debt.

Q. So what we are doing is to set up a reserve and then not using it.—A. The
government is setting it up. They are trying to be realistic in saying what the
assets of this country might produce upon realization.

Q. But we are setting up a reserve and not using it.—A. Yes.

Mr. CruicksHANK: Are we going to collect that money by sending an
important delegation to 12 countries for the purpose? Is that it?

Mzr. SivcrAr: Next year!

By Mr. Maltais:

Q. With respect to the item of $62 million. Is that a special reserve and
does it apply in your case?—A. What is that, please?

Q. Under item 14.—A. You mean that $62 293,000?

Q. Yes.—A. The legislation whereby Newfoundland became part of Canada
provided as follows, and I quote the particular paragraph which is number 23:

23. Canada will assume and provide for servicing and retirement
of the stock issued on the security of Newfoundland pursuant to the loan
act, 1933, Newfoundland, and will take over the sinking fund established
under that act.

Q. Why did you call it “another exceptional charge”?—A. It shows that
they have got to show it as a liability of Canada. They show it first as an
expenditure. The money will not be paid out until the holders present these
securities for redemption when they mature. The money will be paid out over
several years.

Q. Oh, I see; “exceptional charges”. Would you say that the charges that
have been made this year are ones which you would consider to be “exceptional”’?
—A. This is an unusual charge because this is the only time it ever happened,
and that is the reason why the word “exceptional” was used.

By Mr. Macdonnell: :

Q. I want to go back to an answer the Auditor General made with regard
to the large amount involved in “investment”. I do not quite understand what
he said. In this financing, where the government build up a reserve, do they
follow the practice which is common with commercial companies; a commerecial
company, a private company, builds up a reserve out of income and when it
has a loss it charges that loss against the reserve, it recoups itself in that way.
What happens, for instance, in connection with this $62 million more in New-
foundland—when it comes to be paid, what happens? Where does the money
come from?—A. The Consolidated Revenue Fund..

Q. Of that particular year?—A. Yes.

Q. In other words, it does not mean a thing?—A. Not at the moment. We
have to put it in to show our liability. It is a bookkeeping entry.
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Q. As I understand your answer, if I understand it correctly, we would set
up a reserve, a pretty thing to look at, but when we come right down to it this
$62 million that is to be paid has to be collected in the form of taxes and paid
out in that year—A. You are correct, sir, save that there is a sinking fund
attached to it, and that sinking fund is accumulating now.

Q. In other words, this reserve is not a real thing. It does not get the
money out of which we eventually make the payment. I am not criticizing the
set-up, I just want to be sure that we understand what it is.

Mr. Mavtats: In other words, the only sinking fund the government carries
is the Consolidated Revenue F und is that it?>—A. Not strictly speaking; that
sinking fund is related to a pamcular application, while the Consolidated Revenue
Fund is for the general operation of the company as a whole.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. What it amounts to then, is thls, that you do not build that reserve
fund up out of securities or cash placed in it?—A. You see, this thing here, as
I said to Mr. Macdonnell, is a bookkeeping entry at the moment; and it is a
subject which I hope will be taken care of in the consolidated revenue and
audit act provision; namely a means for a tabulation of real worth securities.
As was suggested a few minutes ago, a commercial corporation builds up a
reserve for bad debts and it uses that and charges off against it each year, that
is taken into account by the imcome tax people in assessing the company’s
income.

Q. In other words, it represents the value of the investment?—A. Yes. In
this case there is really no reason for setting up this reserve, because expenditures
cannot be made from it without parliamentary appropriation, as was done in
the case of the adjustment made with the Prairie provinces in connection with
relief during the 1930’s. In that case, parliament authorized a write-off, and
this reserve was reduced proportionately by the amount of that write-off.

Q. What T am trying to get at, is this: the Minister of Finance is not

actually putting the money into Vhls reserve, if he wanted to use money for the
A. Yes, he would

have to go to parhament for it.

Q. So actually we have no reserve fund at the moment?—A. No sir.

Q. Nothing in the way of a cash reserve fund at all, it is just an entry on
the balance sheet.—A. That is it.

‘Mr. MacpoNNELL: Unemployment Insurance, for instance.

The Wirness: Yes, there are various funds—

Mr. MacpoN~NELL: I did not mean appropriated for a specific purpose—

The CuarMAN: One member at a time, please; the reporter cannot take
down more than one member speaking at a time, if you don’t mind.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. What I mean is that this sinking fund is only an accounting entry; there
is no large reserve fund as yet, no cash? Has parliament ever made any
appropriation for a general reserve fund?—A. No, sir. You don’t want me to
go back into ancient history?

Q. No—A. Currently, to my knowledge, no.

Q Is this $300 million shown on the balance sheet?

" Mr. Major: So, as a matter of fact, you have that reserve fund set up so
that when we look at the balance sheet we get a clear picture of it?

The Wirxess: That is the intent of the Minister of Finance, to be honest
with parliament, believing that what he shows in that 1nstance may not be
fully realized, he sets up this reserve provision.

Mr. Major: It would be a current liability.
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The WirNess: Precisely.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: But that would be the sort of thing that he would
mention in his budget speech, that it is not shown as an expenditure.

The WirNess: Yes, as a rule he makes some reference to it in his budget
speech.

The CrAmMAN: Item 157

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. On Item 15, I wonder if Mr. Sellar would explain to the committee,
or at least, would explain to me; what exactly a “special warrant” is?—A. The
Consolidated Revenue and Audit Aect provides, sir, that in the event of an
emergency arising doing damage to a public building or a public work, or for
any like case, when there is no appropriation available and parliament is not
in session and it is necessary to take action at once to put that work back into
working operation, then the minister concerned may apply to the Governor in
Council for the issue of a warrant, signed by the Governor General, authorizing
him to spend “X” thousands of dollars for the repair of this particular work.

Q. Does parliament have anything to say about it?—A. T wonder if I
might, before answering your question, apologize to the committee with respect
to the wording of paragraph 15. You would infer from that paragraph that
there was only one such warrant; actually, there were four; I overlooked the
other three, and that is why I am apologizing. In the case of vote 215, that was
in conneetion with the Yukon read, the work was proceeding and they ran out
of money in the middle of the year and a warrant was issued for $195,000. In
connection with vote 434, which was for the Fraser River Dyking Board, it
ran out of money and two warrants were issued for $750,000 each. And now, in
the Appropriation Act of that year, sir, all of these warrants were taken in, and
actually I do not think there was any necessity for my making any reference
whatsoever to the warrants; but, since I have put in one I should have put in
the other three, and that is why I should now give this explanation. There were
three others, and the Appropriation Act included “provided, the amount hereby
authorized to be paid and applied in respect of items 215, 339 and 434, set forth
in such Schedule A are to be deemed to include and not to be in addition to the
amounts authorized—.” So parliament had already digposed of these warrants.

Q. This building in Vancouver, would that amount be charged against this
reserve?—A. That is the Begg building you have in mind?

Q. Yes. Would that building come within the terms of the section you
mentioned a minute ago; an emergency, the repair of some building?—A. That,
sir, 13 governed by what is known as the Oliver Mowat opinion, given in 1896;
when after the general election of that year the Tupper government was de-
feated; and parliament had automatically gone out of existence through lapse
of time before the Appropriation Act had been passed. Sir Oliver Mowat was
Minister of Justice in the new government, Sir Wilfrid Laurier, the then Prime
Minister, wrote to him and asked him what authority, if any, he could rely on
to provide for the operation of the public service and for the payment of salaries
to eivil servants until parliament could be summoned. Sir Oliver Mowat ruled that
under this particular section, which has always been in the act, that authority
was vested in the Governor General, that the Governor General had the dis-
cretion to decide when something was necessary and had to be done. That
precedent, sir, was followed in 1926 when the Liberal government went out of
office and the Meighen government came in and there was an election being held
during the summer before appropriations had been made. The government of
that day relied on the same authority for the financing necessary to carry on the
public serviee of that time. It was again found valid in 1940 when, you will
recall, the House was dissolved just at the end of the fiscal year and there was
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no appropriation possible until the new House had been elected and sat later
on in the spring. This section of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act—this
section 25 has been considered to be quite general in its meaning.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. Might I just interject for a moment? This practice I suppose is necessary;
it can be dangerous. I was just wondering if there is any act which would put
a limit on these warrants. Is there any limit on it? Can it be used for any amount
at all?—A. There is no limit, sir; but there is this limit; T have been associated
with the financial administration of Canada as a public employee for twenty-six
years. In that period of time there have been four Prime Ministers, and each
of these Prime Ministers has fought the departments, and so has the Minister
of Finance, when they have sought a warrant. Each of the Prime Ministers has
disliked the use of a warrant, and only when a very good case can be established
showing that it would actually save money to the country by doing something
would they consent to a warrant. So it has not been abused, sir.

Q. What would happen if parliament had refused to confirm this warrant?
Suppose it had refused to pass it; what would have been the position then?—
A. The position would have been that the money was spent.

Q. It had no choice, in other words.—A. That is a delegation which parlia-
ment has made by legislation. A warrant does not need to be ratified by
parliament. :

Q. It did not require to be approved?—A. No, sir.

Q. I thought parliament was the only one in this country that could spend
money ?—A. It means that Parliament by Section 25 has delegated power to
the Governor General in certain eircumstances to make issues by use of warrants.
That is in the Appropriation and Audit Act, Section 25.

Mr. Fuuron: That would take the place of the Appropriation Act?
The Wrrness: It has the same effect as the Appropriation Act.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. But to what extent might it be used? Would it be used so generally as to
become dangerous?—A. This section does not worry me because I have seen
what the Prime Ministers have done over the years and the view which the
Ministers of Finance take when such a request comes to them. And, I think
it was necessary in these cases. 1 don’t know much about the building which
vou mentioned, but I had a look at the others to which I referred. Let us
take this item 215 where there was a warrant for $125,000 for the road. They

 were constructing a road up into the Yukon Territory, the season was dry

and they were able to make an early start and they wanted to.get the road
finished. The road erews had to be taken in there over long distances and they
had made unusually good progress with the result that they used up the half
of the appropriation authorized by parliament by the end of June. It was
either a case of arranging to proceed with that work or to pull those crews out
and send them back in again later on, and it was considered desirable that the
work should continue while the crews were in there and in that way save money,
and they gave this money by way of warrant for the amount which parliament
had already granted, and one half of which had been covered by vote before the
House dissolved.

Q. Hve you any idea how many of these warrants have been used during

the past fiscal year?—A. These were the only ones.

Q. How much was in them altogether?—A. There were only the four and in
each case there was already an appropriation before parliament for the amount
that was covered by the warrants. You will recall that before parliament
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dissolved before the election that year it gave a six month grant of supply; that
is, one half of the amount of the votes; and the other half was voted by the
House after the new House convened; in no case did they exceed the amount
of the appropriation.

Mr. Mavrrais: What is the seetion?

The Wirness: Section 25 of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act.

By Mr. Sinclair:

Q. Would they limit it as to the amount authorized?—A. It provides funds
for works that are to be proceeded with forthwith and is restricted to the amounts
actually necessary—mnot to exceed “X” thousands of dollars.

By Mr. Cruickshank:

Q. What about these fixed fees on contracts? Are they limited amounts?

1 see here that these people are to get, I think it is 12 per cent.—A. No,
a percentage rate may be taken into the calculation, but the amount of a fixed
fee is not stated in the form of a percentage.

Q. Is that the same thing as what you call a management fee?—A. Not
quite, sir; no. A management fee would recognize certain costs that a fixed
tee would not,

Q. How do you arrive at the amount of such a fee?—A. That is a matter
of negotiation.

Q. It is a matter of negotiation?—A. Yes, sir.

Mr. MacponNeLL: I would like to ask another question about that. I
understood the Auditor General to say that there was a discretion vested in the
Governor General. Did you not mean the Governor in Council? Did you mean
that the Governor General is the man who decides whether this warrant should
be issued or not?

 The Wirness: The Governor in Council did. If you would like me to I ‘
will read the section to you.

The Crmairman: All right, go ahead. -
The WirnEss: It is Section 25, it is a fairly long section.

The CramrMAN: I think it would be better to have if in so that everybody
may have a clear idea of what it contains.

Mr. SELLAR: Section 25 reads:

25. (1) If, when Parliament is not in session, any accident happens
to any public work or building which requires an immediate outlay for
the repair or renewal thereof, or any other occasion arises when any
expenditure, not foreseen or provided for by Parliament, is urgently and
immediately required for the public good, then upon the report of the
Minister that there is no parliamentary provision, and of the minister
having charge of the service in question that the necessity is urgent, the
Governor in Council may order a special warrant to be prepared, to be
signed by the Governor General for the issue of the amount estimated to
be required, which shall be placed by the Minister to a special account,
against which cheques may issue from time to time, in the usual form, as
they are required.

(2) The authority to make expenditure under such warrant shall
lapse and any unexpended balance be written off at the end of the fiscal

' year in which the warrant is given: Provided that during a period not
exceeding thirty days subsequent to the end of the said fiscal year,
issues out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund may be made for an
amount or amounts not exceeding the amount of the expenditure authorized

81751—33%
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by the said warrant, for the purpose only of discharging any debt properly
incurred and payable prior to the end of the said fiscal year, which may
be outstanding and chargeable thereto and which for good reason was not
paid within the said fiscal year, and such expenditure may be charged
in the accounts of the said fiscal year.

Mr. Sincrair: How long has that been in the act?

The Wirness: That has been in the Act since 1878,

Mr. MacpoNNELL: It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that the case which Mr.
Sellar gave us in 1896, and the other one in 1926, may have been justified, but
in view of the wording of that section which says that where an accident has
happened, or something unforeseen has happened, a warrant can be used where
no provision has been made by parliament.

Mr. CrorL: That is to meet an urgent requirement, where money is required
urgently.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: All right, you can interpret that for yourself. And now,
my feeling is that I just can’t see any reason for any warrant being issued here.
I gather from what the Auditor General has told us that this has been very
sparingly used, and I would think we had a very creditable record in the past;
but frankly, I am still unable to understand why this should have been done
that way at all.

The CuarMAN: In this case, might I say, the accident was the election that
took place.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: No, Mr. Chairman, to make sure of that I looked up to
see whether it was before the election and I found that it was not.

The CraRMAN: But may I point out that it was covered by an appropriation.
Parliament had already voted half of it before and they wanted to go ahead
and finish the work while conditions were favourable. With respect to the' six-
month supply which had been voted by parliament, they went ahead and used
that; then this Governor General’s warrant merely authorized the use of the
remaining amount of the appropriation, pending the authorization by the new
parliament after it sat.

Mr. MacpoNNELE: Well, Mr. Chairman, my understanding of it-is that this
was for unforeseen and exceptional occasions. . This does not seem to me to be

unforeseen at all. They all knew what was going on, this work was in existence.

I do not want to labour this or take up the time of the committee unduly, but I
cannot feel this particular case comes anywhere near within the sort of thing
the Auditor General just read to us. I listened very carefully when he was read-
ing it and I do not think it comes within the wording of the section.

The CHatRMAN: The amount was in the Appropriation Act, it had already
been voted with respect to six monthes’ supply and progress on the work was

in such a stage that more money was needed, and they used a warrant for that

purpose in that way.
Mr. MacpoNNELL: That is what they did.

By Mr. Fraser:
Q. In your opinion would a warrant be issued for a defence expenditure in
an emergency>—A. You arc asking a very general question.

Q. Yes—A. We have in the past had warrants issued for defence purposes '

when parliament was not sitting.

Q. That is right?—A. Yes, there were a number of instances where warrants

were issued. I can also remember an instance where a substantial warrant was

issued before the last war for defence purposes, but the international situation
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improved and the government forthwith cancelled the warrant and did not charge
a cent against it. That is why I say, don’t get unduly disturbed over the obliga-
tion of that section, because the government of the day—and in referring to two
different party governments—has always been very careful in using that par-
ticular section.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. What I can’t understand—I can see where the Governor General’s
warrant might be used, where a Governor General might want to use it; but
why does he do it without having to come before parliament for ratification?—
Parliament never required it, sir. i

Q. Does not the law expressly demand that parliament approve all expendi-
tures of money?—A. The only time this particular section came before the
courts was in Transvaal. You will find that most of the legislatures in the
British Commonwealth have a similar provision. Now, in the course of the last
session of the government of that day in Transvaal parliament before they
were merged into the government of South Africa. They had a special provi-
sion in their House of Commons act which provided that for a short session
they would only get so mueh per day, unless the House should declare it to be
a general session, in which event they got more. On this occasion when the
Transvaal House met they were there for seven days and wound up their
business and their last business was to declare that this was a general session
and jthat they should be paid the full amount. Some of the senators took
umbrage—I am a little ahead of my story—they did not make an appropriation
for it, and after the thing was over they applied to the Governor General for a
warrant for the amount which they had coming to them. Some of the senators
took umbrage at this and they proceeded by way of an injunction against mak-
ing the payment. This went before the court and the court took the view in
this particular case that the members had knowledge of what they were going to
do and could have appropriated money for themselves had they wanted to,
but they threw out the application on the ground that the applicants lacked
status to apply for the order.

Mr. CruicksHANK: They should have thrown the Senate out with it.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. That is the only time that has been before the courts?>—A. That is the
one case I know of. ]

Q. And it was thrown out?—A. You will find it in practically any of the
legislation for countries in the British Commonwealth. This case went to the
Appeal Court.

Q. Well, Mr. Sellar, how can a member of parliament find out whether
warrants of this kind are being used?—A. Right in the public accounts.

Q. What about this item 215 which you mentioned? Where would we
find it?—A. As a matter of fact, as I said, those expenditures are shown as
recorded against particular votes, because of the special language parliament
inserted in the Appropriation Act of that year.

Q. There is no place where parliament has to pass that again?—A. Yes, sir.
Actually, so far as these are concerned, you voted the full amount when you
passed votes number 215, 339 and 434.

Q. In other words, parliament did pass these special warrants later on?—
A. You did in that case.

Q. But we didn’t have to. Mr. Chairman, I think it is up to us to make
a recommendation—A. That, sir, is a matter—if I may interrupt you—I do
not think it is a matter that you need to make a recommendation on because,
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as you know, there is going to be a revision of the Consolidated Revenue and
Audit Aet, and I imagine they will include the section again, and when it is in
committee in the Houge I would think would be the time when that could be
considered.

Mr. Sincramr: As has been pointed out, these warrants are used only to
meet emergencies, to make money available when parliament is not in session.
As Mr. Sellar pointed out, parliament is going to have an opportunity of con-
sidering a revision of this Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act.

Mr. TuaTcHER: It is all very well to say that, but there is nothing here, as
far as I can see, to prevent them from spending millions of dollars if they want
to without any parliamentary approval. I thought only parliament was supposed
to pass money.

Mr. Ricaarp (Gloucester): Another thing I do not understand, there is,
you say that the money spent by the special warrant was later on passed in
the form of an appropriation? :

Mr. Fuuron: Just in this one case.

The Wrrness: These were exceptional cases, sir. You will remember that
before parliament dissolved it voted one half of the items in the estimates. In
this case they proceeded to use the one half that had been voted for this road
contract, and then when they saw that a considerable saving would be made by
keeping the crews in there and going ahead with the work they arranged to
proceed with it by way of Governor-General’s warrant which made available
to them the other half of that appropriation, an appropriation which was later
voted by the House.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. But suppose we hadn’t done that?—A. The Governor-General’s warrant
stood.

Q. Was it necessary for us to vote it a second time?—A. You did vote it;
I think it iz sound accounting that you did so. .

Q. But, Mr. Chairman, if this has not beén abused in the past is there any
reason that there might not be abuse in the future of what is a dangerous prac-
tice? I think this committee should make some recommendation on it.

The Cramrmax: May I point out to you, Mr. Thatcher, that we have been

told that this Act is coming before parliament for revision this year and that
will afford you an opportunity of reviewing this section. If you have any
suggestions to make you can make them when the bill is before the House in
committee; and I suggest that that would be better rather than to do so in this
committee. You will have an opportunity when the bill is up for consideration
in the House to make your recommendations of any changes you think desirable.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. Is there any similar situation in the United Kingdom with respect to
this practice?—A. No, sir. United Kingdom for a good many years have had
what they call a treasury chest fund which they build up to meet emergencies
by appropriating certain sums of money each year until there now is a fund -of
many millions of pounds, that is held under a special act for particular purposes
similar to this.

Mr. Tuarcuaer: That would not take care of this $65 million Mr. Gardiner

went over there to get and came home without?

The Wirness: No, I think not. And another reason is that over there
parliament is in session practically the whole twelve months of the year.

Mr. MacpoNNeLL: Can Mr. Sellar tell us, or does he know, based on what
happened to these four cases, why parliament was asked in each case, or had

'
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to ratify the expenditures? Has it been the practice in Treasury Board or in the
Department of Finance to have these warrants ratified? I understood him to say
that under this Seetion 25, they do not require parliamentary approval; that
parliament gave authority for the use of warrants through that section. I was
just wondering whether these are four isolated cases which happened in this
one year?

The Wrrness: No. Frankly, there are so few warrants issued over the
years that one’s memory becomes insecure; but my impression is that the
Minister of Finance almost invariably provides in his supplementary estimate
for the sums involved in the warrants, what might be considered a form of
ratification for warrants; but Mr. Bryce, for example of the Department of
Finance, would have to dO"ll with them-—he could tell you better than I can what
the gcn‘eral practice is. Speaking from memory, that is the way it has been done,
but if you wanted to be 100 per cent right you would have to ask someone from
the Department of Finance who is responsible for the estimates.

Mr. MacponNELL: Mr. Chairman, it does seem to me there is something
here on which this committee might like to make a recommendation, and in
view of the fact that this Act is coming up for revision in the House, I think
we should not wait until the end of the session to consider doing so.

The CuamrMAN: We might make a note of it and bring it, to our attention
again as soon as we have finished reviewing the Auditor-General’s report.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: That is what I had in mind.

The CuARMAN: Item 15 will stand, then.

Mr. Masor: I move that we adjourn, Mr. Chairman.
The CuARMAN: It is only half past twelve, Mr. Major.

Mr. MacponnerL: We have made good progress so far, Mr. Chalrman
Mr. Fraser: Oh, let us go on until one o’clock.

The CuArMAN: I am in the hands of the committee. Shall we go on
then to Item 16, or shall we adjourn at this time?

Mr. Fraser: If we are only going to have five meetings on the Auditor-
General’s report, I think we should take up the full time.

The CuArRMAN: That is why I suggested that we go on until one, but I am
in the hands of the committee. I think we ought to give full two hours to our
meeting if we are going to have but five meetings with the Auditor-General.
Are we in agreement to carry on until one o’clock as usual? Then Item 16.

Mr. TeATCcHER: Mr. Chairman, I remember that last year again the com-
mittee made this recommendation that the Revenue and Audit Act should be
amended to authorize the writing off of uncollectable debts which have accumu-
lated up to 1940 in the government accounts, and it also suggested that Treasury
Regulations be made for the writing off yearly of debts which were not collected
within the previous ten years. Mlght I ask if anything has been done about
that yet?

The CuamrMAN: The session has started, but the estimates in their new form
are not before us yet. So we do not know whether they have accepted our
views. I do not think we ought to ask the Auditor-General to answer the ques-
tion. The estimates will be tabled, whereupon we shall see whether they have
acoepted some of our views. At the moment we cannot judge, nor can the
Auditor-General tell us.

Mr. Sincramr: Mr. Thatcher asked. if they have been given consideration.

Mr. Taarcuer: No, I asked if they were doing anything about it. Maybe
the parliamentary assistant would know now.
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Mr. Sincrair: I said that the recommendation of the Public Accounts Com-
mittee would be given very close consideration during the process of revision of
the Consolidated Revenue Act; and when the Act gets its first reading, you
will see to what extent the recommendations have been accepted. They certainly
have all been considered.

The CuaRMAN: That might be the time to make recommendations and
observations. Item 16?

By Mr. Fraser:
Q. Under item 16 I read:
- Foreign Exchange Control Board $250,000,000.

I wonder if Mr. Sellar could tell us what ecame into the Consolidated Revenue
Fund? Was there any of that money which came back into it?—A. The Foreign
Exchange Control Board is required to turn over its profits each year to the
Receiver-General, and of course they do so. I am not sure what they were.

Q. I wondered what it really cost Canada to carry that on—A. Ordinarily,
the Foreign Exchange Control Board is a profitable venture.

Q. Oh, yes.—A. It is only when there is a change in the valuation of our
currency in reference to that of the United States that they have trouble.

Q. I wonder about that year. That was the year when exchange was high,
was it not?—A. There was a change that year, sir.

Q. It was set at 10 per cent. I wondered if there was any loss that year.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: When we make losses they are only book losses.

By Mr. Fraser:
Q. Yes, but the taxpayer pays them.—A. In paragraph 68 of my report I
make some reference to the Foreign Exchange Control Board. There you will
see in the last sentence this statement:

After this was done, a revaluation surplus of $46,453,000 remained,
but the amount is not reflected in the Balance Sheet of Canada.

That was on revaluation of their assets as a result of change in the currency
rates.

Q. How much was it?—A. $46,453,000.

Q. So there was a definite loss?—A. No. That was a “revaluated” surplus.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on Item 16? Item 17?

By M. Fulton:

Q. I do not understand the significance of this item Mr. Chairman. Why '

is it brought to our attention in the report?—A. You mean Item 17?

Q. Yes—A. Because there is an asset of approximately $20 million in
the balance sheet of Canada in that year which represents a debt owing by
Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation to the Government of Canada on
these debentures. When the Department of National Defence takes over that
housing, the debentures are cancelled and in the following year the assets of
Canada will become $20 million less than they were in that year. So my sole
reason for putting this item in was to show you that there was a $20 million
asset item which will disappear as soon as that housing is taken over.

Q. But the debentures have not been cancelled yet, have they?—A. Yes, sir.
Under the authority of vote 821 of 1950-51 which is the following year, they
are taken over and cancelled.

Q. Isee. They will be cancelled as they are taken over?—A. As the housing

~ ig taken over, the debentures are cancelled.
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Q. Will not the balance sheet reflect the addition of those houses?—A. No,
sir. They are not taken in. ;

Q. Why is that?—A. They never have been.

The CuAmRMAN: They are physical assets.

The WirnEss: We never take in capital assets of the departments. They are
not taken into the balance sheet. That subject was discussed at great length here
last year. .

By Mr. Fulton.:
Q. Then I shall not go into it now. But do you consider it sound to cancel
the debentures?—A. There is nobody to pay for them. The Department of

National Defence is just a part of the Government of Canada. It cannot owe to
itself.

Mr. Croru: It is always good practice to cancel debentures, is it not?

By Mr. Johnston:
Q. Would that show in the audit as an increase of net debt?—A. Yes, sir,
next year. {

Q. It will show next year which means that we have gone that much further
into debt.

The CuarmaN: Item 18?
Mr. MacpoNNELL: No, Mr. Chairman.
The CaAIRMAN: T am sorry.

By Mr. Macdonnell :
Q. I wonder if the Auditor-General could explain this passage which says:
The rentals collected were used by the department to reduce charges
to its vote for pay and allowances, thus augmenting its appropriation with
revenues obtained from the investments of a erow corporation.

I wonder if you might just explain once again the effect of that upon the
Department of National Defence? Could you not trace a transaction thljoug.h
for us?—A. Let us say there is a soldier located in a camp. That soldier is
entitled to a certain amount of pay. He is entitled to a cash amount as well for
quarters, married quarters for himself. That is a charge, when he is paid each
month. That is a charge to the vote for National Defence in thi§ instance.

Q. What becomes of the money to which he is entitled for housing?—A. That
becomes his. He gets that money.

Q. And he pays rent?—A. Yes. Now, in this case let us say he was accom-
modated in housing provided for him by the Department of National Defence
instead of their paying him eash money. As it is here you have got quarters
provided by us. We are not going to pay you in cash. Let us say that the
rent amounts to $20. They will have then that extra $20 available for some
other purpese in their vote. : ; :

Q. The buildings are built but when the rental is paid, it is not applied on
the cost of the original construction of the house in which he lives?—A. No.
It is re-credited.

By Mr. Cruickshank: :

Q. Would that not be better for a soldier. He has the house; and surely
it is not going to be the prateice of the government when a $5,000 house is
paid for, to go on charging him the same rental?—A. The house is owned by
the government right from the start. '
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Q. Yes; but if you multiply, let us say, $30 a month rent over a certain
period of years, a $5,000 house will become paid for.

Mzr. JounsTon: It is never paid for; it is added to the national debt, as it is
now.

Mr. CruicksHANK: That is what I am trying to get at. I have a large
number of such houses in my riding. They are thie finest houses of their kind
in Canada. But I do not want to see these veterans going on paying, let us
say, $30 a month forever if it is just a bookkeeping entry and is not credited
against the original cost, as I see it.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Does not Mr. Cruickshank’s question raise this point:
Is there any record kept of the cost? And is there anything to show what in
fact these veterans have paid?

Mr. CruicksHANK: That is what I am getting at.

Mr. Fraser: As I understand it, these are houses which are built in military
camps. Now, the men who now occupy them previously received allowances
on account of being away from home. They received allowances because they
had to board their families. But these men who are in these camps are not to
be there permanently. They are changed from time to time and therefore they
are not buying their homes. So whatever they pay in the way of rent is
allowed to them out of what their allowance otherwise would be, such as $20,
or something in that order.

Mr. CruicksHANK: What I am trying to get at is: they can change the
soldiers in the camp from time to time. There may be five different soldiers
occupying the same house within a year, but those five different soldiers would
be paying rent. Surely that house is never going to be paid for, I mean the
original cost of it, until that rent money is credited to that account.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: It looks as if it were rent and nothing else.

By the Chairman:

Q. Let us hear from the Auditor General about it—A. What happens is
this: I can see Mr. Cruickshank’s argument. His view is that a fellow who pays
rent, for a great many years ought to acquire some equity in his house. But
we all know that if we rent a house we get no equity in that house. The landlord
looks after the maintenance of the house. He maintains the house in whatever
state he thinks fitting. He might let the house become run down. In that case
he might get that much less rent from the individual. No, then, in this case,
the government decides for public reasons to construct quarters for married men
or single men, as the case may be—married men as a rule. It charges rent
to the men who want to occupy those quarters. Now, over a period of years
the government has either to maintain those houses to a certain standard or
the men will refuse to live in them and go out and get quarters outside.

Mr. CruicksHANK: If they are available.

The CuamrmAN: The men receive no special allowance?

Mr. CruicksHANK: No special allowance—

The WirNess: In lieu of quarters.

Mr. CruicksHANK: They are receiving a living allowance, I think $40 a
month. ,

Mr. Fraser: It varies.

Mr. CruicksHANK: They are not receiving a special allowance. They are
receiving a living out allowance according to rank. I am interested in this thing
and I have brought it up before. I do not think the government should be in
the real estate business and the rent should be reduced. My argument is that
the houses will of course be kept up and, if I build a house out here as an invest-
ment and I get rent for a long period of years I get my capital back.
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Mr. Furuton: Then you are charging too much rent.

Mr. CrurcksuaNK: If it is never credited to an account how do you get the
figure.

Mr. Crorn: The government always charges the men less rent than they
would have to pay under similar circumstances outside the camp. The result
1s that the houses are never going to be paid off because the rents are so small.

Mr. CruicksuHANK: No matter how small the rent is you eventually pay it.

Mr. TuATcHER: Does not this boil down to the argument we had last year
that if these Crown corporation assets and liabilities were put in one place and
the accounting done in such a manner that they were treated as separate entries
then we could get a proper figure.

The Cramman: This is not a Crown corporation; it is the Department of
National Defence.

Mr. TuATcHER: It is a separate entity of the government and these things
are wound up in the public accounts so you cannot tell where you are at.

The CratrMAN: This will be included in the Department of National Defence
accounts and you can go into it then.

Mr. Tuarcuer: Well, last year it was the same thing, and I would like to
know why these things are not all in the same place.

The Cuarman: Well ask the government then, do not ask me.

By My. Fulton:

Q. There are a couple of questions arising out of what Mr. Sellar told us
which T would like to ask. As I understand it the Department of National
Defence, instead of paying the men a living allowance, takes the position that
because it is now providing them with quarters the allowance is not payable and
they use that allowance for other purposes.—A. They can use it—

Q. They can use it for other purposes. Then, are we not making a double
appropriation to the Department of National Defence. $20 million worth of
houses in the first place, plus the net result of what these living allowances amount
to—say $5 million or $6 million in camps where this practice is followed. That
makes this money available for purposes other than living allowances. Is that
sound practice? Is there not some way in which that can be prevented? Are
Wwe not in effect giving the Department of National Defence more money than
they are asking for in their estimates?—A. I do not think so, sir, because it
I8 true you appropriated this money as a. loan to the Central Mortgage and
Housing Corporation. It is quite true you did it that way.

Mr. CruicksHANK: For army camps?

The Wirness: Now it has reverted back to the Department of National
Defence by a subsequent appropriation.

It seems to me that if this subject interests you you might discuss the
various matters with national defence people when they are here rather than
with me, because I am sorry but my knowledge is somewhat limited with respect
to their internal operations.

By Mr. Fulton:
Q. From the point of view of accounting I was wondering whether this
I8 normally permissible?—A. Remember this is the first time we have had
housing construction under this plan. Other construction work for the Depart-
ment of National Defence was paid by it directly. '
Q. Would it not be a sounder procedure to say that this money which is
now not being paid to the men for living allowance should be reserved by the
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Department of National Defence in a fund for the maintenance and upkeep of
these houses, instead of for some other purposes which the department may
wish to spend it on?

Mr. Mavrais: I would say that would be a matter of policy of the
government.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. I am asking from the point of view of accounting procedure?—A. From
the point of view of parliamentary control money that comes in should be
treated as revenue and in effect it goes towards the reduction of your original
capital investment. If you want to keep parliamentary control do not have a
multitude of special accounts in the consolidated revenue account or you will not
know where you are.

Q. I can see that point, but it is difficult to keep track of it if you just
leave it with the Department of National Defence.—A. I think that you will
see that national defence is taking a suitable action to bring this thing into the
harmony that you desire. I think if you will ask them when they are here
you will find that out.

The CuarMan: Can we proceed with item 18 and perhaps also item 19?

Mr. Taarcaer: What was the reason, in item 18, that so much of publie
works money was allowed to lapse that year? Could you say Mr. Sellar? Was
it a change in policy or something?

The Wirness: T cannot tell you. It is spread over a number of votes.

Mr. Macrais: It might be an economy drive on the part of the government.

Mr. Taarcuer: That would not have been under way a year ago.

The CrHAatRMAN: It is under way at all times.

Mr. TaarcHER: It was not very noticeable, Mr. Chairman.

The CaarrMAN: That is a matter of opinion, of course. :

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I think a question does arise when one looks at some
of these very handsome amounts which have lapsed.

The CuAlRMAN: As the Auditor General pointed out he does not know
because he is not in the Public Works Department. It is only his task to
compile the accounts and show where the money was spent.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Is it not fair to ask him if he has any comment to make.
Superficially it strikes one as odd? Here you have $184 million which lapsed.
It looks like very generous budgeting. \

The Cuamrman: That brings us back to what we discussed at length last
year on the question of lapsing of estimates. Would the Auditor General care
to make a comment?

Mr. MacponNELL: Take one case, for instance. Here you have our friend
the Minister of Health and Welfare who has neglected to spend $18 million.
That seems odd.

The CuamMan: Have you any question of the Auditor General?

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I do not know whether it is fair to ask because he said
he could not tell about public works.

The Wirness: All T can say, gentlemen, is that you will see in the intro-
duction to the public accounts of each department a listing of their appropria-
tions and the amount spent. If you run through there you can see the items
which were not spent. I did not make a digest of them.

Mr. Larson: With respect to National Health and Welfare a lot of the
money voted for hospital work in Saskatehewan lapsed because the Saskatchewan
government did not take up their share of the hospital construction.
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Mr. Taarcarr: That again is a matter of opinion, of course.

The CrAmrman: We are revolving around matters of opinion.

Have you any more questions of the Auditor General?

Mr. MacponNELL: Well, he discussed some of the lapsing so perhaps we
could have something on this.

Mr. Major: When it comes to the end of the fiscal year and there is money
not spent, do you think it is good policy to spend it just to cause an expenditure,
or is it better not to spend it and have the money lapse?

Mr. CrutcksHANK: Not if it is in agriculture.

The Wrirness: You will just have to remember, gentlemen, that I was
brought up in the Department of Finance and it was my approach that a dollar
spent was a dollar lost. There is, of course, disagreement with that.
~ Mr. MacpoxyeLL: Well in item 19 it says: “The lapsing in appropriations
for National Defence was almost entirely in connection with vote 251, which
was for defence research and development. The needs of the defence services
were provided for by vote 250, 592,” and so on—

In a case of that kind is there any explanation given to you or is it purely
a matter of taking their decision on the point and leaving it?—A. Your question
1s with respect to the amounts of the accounts carried forward?

Q: I suppose the only point is that it does not seem reasonable that these
large amounts should have been asked for and not spent?—A. No, that is
because they were all spent and there were $12 million worth of accounts ready
for payment but they were not paid. That is the point. .

Q. Well, T have not read it all.

The Cuamman: Well, we are reaching the hour of adjournment and we are
heading into a rather long item.

Mr. Taarcuer: I would move that we stop at item 19.

Mr. MacponNELL: Could we have 19 left open?

The Cramman: Well, before adjourning may I say there is a limited supply
of these copies of the Public Accounts of Canada. I would therefore ask the
members to be good enough to bring their copies to the meetings because this -
morning we had to send down to the distribution office for more and we were
advised that their stock had been exhausted.

The meeting adjourned to meet again at the call of the chair.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
MarcH 15, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. L. Philippe Picard, presided.

. The Cuammax: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. I think that when we
adjourned last week we had decided not to definitely go through item 19; at the
request of Mr. Macdonnell we left that open, so I suppose it is all right to start
from there, Have you any further comments?

puas VT, MacpoxNeLL: Would Mr. Sellar just make a comment on the wording
In the middle of that section: ;

“A special wording was associated with the votes in order to
make an exception from section 29 of the Consolidated Revenue and
Audit Act, which declares that no financial undertaking shall have -
force or effect unless the Comptroller of the Treasury certifies that he
has reserved funds to liquidate the commitment when it falls due. The
aim of the section is to safeguard against contracting in excess of
grants. The special wording had for its purpose that of giving status
to commitments which would not come for payment in the fiscal year.
The wording, however, did not relieve the Department of the duty so
to plan its financial affairs that all accounts due and payable in 1949-50
were paid out of the $348,220,000 granted.

Would the Auditor General say a word about this question of commit-
ments? We seem to be in a sort of no man’s land here.

Mr. Watson Sellar, Auditor General, called:

. . The Wirness: The Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act was revised
In 1931 to provide a scheme whereby at the year end all accounts could be paid.

P to that time sometimes there had been accounts ready for payment for
Which there was no money available. Therefore, the scheme was devised that
Wheneyer a department entered into a commitment, that is, made a contract or
Committed itself to an expenditure of money they should file that commitment
With the Comptroller of the Treasury, and the Comptroller of the Treasury
Was to give a certificate that he had reserve funds in the vote to pay whatever
amount, came for payment in that fiscal year. In that way it was hoped, and
i fact it has been realized generally over the years, that every man who con-
racted with the government was assured that he would be paid the amount
OWing him by the year end.

Now, with regard to this particular amendment or variation in vote 250—
€re were three votes for the Department of National Defence in that year,
€ main vote being $339 million and two supplementaries—collectively, they

Sranted $348 million—I will use round figures—and in addition they pro-
Vided that, notwithstanding section 29 of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit
ct, it could make commitments for the current year of $401 million in vote
U, the two supplementaries granted a further sum of roughly $13,600,000 so
at all together there were $415 million for which commitments could be made
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and the money granted amounted to $348 million to meet that. In other words,
the commitment authority exceeded the grant of the vote by $67 million. What
happened was this: the Comptroller of the Treasury operated his accounts as
though he had $415 million available for commitments. He issued the ordinary
certificates until about the end of the calendar year. Thereupon, he and the
department began sifting through the various commitments to find out what
exactly might come in for payment in the fiscal year. As a result they reduced
the amount and ended the year showing that there was $250,000 that lapsed
in the vote. Actually when we were making the audit of this year—we do
that currently—we discovered that there were about $12 million worth of
accounts which were ready for payment but which were not paid in the year.
Now, I am not particularly concerned over the wording of the vote but. I
do think it is very apt. Section 29 of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act
reads:

29. (1) No contract, agreement, or undertaking of any nature,
involving a charge on the Consolidated Revenue Fund, shall be entered
into, or have any force or effect, unless the Comptroller, or an officer of
the Department of Finance designated by him and approved by the
Treasury Board, shall have certified that there is a sufficient unen-
cumbered balance available, out of the amount authorized by Parliament
for the particular service, to pay any commitments under such contract,
agreement or undertaking which would, under the provisions thereof,
come in course of payment during the fiscal year in which such contract,
agreement or undertaking is made or entered into.

Subsection 2 is not strictly pertinent to this point.

I am all for that wording in so far as it protects any supplier in case of a
lawsuit. If he honestly and reasonably accepts a contract from the government
and performs his services, that man is entitled to payment and therefore it
may be necessary to protect him by that special wording. I am for it. The
point really, and the reason why I am bringing it up, is that last year the
British Public Accounts Committee had a somewhat similar case before it
involving a payment for oil to the government of India.

Mr. CrouL: It was not wheat was it?

The WrirNess: No, oil; and it was approximately £450,000. The Air Ministry
did not pay it in the year fearing that they would not have enough money in
their vote if they paid it. Actually, they did. The Auditor General reported
to parliament that there was this account ready for payment which had not
been paid. Now, the English practice differs from ours and I am only drawing
this matter to your notice with one intention; they founded their conclusion on
findings of the Public ‘Accounts committee of 1891 and that Public Accounts
committee gave as its particular reason for objecting the following—I quote
from their report:—

9. Your committee regards as fallacicus any argument for such post-

ponements that is based on the tendency which they may have to cause

economy in the department’s administration during the succeeding year.
The only sound doctrine is that every desirable and practicable economy

will be practised without the pressure produced upon a department by

the necessity of meeting liabilities postponed from a previous year.
Moreover, if liabilities are postponed in one year that practice may be
repeated in the next, and thus not only would the evil grow, but the
public service would suffer from the knowledge of contractors and
tradesmen that payment of their accounts was liable to arbitrary post-
ponement at the will of the department.

It is the last sentence which is the one that interests me, namely, that
there might be an accumulation over the years. Actually, I do not think it
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will happen because of the very large votes now before parliament, but I
brought it to your attention. The department was fully aware of the situation
that was created and is endeavouring this year to apply practices that will
talV_md its repetition at the end of this year and I hope it will be successful in
his,

Mr. Tuarcuer: In one word, what do you mean? I am more befuddled
than when you started.

The CramrMaN: What is your question?

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. What exactly is wrong with this section? Is the point you are making
that $12 million of accounts were committed for in one year when that money
actually had not been voted?—A. No, the point I am making is this, that at
the year end there were $12 million worth of accounts ready for payment.
Goods had been supplied and accepted by the department but were not paid for
because there was no money left in that vote.

Q. In other words, merchandise was supplied before being approved by
parliament?—A. No. Parliament had authorized by this vote that they could
enter commitments of approximately $67 million in excess of the amount
‘actually granted, and the department honoured that; they kept within the $67

» million; but suppliers made deliveries faster than the department had antici-
pated with the result that at the year end they did not have the money to
Pay $12 million of accounts ready for payment.

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. In other words, they paid some people more than they intended and had
less for others? —A. No, it was just on account of velocity of deliveries.

Q. That is what I mean. After all, the shortage has to arise somehow. I
have to admit I am not quite clear about it. You say deliveries had been made
fast.er than anticipated. They anticipated that certain payments would be made
during the then current year and certain payments following; is that correct?
—A. Yes. Let me give you a specific instance. I am using this instance because
1t was the first payment made in the new year. There is no significance other-
Wise in the transaction.

Mr. TuarcuEr: Why is it in there then?

The Wirngss: On the 9th of August, 1949, the Air Ministry gave a contract
to Sicard, Incorporated, for the delivery of trucks. Now, that application came
-‘befqre the Comptroller of the Treasury for a certificate that there was money
available. The Comptroller of the Treasury gave his certificate to that effect.

On the 29th of March the contractor delivered $150,000 worth of trucks and

€y were accepted by the department according to contract, and the contractor
Was entitled to his payments. But because they thought they would not have
€nough money in the vote they held that aceount over and did not pay it until
the 20th of April when it was charged to the new year. That is a practical
Hlustration.

The Crarman: Any further questions, Mr. Thatcher?

By Mr. Wright:

Q. You say here: “A special wording was associated with the votes in order
to make an exception from section 29 of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit
Act”?—A Yes.

Q. When was that special wording placed in those votes? Was it after the
$348 million had been granted by parliament or was it in the wording before the
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$348 million had been granted? It seems to me if you leave it open that the
special wordings can be put into the votes after they have been granted by
parliament.—A. No, no, no.

The CrarrMAN: That would not be legal.

The Wrrness: In 1946 parliament made grants to the Department of
National Defence. I will use vote 568, because it happens to be the first. Vote
568, air services (commitments of $29, Sa5 ,110).

The amount granted was $118,124,753. That was what they did. The
government was indicating to parliament what it was anticipating in its program.
For 1947 the wording was changed and bulked together for all services and read:
“To provide for the orderly establishment and organization of the defence forces
of the army, navy and air services on a peacetime basis, and to authorize com-
mitments against future years, in the amount of $29,833,648”.

Then, in the following year they adopted the text which you are now con-
sidering. That text has been in the statute books and it is in the estimates
item when it is presented to the House. That text was approved by parliament
in 1948, in 1949 and in 1950 and it is in the text for the new year. No, sir, there
was no change made by anyone after the text was voted by parliament.

The CuAlRMAN: Are we satisfied that we are finished with item 19? Item
20—rvotes for supplementing other votes.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Will Mr. Sellar explain briefly and in a general way with regard to these
several items? Is there anything more involved here than a situation where the
government asks parliament for additions to items that had already been voted
and where they found at the end of the year that much more had been asked
for and voted than was required?—A. That is the effect of it.

Q. Nothing more than that?—A. Those paragraphs are here for information
purposes only. ;

Q. It comes down then to a matter of the duty of parliament to review the
estimates and not issue supplementary estimates without very great care being
exercised, especially where they are in addition to anything already voted.—
A. May I reply to that by saying that the estimates last year—that is, for the
current year and the estimates now before the House for the next year—show that
the government has already taken action to reduce these amounts to normal
appropriations; the amount involved now is quite small.

Q. The new form of estimates could help somewhat to carry down that
information with regard to the actual expenditures and the date the estimate
was voted plus an estimate of the amount likely to be spent during the year and
the then current fiscal year—A. You take where there was $26 million in the
votes in the year that is before you, this year it is $2 million.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Does that mean that these amounts are drawn up in a
careless day? I mean, on the face of it, one is surprised by some of the amounts
that are dealt with, 1t makes one wonder whether Treasury Board, or whoever
is charged with planning, has planned as carefully as one would like to have
them plan. Do you feel, whatever has been true in the past, that it is going to
be better for the future?

Mr. Sincrar: I would suggest that the very opposite is true; that where
you have an amount of $25 million or $26 million approved by Treasury Board,
that through the exercise of care Treasury Board cut the amount of that expen-
diture down to $5 million, that very effective care was exercised.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: The appropriation was more than they asked for.
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Mr. Sincramr: The estimates of the department come forward to the
Treasury Board which exercises control over them.

Mr. MacponneLL: That may be so, Mr. Chairman; but before these
estimates come before parliament and we are asked to pass on them; there is
supposed to have been a very careful scrutiny of them.

Mr. SiNncLar: There is. Contingeney votes and salaries and so on are

matters which are very difficult to forecast. I would say this, so far as Treasury
Board scrutinizing these items is concerned, that their serutiny did in fact result
In the amount being reduced from the vote of $26,500,000 to $5 million or a little
over., '
. Mr. MacooNNELL: T am not criticizing the final figure. All I am suggesting
18 that somebody, I do not know whether it is the department or the Treasury
BOaJ‘d, appears to have been a little careless in arriving at the amount of the
estimate.

. Mr. Fraser: It looks to me that if the government in relation to this $26
million spent only $5 million it was certainly a mighty poor guess to begin with;
1t must have been just a guess, not actual figures.

Mr. SiNcrar: In ordinary departmental estimates you can come pretty
close, but, when you come to estimate appropriations for contingencies, to fore-
cast requirements for emergencies of this type, it is much more difficult. I think
the Treasury Board will have more control of these votes; they are handling
them quite differently this year from the way they did last year, and in examin-
Ing this emergency vote they have lowered the level this year.

Mr. Fraser: These are really supplementary estimates, these are additional
sums to be voted,

Mr. Sincrair: These are contingency items, something which you cannot
forecast with any degree of accuracy but which may turn up.

Mr. Fraser: If they do turn up; but on the ordinary estimates we were
told last year there would be a cushion on these ordinary estimates and there
might be the need for $1 million more, and in case there would be any question
about it they would add another $300,000.

Mr. Sivcramr: It is a very difficult thing to estimate precisely, even
closely; but, it was pointed out in the Public Accounts committee last year that
In these items of estimates they do not always turn out exactly as anticipated,
and the suggestion was made that these “cushions” had to be put in in order
to provide for the needs for the whole of the department.

Mr. Fraser: But here the “cushion” is $15 million.

Mr. Sivcram: That is a different type of item.

Mr. Fraser: Yes, it is sort of a sponge rubber cushion.

Mr, Sincramr: Oh, nothing like that. .

The CuHARMAN: Are you not satisfied, Mr. Fraser, that instead of spending
$20 million last year they spent only $5 million?

Mr. Fraser: I am quite satisfied with that, but I still can’t see why they
ean’t get it closer.

Mr. Furton: But the fact is, is it not, Mr. Chairman, that when it comes
to estimating, the tax rates are set on the basis of the estimated requirements
for' the fiscal year? And here you have this $20 million expenditure estimated
E; 1051? apparently was not required. Would that not result in our being over-

xed ?

The Crmamman: You should put questions on economic policy to the gov-
€ment and, on control to Treasury Board officials. Expenditures were $15
Willion lower than estimates. I don’t think the public should object to that.
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Mr. Furton: Taxes were raised by $15 million in this way.

The Caamman: Well, you had a surplus at the end of the year.

Mr. Fuemine: I think we are all agreed that even though the amount is
voted in the House we still want very careful scrutinizing applied by the
department concerned over the expenditure of money. However, parliament
has the final responsibility. The government made these estimates and brought
them to the House. But here, as I understand it, what the Auditor General
is saying is, that as things turned out there wasn't any need for the additional
appropnatlun Actually, their appropriation probably was more than ample
by a substantial margin, to meet requirements. It seems to me rather than
question Mr. Sellar on this point the man we ought to ask about it is Mr.
Bryce; because we want to be sure, I think, that a great deal of care is being
applied to insure the accuracy of these estimates as related to the strict needs
of any department. Nobody could expect anyone to be able to foresee precisely
throughout the year what the need for contingencies would be, that would be
expecting too much of anyone; but we want the strictest care applied to the
preparation of the estimates, and it strikes me that Mr. Bryce should be able
to give us information on that.

Mr. SiNcrair: There is another question. We have the Auditor General
here, but it is the other department which had the authorizing of the expendi-
tures, the Department of Finance. I would like Mr. Bryce to be available to
give us information on this point.

The CramrMmax: Before calling Mr. Bryce 1 would like an expression of
opivion from the committee as to what we should do. As you know, it was the
unanimous decision of the committee that we would give only five meetings to
the study of the Auditor General’s report. I gather that the proposal now is
to ask that other officials be brought in to explain this particular item. I have
no personal objection to having Mr. Bryce answer this question for us on the
point Mr. Fleming just raised.

Mr. Sincrair: 1 only suggested Mr. Bryce because he is the one official
who advises all departments, who for Treasury Board confers with all depart-
ments in the preparation of estimates.

The CaairmaN: Yes. I have no personal objection but I want an expres-
sion of views from the committee so that it will not be said that I over-stepped
my powers and that we lengthened the procedure.

Mr. TuarcHer: I think we should hear Mr. Bryce now.

Mr. Fueming: Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Thatcher consents we might hear
from Mr. Bryce in connection with this matter now.

The Cuamrman: All right. Would Mr. Bryce please step up to the table?

Mr. R. B. B;'yce, Assistant Deputy Minister of Finance, called.

Mr. MacponNELL: Mr, Chairman, might I just make one comment. I agree
with what Mr. Fleming says, that we should have some explanation from Mr.
Bryce on this. Personally, I think that is all the more important because of the
fact that when estimates are brought down in the House they are a government
measure, and for that reason accuracy is far more important than it otherwise
would be.

Mr. Rosinson: Mr. Chairman, I think we should have Mr. Bryce give us a
short explanation as to the relative difficulty between est1mat1ng ordinary
expenditures and contingent expenditures.

Mr. Fueming: Yes, and would he more particularly dea,l with additional

appropriations asked for in excess of original estimates where it would appear

later on that there is no need for them.
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The Cramman: Could we not proceed as we have with the other witness?
Could we not proceed by asking questions? I think you had & question, Mr.
Robinson.

Mr. Rosinson: Mr. Bryce, would you give us a short explanation as to the
relative difficulty of estimating ordinary departmental expenditures and expendi-
tures of a contingent nature?

Mr. Bryce: Such as in this vote 89?

Mr. RoBinson: Such as that, yes.

. Mr. Bryce: It is naturally very much more difficult to estimate what one
Wl.“ require for a vote of this kind to meet really unforeseen contingencies. 1
think though that you will understand vote 89 more readily if T say that after
the bulk of the estimates had been prepared for the year in question the govern-
ment decided to carry through a general revision of civil service salaries and
consequently the votes for all the individual departments and units did not reflect
those increases in salaries, and the reason that we put this very substantial
amount of $20 million in this vote 89 for general salary requirements was that
1t was to meet the increased cost due to the increases in the civil service salaries.
Now, the reason that something like two thirds of it was not used was that the
othe}* votes in fact have been able to absorb a good deal of that increase in ecivil
Service salaries, so that this was a residual effect of many small cushions, if you
like, in a whole lot of votes, which ultimately were not required.

Mr. MacponnerL: How do you account for the size of the amount in all
these other votes?

Mr. Bryce: Pardon me?

Mr. Macpoxn~eLL: How does there happen to be so many cushions in the
other votes?

Mr. Brycr: The reason for the cushions in the other votes is that in a good
many cases the numbers of employees provided for by these votes were not
realized during the year. You might recall during this period—1949—a number
of departmental programs were being expanded and the government had author-
1zed them and had asked parliament for funds to enable this expansion to take
Place. In fact it has been difficult to get all the employees that they had planned
on; and where that is the case and you had provided for salaries in these other
Votes, they proved in the end to be larger than required and were able to absorb
much of ‘the increased cost which it was thought would have been chargeable
agamst this contingency vote. As a matter of practice we require the depart-
ents to meet requirements for salary increases in so far as it is possible out of
their regular appropriations, and only thereafter to meet requirements of that
hature out of this general salaries contingency vote. In most cases the depart-
ments were able to absorb the actual cost of the increases.

Mr. Jounsron: Can you take the moneys which were in the other votes and
use them for increases in salaries unless they are specified in the other vote?

Mr. Bryce: Yes, we can—

The CuamrMan: Did you say, “unless”?

Mr. Jonnsron: Unless it was specified in the other vote?

Mr. Bryce: Both the vote and the general provision of the law provide
that any increases in the rate of salary may be paid out of the vote providing the
salaries for the unit.

Mr. Jounston: Yes, but I think it was brought out by this committee
last year that there was to be an elimination of that practice of taking money
T'om one vote and transferring it to another, :

Mzr. Bryor: This does not involve a transfer between individual votes.
Mr. Jomxston: I understood you to say it did? ' ‘

R
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Mr. Bryce: For example, let us take the vote for agricultural entomology
in the science service of Agriculture. If in fact they were unable, as they
probably were, to get all the technical staff they wanted for that unit, they did
not spend as much on salaries as had been requested in the vote for the unit.
Consequently, when the salary rates for people working in that unit were
increased, the department was able to meet the increases by drawing upon
funds that would have been spent on other salaries had they obtained a larger
number of employees.

Mr. JounstoN: That is the situation that prevailed in vote 89?

Mr. Bryce: That is the reason that demands on vote 83 were less.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Does the word “increase” mean not only increases in
salaries, but increases in staff in some departments?

Mr. Bryce: That is right.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: You were really both expanding and contracting the
civil service then?

Mr. Bryce: Yes.

Mr. FLemixGg: Mr. Bryce, was there not a careful review made of the
position in this regard, throughout departments, before the government asked
parliament to vote the additional appropriation for this over-all purpose? That
seems to me to be the gist of the whole matter?

Mr. Bryce: We made a rough forecast of what the amount might be.

Mr. Freming: That probably brings it down to the nut of the problem.
You use the expression “a rough forecast”. The question is one of degree—
how rough are those estimates; how serious is the attempt made throughout
every department, and especially through the Treasury Board in the last
analysis, to see that these estimates are not rough but as accurate as it is
reasonable to expect?

Mr. Bryce: In answering that I might just comment on developments since
that time. In the following year the amount for this general salaries con-
tingency was reduced in the main estimates to $1 million, and a further
$1 million in the supplementary estimates—the additional $1 million really
being necessary because we were faced with a great many wage increases paid
to our prevailing rate staff. For the current year you will see the government
has provided $14 mililon. There has been a general salary increase proposed
by the government and authorized, but it is not being paid until parliament
votes additional funds. We have endeavoured in this year’s estimates, at

greatly increased labour I might say, to reflect these higher salaries in the

details of all votes, so that we do not need to put in a large contingency vote
of this kind to provide for it.

Mr. FLeming: Mr. Bryce, I do not want to be offensive, but 1 do not think
that you fully answered my question. We will all applaud the extent to which
there has been an attempt made to be more accurate in the estimates, which
you indicate has been the case in the last year or so, and what you say may
rather reflect that there was not very accurate estimating done before. However,
I come back to my question. Just how serious is the attempt in all depart-
ments, and in the last analysis in the Treasury Board, to see that these estimates
are as accurate as can reasonably be expected, and not just rough estimates?

Mr. Bryce: There is a great deal of effort put into that but it is a matter
which requires a high degree of skill as well as some ability to anticipate what
conditions are likely to be. For example, in the case of salaries, the Treasury
Board instructions to departments are quite explicit and detailed as to what
they should inelude in individual votes for salary items. They are only sup-
posed to put in for salaries for the positions that have actually been authorized,
the individual positions that have actually been authorized. Those are received

T
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by the Treasury Board in great detail—huge schedules with, in some cases,
thousands of employees. They are not supposed to include temporary positions
that have been vacant for more than ten months. Consequently the provision
for salaries is very accurate. It may be vitiated by the fact that it may turn
out to be incorrect because, in fact, the government may be unable to find
employees. In recent years a good many departments have been short of full
strength because they simply could not find employees to fill the positions
they have. That is the main type of inaccuracy which we run into.
. In the individual votes for departments we do not include provision for salary
Increases unless they have been already authorized by the government and are
known specifically. We have tried to do that in the votes for the new fiscal
year, as I mentioned, but we are faced every year with unanticipated salary -
changes. That has been the case for example recently when, during one year, it
was found necessary to increase salaries paid to veterinarians. 'They were very
difficult to obtain.

Mr. Fraser: They were underpaid too.

~ Mr. Brycr: No doubt, in relation to amounts paid by other employers. The
Clvil.Servico Commission, during the year, came to the conclusion it would have
to raise the salary rates paid to veterinarians, and the government approved it.
ow those are unforeseen things—they cannot be foreseen in detail when the
estimates are brought down. <Consequently, we always have here a general
salaries vote of a modest size, and, if the individual votes are tight—because
they could not foresee those changes—then they can be supplemented in this way.
In addition, in recent years, in a good many units, the wages paid to our
prevailing rate staffs have gone up as a result of action quite outside the govern-
ment. The Department of Labour, from time to time, determine wage rates in
a given locality for a given trade, and it is the government’s policy to pay such
rates. We have to be able to find additional funds to pay those increased rates
and this would be where we would find them if the vote of the individual depart-
ment, which had not taken that into account originally, was unable to look after
the increases.
Does that answer the question?

Mr. Frueming: Yes, but it may raise a question about the attitude of the
Trta_asury Department regarding cushions, and we had this last year. You
Indicate, as I follow your evidence, Mr. Bryce, that you have initiated procedures
In the last year or two designed to effect greater accuracy in the estimates as
submitted to the House. Has there been any change in the attitude of the

reasury Board with respect to the cushions in the estimates?

_Mr. Bryce: I would say. yes, sir; perhaps not so much in attitude as in
ability of the board to locate amounts that may not in fact be required, and to
thereby eliminate them. It is not so much a question of attitude as it is of
adequate knowledge.

Mr. Fraser: You have not any special scale to go on?
Mr. Rosinson: May I ask a question?

Mr. Fueming: Well, I have not quite finished. May we infer, from what
You have said, Mr. Bryce, that the Treasury Board is—Ilet us put it colloquially
—trying to get tougher with respect to cushions in the estimates of various
deparbmen-ts, as submitted to the Treasury Board.

Mr. Bryce: Yes, sir; it has been tougher in the last two years than previously.

Mr. Freming: Would you care to make any comment on the degree of
Severity of this toughness?

. Mr. Bryce: I think that would best come from departmental officials and
Ministers who have appeared before them—
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Mr. Sincrair: Or members of parliament who have been turned down.

Mr. Rosinson: May I ask a specific question on a specific case? For some
years I have been asking for the continuation of a hydrographic survey in
Georgian Bay, and the department agrees that is desirable. I understand that
for some years they have provided funds in their estimates for general hydro-
graphic services. Now that has been so since 1946, but each year they have
failed to find trained hydrographers. As a consequence, I imagine part of the
vote has been unexpended, and, I suppose, that provides one of the cushions you
talk of. Would you call that an unavoidable cushion, and how much of that type
of thing do you run into?

Mr. Bryce: There are a good many unavoidable cushions, but I do not think
that sort of thing is what we would normally regard as a cushion. We would
regard as a cushion something put in to provide for unforeseen contingencies.
It 1s not a cushion when you provide for more staff, for instance, and in fact it
turns out that they have been impossible to obtain.

Mr. Cavers: Is it not necessary to get authority in the estimates to increase
salaries or staff before the department can do anything about it? So, in present-
ing the estimates to the House, authority must be given in the chain before any-
thing can be done by a particular department for increasing salaries, staff, and
g0 on?

Mr. Bryce: No, sir. The legislation permits the government to change
rates, normally on the recommendation of the Civil Service Commission, but
of course it cannot pay the increased rates unless there is money voted by
parliament to do so. When the government, in December last, decided it should
increase salary rates it explained at the time that it would be necessary to
defer payment of any such rates until parliament had voted the additional
funds in the further supplementary estimates to be brought down in a few days.

Mr. Sincrair: On Monday.

Mr. Bryce: There will be such amounts as are necessary to supplement
the other votes and to enable those higher rates to be paid; and of course that
provides an opportunity for parliament to inquire into the matter.

Mr. Fraser: Mr. Bryce, you made mention that this year the cushion is
getting a little harder. Now what percentage would the cushion be? If it were
softer before, what percentage would it be this year?

Mzr. Bryce: That is very hard to say.

Mr. Fraser: Do you not have a range for each department? Would they
not all be the same, depending on their staff; or have some departments got
an advantage over others?

The CaamMAN: It is not a question of advantage, it is a question of the
greater need of one department over another.

Mr. Fraser: Well they should have an average. :
The CrarMaN: They cannot have a definite quota or definite proportion.
Mr. Fraser: What is the average cushion?

Mr. Bryce: I am afraid, sir, I cannot say there is an average cushion
because, by and large, we try to eliminate those cushions we can find in order to
make the estimates as firm and realistic as possible. So, if there are cushions
that have been put in there—it is a colloquial term and not an exact term—if
there are cushions in there I am not able to say exactly how much they are.
For example, take the ordinary votes of Public Works for works in the various
provinces—let us say public buildings. It is perfectly obvious from the figures
that in a good many instances the Public Works Department has spent far
less than the amount voted. That has not been a deliberate cushion which
they have put in there and that the Treasury Board did not detect or specially
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authorize consciously; it has been due to the fact that they just could not get
ahead with the work. That is not really a cushion although it may look that
way after the event.

Mr. Fraser: Your main cushion is on staff?

Mr. Bryce: The main cushions are these general contingency votes.

Now there are in many construction items small cushions put in consciously
and deliberately. If you will look into the vote on national harbours I think
you will see $200,000 for unforeseen construction.

_Mr. Fuuron: Mr. Bryce, you just referred to Public Works estimates. I
notice it has been the practice for some years now, in the architectural branch
for instance, to put in figures by provinces, cities, or locations, and then have
a heading in the estimates: “Less: Estimated amount by which actual expendi-
ture on all listed projects will fall short of the total of amounts that may be
required for each”; and that is deducted and the total amount reflects that

A%edu((:it;on. Now who puts that estimate' in, Public Works or the Treasury
oard?

. Mr. Brycr: It is done by agreement between the two. It has turned out

In fact, in this past year, as presently evidenced from the figures shown in the

new estimates, that that deduction was small, in many cases, compared with

the difference as it actually developed.

Mr. Furron: 1 have before me the page for the province of Quebee, and
under the architectural branch they say: less estimated minimum by which
actual expenditures will fall short of the total, $663,000. I was wondering. Do
you think that procedure could be applied to other departments besides Public

orks? And if so, would it have the effect of reducing the total estimates?

Mr. Bryce: It is unnecessary for us to apply it in a good many depart-

ments because the projects are not specified in such detail. For example, if
one enquires about the construetion vote in the experimental farm service, he
will see that they have in mind trying to do a whole list of projects which add
up to more than the vote. But we manage to convince them that they won’t
get it all done and in fact they should not ask parliament for more than the
total sum specified, that is, less than the things they would like to do.
. In the case of Public Works it has been traditional to list individual projects
In the estimates. So for that reason it was necessary to make the deductions in
O_I‘dfir to get them down to what the Treasury Board felt was a more realistie
limit as to what they might expeet.

_ Mr. Furron: Do you put that in there after Public Works submit its
estimates to you, or do Public Works put it in there to try and convinee you
that it is the minimum that they expect? = If it is the latter process, it seems to
me that the department still simply over-estimates, shows a deduction, and ends
Up with a figure which is more than they need, and yet is able to say: look at
what we have done.

Mr. Sincratr:  Is not the reason why Public Works is different from any
other department this very problem: for example, in British Columbia Public
Works lists ten wharves which they intend to build in that area. They should

Now from past experience that only nine of those wharves will be built, but they
do not know which one will not be built.

Mr. CrurcksmaNk: Oh, yes, or take the case of the Fraser Valley.

Mr. Sinvcrar:  And because of that experience, they put in these amounts.
But in the case of an ordinary department you are going ahead with continuous
Construction projects, or with only one project for example. So I think that is
Why Public Works has the greatest number of re-votes of any number of depart-
Ments. And, as Mr. Fulton pointed out, nobody is keener than the chairman
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of the Treasury Board to keep these lapses down to a minimum, because that
would lower his over-all estimates on public expenditures for the year and he
is naturally anxious to keep that as low as possible. These lapsed votes are a
real challenge to the Treasury Board and a source of annoyance to members
of parliament.

Mr. Fraser: But the higher the Minister of Finance gets them, the more
surplus he will have at the end of the year.

Mr. Sincramr: Yes, but what will he do with that surplus? Is it a debt
or a reduction? That is the point.

Mr. Fuuron: You did not get a chance to answer my question: whether
those reductions in the estimates of Public Works are put in by you or by Public
Works, and whether they present their estimates in this form, that is, as a first
total, and then estimate the amount which won’t be needed, and then show a
final total? Or whether they come along as a first total and you insist upon
putting in the reductions?

Mr. Bryce: I think it is only fair to say that they are put in as a means
of reaching agreement upon the total and that the Public Works department do
not do this traditionally, and that the practice has only developed in the last
two or three years in an endeavour to get a more realistic figure. That is an
item which comes up in the negotiation between the Minister of Public Works
and the Treasury Board in settling the final figures, and it is put in there. It
is one of the means of trying to get a more realistic total.

The CuAlrMAN: May we assume that we have covered these “votes for
supplementing other votes”, which are items 20 to 23; and that we may now
pass on to item 24, “Votes with legislative effect”?

Mr. Fueming: Mr. Chairman, are we adding to what the Auditor General
said last year in connection with “votes with legislative effect” standing on their
own feet as such?

The CHaRMAN: There was an item in the report last year about it.

(Resuming the examination of Mr. Watson Sellar)

The Wirness: Looking at the main estimates which are now before the
House of Commons, I have noticed but one item, which I think justifies the
action that you have taken in the past, and I think you have achieved your end.

Mr. FuemiNGg: May I ask what it is?

The Wirness: It is just a small item, a perfectly legitimate item.

Mr. Crorr: Do not tell him what it is.

The WirNess: It is just a dollar item in connection with the new Depart-
ment of Defence Production where they authorize the transfer of moneys held
by the Canadian Commercial Corporation to the new department on account
of the retirement fund in connection with officials to be transferred by the
corporation to the new department. It is a perfectly legitimate action, and it is
the simplest way to do it.

The CuamMAN: And it does not involve any expenditure on the part of
the government. It is just a transfer of retirement funds.

Mr. Freminag: But I suppose it is technically a breach of the principle
that you should not have legislation by a mere item in the appropriation bill.

The CuamrMan: There is only one way of covering these items. It means
no public expenditure but a transfer of retirement funds of the employees of
one department to those of another department. It does not involve any public
expenditure. :




PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 53

Mr. Fremina: I think the committee will derive some satisfaction from
the fact that the recommendation upon which we spent a good deal of time
last year appears now to be reflected in the form of the new estimates.

_ The CramrmaN: You are right and in this regard I would like to be per-
mitted to read from the statement the Minister of Finance gave to the press
on the night he presented the estimates. I quote:

The Treasury Board has also followed the suggestion of the Publie
Accounts Committee that it avoid, so far as possible, votes having a
legislative purpose instead of an appropriation purpose and also nominal
appropriations where real amounts can be set forth. However, we still
find that there are certain cases where nominal appropriations seem to
be reasonable and sensible, and other cases where the authorization of
certain transactions by votes in the estimates seem much the most
practical way of dealing with temporary and minor legislative require-
ments.

. In this case it is just a transfer of retirement funds for employees, and
1t does not involve any public expenditure. Are there any further questions?

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. Might I ask the Auditor General to explain what is meant by the
dollar vote which parliament passes?—A. Mr. Chairman, it is done so that
there may be an item in the estimates which the committee of supply may
consider and which the House of Commons may in turn consider. It is neces-
sary that there be a sum of money associated with it because you are granting
supply. Therefore, one dollar is put in to qualify the items before the committee
on supply. The important thing, however, is the text of the vote. That is the
Important thing.

Q. In connection with Ttem 24, votes 54, 429, and 796, we voted a dollar
for each of them, just $3, yet more than $1 million were ultimately spent. I did
ot follow the authority that there is for spending that money?

The CramrMaN: Their authority is in the text of the vote which you passed
last year. The dollar was set to enable it to be put in the estimates. But the
Importance of the vote is to be found in the wording of the vote itself.

Mr. TuATrcHER: Am I to understand that we could pass a dollar bill and
then go out and spend $10 million or $50 million?

Mr. CavcuoN: Why not!

Mr. Tuarcuer: Last year votes 54, 429, and 796, I think, involved an
gxggnditure of over $1 million; but as far as I can understand it, we only voted
vote.

. The Cuamman: Vote 54 last year was one which we thrashed out in this
Committee and in the committee on External Affairs. It had to do with the
Spending of moneys which came to the Canadian government from governments
abroad, as due to the Canadian government. Now, the government spent these
Moneys to build embassies abroad, and item 54 was simply a way of getting
authorization from parliament to spend these sums. We ironed that out in this
Committee as well as in the other committee which I mentioned.

.. Mr. Taarcuaer: Mr. Chairman, I still have not had my question answered:
If we pass a $1 vote, is there any limit on the amount of money which could
be Spent? :

. The Cuamman: Tt is not a question of how much can be spent in any par-
ticular dollar vote. We have to pin it down to one vote in order to answer your
Question. Vote 54 had to do with embassies. It may be that the Auditor General
Would want to answer your broader question.

818439
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The WrrNess: In the case of vote 54, the text of that vote was “To author-
ize the government to expend blocked currencies that were received as a result
of the war”. Take for example Denmark, a country which in this case owed the
government of Canada for certain services rendered by Canada. As a result
we had in kroners in Copenhagen a sum of money. Now, the text of the vote
permitted the government to use this blocked currency for the construction or
purchase of embassy buildings in Denmark. The government purchased the
building it was occupying. It is a good building. 1 have been in that building
myself.

Mr. Sincrair: Yes, it is an excellent building.

The WirNess: But the amount that the government could spend was limited.
It came actually out of the kroners which were on deposit in Denmark to the
credit of the government of Canada. That was the limitation in that case.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. What would be the limitation in vote 796?—A. That is a little different.
Let us say that I applied for a government annuity. The agent took my applica-
tion and took my cheque for the amount. But later on, for some reason or other,
the government decided that it would not issue the annuity to me. Under the
Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act the government had no power to return my
money. So this vote was made to give them authority to return the money that
I had paid them. Not a cent otherwise could come out of the Consolidated |
Revenue Fund of the moneys which they had received but had not applied to
the government annuity. So that was the limitation there.

The CraRMAN: It was not an expenditure of public funds but a return of
moneys accepted from the prospective annuity holders.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. On a general dollar vote then, Mr. Sellar, is there always a limitation?—
A. Yes, sir, and as I say, the government is cutting down on them. I refer to
the embassy item in the estimates now before the House where you will find an
amount of $1,042,500 for the construction of buildings in various countries on
the part of the Department of External Affairs. This year the dollar vote has
disappeared. :
Mr. Sincrair: As far as that vote is concerned, there is now a much better
understandingias to what funds we have in those various countries. At the timé |
the previous votes were approved we did not know the actual funds that we had
in those foreign countries and that really was the reason behind the dollar vote.
The Wirness: But you were limited to the amount you did get, and I under-
stand that is what Mr. Thatcher’s question was.
Mr. Freming: I think it might be told, Mr. Thatcher, that the committee
of External Affairs also concerned itself with this matter last year, as well 88
this committee. I think that so far as this particular transaction is concerned,
the detailed review of it was made in the External Affairs committee, but this
committee having regard to this and similar cases did express its opinion that §
we frowned on the use of these $1 votes for legislative purposes and we made that
recommendation to the House against the use of this method in every possible
case, and this is just a report, as I understand it, to indicate that this brings the |
situation up to date, as of the close of the last fiscal year, but the present situa~ |
tion as reflected in the new estimates shows that our recommendation has bee?
given effect to. _
The CuamrMAN: This year you have item 88, which was covered last yeal
by a dollar vote, item 54, but this year they estimated exactly the sums at their |
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disposal and you see in item 88 the amount of $1,042,500 for the same purposes
as the dollar vote of last year. This year, they know how much they have and
hO‘W much they can spend, and they ask parliament to vote the full amount
mstead of the dollar vote, just on account of the fact that the committee
objected to that. Now, this year, instead of one dollar, if you will look at item
88, for 1951-52, you will see $1,042,500. In fact, therefore, it is not a real
Inerease. That money existed, but we did not know the exact extent of the funds
We had there so we put in one dollar.

Mr. Furrorp: That is, the money has never been in Canada?
Mr. Fraser: It was in Canada but we gave it to them.
Mr. Furrorp: It was, and it went over and never came back.

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. T am not just clear though, how we can vote one dollar and the govern-
Ient can spend an unlimited amount for a project. What is the legal basis
for this dollar vote? There must be one somewhere?—A. It is the text of the
Vote, sir. I will read you vote 54: You will find it at the top of page E-12 of
the Public Accounts.

Vote 54. To authorize the use during the fiscal year 1949-50 in pay-
ment for the acquisition, improvement or furnishing of properties for
Canadian Government offices and residences in foreign countries of incon-
vertible foreign currencies from deposits of such currencies which may be
used only for governmental or other limited purposes in these countries
and which have been received by the Government of Canada from other
governments in settlement, of claims arising out of military operations or
war expenditures.

. That is the important thing. It is not the dollar. The dollar is of no
Significance; it is the language of that vote that gives it effect.

Q. I realize that for vote 54, but does that apply any time the government
Wants to pass a dollar vote? I mean does that apply to any of these items?

_ The CrarmaN: Tt has to appear in the Appropriation Act, the definite use
of it, the definite purpose, in definite terms, and parliament votes on the terms
of that appropriation.

Mr. Fueming: The words, as well as the figures, are law.

Mr. Tuarcuer: 1 do not see how parliament can vote money in that way.
It seems to me that parliament may vote a dollar item and somebody may decide
to spend $10 million.

The Cramrman: Nobody can decide to spend $10 million, they are limited
by the purposes and the terms of the vote that is voted by parliament.

Mr. Taarcuer: The money is spent, though.

. Mr. FLeming: What Mr. Thatcher is getting at is that while this is legisla-

tion, therefore it requires the form of law, whether it is the words of the item
Or‘tth amount, it is not a sound method of legislation because it departs from the
Principle of parliamentary control over expenditure. That is why this committee
Made this recommendation. We do not want to see legislation conducted in this
rm and consequently we frowned on these one dollar items and, apparently,
With good effect.

The Cuamrmax: That is why this has been reduced this year to one item.
Mr. TuATcHER: It is one item but it could be fifty.

Mr. FLeming: Not if we are on the job and make sure they do not fall into
the old error :
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The Cuamman: Shall we agree on “votes with legislative effect” and pass
on to item 257
Any questions on item 25?

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. I will be very grateful for one comment. You pointed out, I think, two
specific cases where vote texts were used to accomplish things which were quite
apparently in the intention of parliament to accomplish, in that a use was made
of the money, which, of itself, was not subject to much criticism, the only criticism
would be the technical one you have referred to. Do you regard this as a serious
matter? Is it one to which our attention should be carefully directed?—A. I do

Item 26 raises a little question, but not one of tremendous significance. I
would not worry unduly over it. In item 26—may I refer to it, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
¢ The Wrrness: This new drug was on the market. It was being produced in |
the United States but it could not be sold in the United States, under the laws
of that country, for a certain period but, by a quirk of their law, it could be
exported and sold. These new drugs may have tremendous significance in the
treatment of arthritis and of various other diseases. Unfortunately, the current
cost of the drugs at the time was running to $200 a gram and to get a supply
was going to involve a lot of money, and it was to get enough money in order
to buy a sufficient quantity of these for experimental purposes that the Minister
of National Health and Welfare indicated to the provinces that we should get
together. The provinces said, “Well” —I assume they said,—“Will you find the
money?”’ The Minister of National Health and Welfare found the money and
the provinees were used as a conduit pipe to get the money back into the Research
Council. That is all. I think that the use of the Research Council was entirely
desirable—I am not questioning that in the least—it was just a little technical
quibble as to whether there was actually a transfer from the Minister of Health
a}rlxd Welfare which should have been made direct and was not strictly within
the law. 3

By Mr. Fulton: :

Q. In other words, it was a desirable purpose but to get it they had to strain
a little?—A. I think they strained it. 1

Q. Are these the only two cases you found in the estimates? Going back =
to the general question: Is this a practice which is of sufficient moment, at the
present time, at any rate, to worry about it?—A. No, sir, I would not worry about
it at all. We have had it up with the department and we are pretty well agreed
as to what to do in the future. b

Q. There are four paragraphs in your report. Are these the only cases you
found, those you refer to in paragraph 27?—A. Yes, item 27 is a tuppeny-ha’penny
matter; it is merely the construction of a comfort station out in Courtenay,
British Columbia.

Mr. CruickSHANK: When was that authorized?

By Mr. Fulton: <
Q. What I am asking Mr. Sellar is this: You have drawn our attention t0
four cases where the interpretation given to the incident was strained to accom- ;
plish desirable objects. Do we take it those are the only four cases which exisbs
in the public accounts?—A. We proceed in a pretty thorough manner to audit
the accounts. I would not have mentioned paragraph 28 at all except that the
Treasury Board forced my hand. After the expenditure had been made by the
Department of Transport they decided they had no authority to charge it t0
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their vote so they made an application to the Treasury Board to be allowed to
charge that expenditure to unforeseen expenses in order to regularize it, and
reasury Board refused. Their decision reads as follows:

The Board noted that this expenditure for which there was
apparently no authority has already been charged to Department of
Transport Vote 473, Main Estimates 1949-50. They were of the opinion
that there was no special authority for now transferring this charge to
the Vote for Unforeseen Expenses, and felt that any such transfer would
not regularize in any way the illegal disbursement that had been made.
In the circumstances they feel that the expenditure should remain as a
charge to your vote 473, and that an item covering it should be set up in
the ‘Deferred Claims Account’.

I am under instructions by the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act to bring
Y0 your notice all irregular and illegal payments, and the Treasury Board says
m this case there was an illegal payment, and so my hand is forced although the
amount, involved is only a few dollars.

Q. You have a general heading here, and you have pointed out four cases
of irregularities. Can we take it that those are the only four that exist through-
out the public accounts for the year in question and say this is not a matter we
should give much concern to, or would you say it is a matter on which there might

€ more cases than those you have drawn to our attention and we should perhaps
€ concerned about 1t?—A. We make a pretty thorough audit; we do not make a
one hundred per cent audit so I cannot be one hundred per cent sure, but I think
You can assume that we have uncovered every case.
Q. Well, then, it is not very serious?—A. No, it is not serious.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. I suppose there is always the question we should ask: do you know what
has been done since to recover illegal payments or to deal with the irregularities?
—A. In this case the fact is that we got the benefit of the services that we wanted
80 there is no question of a recovery. What we are concerned with essentially is

Uture practice. While we and the department will quarrel publicly, we get
along pretty well, and we come to a general agreement as to what the practice
Should be in the future in like instances.

Q. This is just by way of illustration to show how it works?—A. I am

*Upposed to bring it to your attention and I have done so.

By Mr. Cruickshank :

Q. Mr, Chairman, under item 27 I wonder if Mr. Sellar-would give us a
short explanation as how that has been handled—A. On item 27, sir, the
epartment of Public Works wanted those facilities in connection with one
Ot its floats located at Courtenay slough, but the municipality of Courtenay
Sald: Here, we would also like to have the use of the same facilities and it
Would be better were we to construet this on our land rather than build it on
. Your float; and they made a deal with Public Works, Public Works said: We
Wil put, up $5,000. Now, the vote out of which this amount was paid was the
90 for miscellaneous work not otherwise provided for. The Public Works Act
efines “works” as meaning and including any work or property under the
00111;1:01 of the minister. This particular building was being built by the
mlm}cipality on land owned by the municipality and being retained by the
m}n}lcipalit,y; which, in our opinion, was property not under the control of the
Minjstep and, therefore, it was improper to charge it to that vote, it should
Ve been charged up against a more general vote. '
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Q. In other words, it should not have been charged up against this vote

but rather against a general vote?—A. Yes, where they could have drawn

authority from a general authority, but, as I say here, to us it appeared that =

a charge to this vote was not regular, because of the fact that title was not
vested in the Crown.

The CuamMmaN: “General Health Grants”, items 29-31—are there any
questions?

By Mr. Fleming :

Q. I wonder if Mr. Sellar would give us the general principle involved in
this section?—A. You are speaking of item 29?
Q. Yes, to items 29 to 31.

The CrAlRMAN: Yes, under General Health Grants.

The WirNess: In item 29, parliament in special votes authorized grants to

the Fort William sanatorium and to the Kamsack Union hospital. In one case
the grant was $200,000 and in the other case it was $40,000. Those grants
were a contribution, neither hospital had to give proof that it had expended
the money in the construction of buildings. They were grants to them. They
received the money. They did not construet the buildings at once, but they did
later on, and therefore when it came to calculating our one-third contribution
under the agreement the question was: Should our previous contributions be
also taken into the caleulations in establishing our one-third? The Treasury
Board felt such a course was desirable and they took appropriate steps, gave

|

appropriate directions to that end. The department has recovered part of the |

money, but not all of it, from the two hospitals.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. The Treasury Board instructed that these amounts be taken into account
in calculating that one-third share of the dominion government?—A. Yes, with
respect to our one-third share.

Q. How did it work out in the end?—A. As a result of that decision it was
regarded that we had over-paid-and that we should recover from the provinces.
We do not deal with the municipalities, we deal with the provineces. '

Q. What progress is being made on recovery?—A. The money has been |

recovered with respect to the Kamsack Union hospital, and in part the money
has been recovered in connection with the Fort William sanatorium, but not
all of it yet. I understand that it is being recovered but it has not all been
recovered up to date.

The CHARMAN: Are there any other questions on these items?

By Mr. Cruickshank:

Q. Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask a question there. I see the

Auditor General says, “grants were not to be made for the construction of
the same hospital facilities by two or more departments.” The reason I am

asking this question of Mr. Sellar is that it has been brought to my attention
that the same tactics may be used again to get exactly the same kind of a grant.

As T understand it, other hospitals are utilizing exactly the same form of approach
as has proved successful in so many cases in the past, and I was wondering

anything was being done to safeguard against such a practice?—A. There is less

possibility of that sort of thing happening now, Mr. Cruickshank, because the
Department of National Health and Welfare is now concerned with the welfare
of the Indians, as well as with other types of grants; so I think you have &

safeguard there, sir.
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Q. Then they would not be able to put the same kind of grant through
again?—A. Well, if you are smart, you can do almost anything, I would say;
but T would say that inasmuch as it is all now under the one department, the
Department of National Health and Welfare, they are pretty good and you
can rely on their integrity. '

Mr. Sincram: Mr. Cruickshank, I suggest, did not understand this esti-
mate; they cannot now get the same grant over again, as has been the case
In the past, in some instances.

The Wirnpss: Yes, that is what Treasury Board are seeking to avoid.

Mr. Sinvcratr: That is just the point I want to make sure of; it is clear
that Treasury Board are now in charge of it?

The Wrrness: Yes.

Mr. CrurcksuaNk: That is all right, if Treasury Board are in charge of it.

The Cmamman: Item 32—Vote Charged Before Liability Established.
Any questions?

By Mr. Thatcher:

Q. Just a word on that item 32: How can P.C. 142/666, of February 11,
1949, authorize the purchase; does that mean that an Order in Council can
authorize the expenditure of money? Just how does that work?—A. No, sir,
The explanation is this: A department cannot buy a building like that without
the_ authority of the Governor in Council to make the purchase; therefore,
their first step after they have negotiated and found out what the price would
be and have come to some agreement about it, is to go to the Governor in
Council and ask for authority to enter into a contract for the purchase of this
Particular building for “X” number of dollars. In this case they wanted the
bu}lding, which was a sash and door factory in Quebec City, for one of the
units and they found that the city of Quebec was making a claim on account of
certain water connections and sewer facilities that they had provided, that held
up the deal; and, actually, I do not think any money has been paid yet on it—
last time I looked at the record, in December, no payment had been made then—
that is why I bring it to your notice. A cheque was issued but the cheque has
not been delivered to the purchaser—

The Cmamman: It has not been sent to the vendor.

The Wrrness: To the vendor, pardon me; that is the reason that isn’t there.

The Cramman: Can we pass on to item 33 “Extra-Statutory Grants of

nnuities”?

The Wirymss: If I may interrupt, sir, I understand the department shares

the view that we take and they are supposed to suggest appropriate action
along those lines.

Mr. FLeming: What is that?

The Wirness: That provision should be made for that in the estimates, .
that it should be authorized by an item in the estimates, just as in all’ other
cases. i

Mr. Fueming: That is, as an individual item?

. The Wrrness: Tt would be an individual item; whether the government
will aceept the recommendation of the department or not, I don’t know.

The CrARMAN: Ttem 34: “Civil Servants’ Liability for Acts of Negligence”,

The Wrrnmss: I am sorry, sir, that at the foot of page 12 there is a mis-
ﬁtatement. The fault is entirely my own. You will notice the last line says,

one-fifth of the amount paid”. What happened was that as I drafted that
Section I used my illustration first, in which case there would be one-fifth;
but if the amount is, say $25, the civil servant is required to reimburse the
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full 100% of the amount; and it graduates down to one-fifth; so the wording
should be changed; to “any substantial amount”. I am sorry I made that error.
The fault is mine.

The CaalRMAN: Are there any questions on item 347

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. On item 34, I see at the end of that section you say, “In view of the
ramifications of the public service, it would be a protection to both employees
and Consolidated Revenue Fund were the matter made the subject of legislation.”
What form of legislation do you recommend would take care of that, Mr. Sellar?
—A. I am hoping that in the revision of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit
Act notice will be taken of this.

Q. Do you think it should take the form of, say—

The CuamrMAN: There is notice on the order paper that the bill is coming
to the House, so we will have a chance to see what is in it soon. Are there
any further questions on item 347? S

Item 35—Cost-Plus Contract Awards:

Q. I wonder if Mr. Sellar would give us an explanation of this item? How
many kinds of cost-plus contract are there?—A. Well, there are four types of
cost-plus contracts taking the place of fixed price deals; there is the cost plus
a percentage, cost plus a fixed fee, target price and management fee. Now,
bear in mind that I am dealing with departments generally and not with any
particular department—certainly not with the Department of Defence Produc-
tion, because it has its own legislation—I am dealing with all of the departments.
Section 36 of the Public Works Act regulates, and it says, “Whenever any works
are to be executed under the direction of any department of the government,
the minister having charge of such department shall invite tenders by public -
advertisement for the execution of such works, except in cases:

(a) of pressing emergency in which delay would be injurious to the public

interest; or

(b) in which from the nature of the work it can be more expeditiously and

economically executed by the officers and servants of the department; or

(¢) where the estimated cost of the work is less than $5,000 and it appears
to the minister, in view of the nature of the work, that it is not advisable
to invite tenders.”

When you have a case of a cost-plus contract there is no reason to invite
tenders because when you invite tenders you are after competitive prices, but
in a cost-plus contract all you are negotiating is the percentage, or you are
letting it out on the basis of a fixed fee and, therefore, there must be a selection
of contractors. But, to bring the thing within the legal scope of the power of
the Governor in Council to award a contract you have to fall back on (a), a
state of pressing emergency. You must proceed that way. Now, my view is
that you cannot avoid using one form or another of cost-plus contracts for
various types of work. You have cases of urgency where the plans must be
. developed as the work proceeds and where, let us say, the contractor cannot
estimate what volume of overtime he is going to have to use on it. Then you
have cases where the work is of an experimental or novel nature, such as the
construction of an aeroplane or something of that sort where neither side can
estimate what the real cost is going to be. Then, you have the case where
the work is located in a remote area where the contractor undertaking the job
is not able to hire workmen locally—he has to provide housing for his employees,
he has to get them there, he has to move in his materials and that sort of thing.
Then, the other type is, that you let a contract at a time when prices for labour
and material are fluctuating, maybe going up and down. If you ask a con-
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tractor to bid on a firm price under any of these situations he is going to put
In a tremendous contingency fee to proteet himself. That might mean there
would be a substantial increase in cost to the government; or, in the alternative,
the contractor might take a licking. There you have the situation. Therefore,
you must use one form or another of the cost-plus arrangement. Now, I look
at it this way, that that section was enacted at Confederation—with the excep-
tion of the $5,000 limit, which was added in 1903—in those days a minister ran
& department, they really performed the functions of the present day deputy
ministers and of branch heads—they did everything—but today the minister can-
not opérate his department, he has to delegate responsibility and he has to depend
on his officers. I think you should give the minister protection so that if
blunders are made he can discover them early and take steps to correct them.
One of the ‘great problems is: What constitutes a state of pressing emergency?
One of my predecessors was a very independent gentleman and he had a con-
troversy with the Public Works Department and the Department of Railways
and Canals, in 1902, as a result he asked for an interpretation. He was not
satisfied to take the word of the Department of Justice on it so he referred the
matter to an independent solicitor, Sir Allan Aylesworth—he was then a prac-
tising lawyer—he asked him for an opinion as to what this phrase meant and
here is what Sir Allan gave as his considered opinion:
In my opinion, the Minister in each case must be the judge whether
a case of pressing emergency exists. No doubt the minister in any
particular case would, if he thought the matter of sufficient consequence,
advise with his colleagues on the subject, and the responsibility would
rest upon him and them to Parliament for any action the department
might take in the view that a case of pressing emergency existed.

Q. What was the date of that?—A. That was in 1902. In the case which
I have before you, and which T am quoting, the R.C.AF. decided to occupy an
alr station at Chatham, New Brunswick. The decision must have been made
at least in the month of November, because the Canadian Commercial Corpora-
tion submitted a report to the Governor in Council early in December. They
sald “on account of the present emergency”, because the air force wanted
Occupancy. Actually the air force did not occupy until the first of May.
urthermore, the first contract merely asked for authority to spend $20,000.
You would have thought that plans and specifications for $20,000 worth of work
could have been prepared but, on the grounds of pressing emergency, the contract
Was awarded. As I pointed out, the subsequent action was that once this
Particular contractor got going they worked out further plans as to what was
Decessary and ultimately $465,000 was spent. T think we are getting full value
or the work and I am not criticizing the work, but the decision was made that
We would proceed on a cost-plus-fee basis on a $20,000 contract and $465,000
Was spent. Case number II is in for a different purpose.

By Mr. Browne:

Q. Could we ask a question on case number I? What was the fee that he
Teceived on the balance of that work?—A. Five per cent on the first part.

Q. $20,000 at 5 per cent.—A. It all works out at roughly 5 per cent.

Q. Why were tenders not called on the remainder of the work, if the
Urgency did not seem to exist by May?—A. The reason they were not called
M the latter instance was the man was already on the job, had his equipment
and everything else there, and could undertake the work cheaper than anyone
eise could do it coming in new. *

Q. The amount of equipment he would have there on a $20,000 contract
Would not be very much?—A. You are going to examine the Department of :
ational Defence and they should be familiar with that. T am only dealing
With the figures—I cannot tell you about the equipment on the ground at all.
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By Mr. Cruickshank :

Q. Have you any access to their books?—A. Oh yes, we have free access—
and no department has ever refused us access to their books.

Q. My experience has been that nobody audits the books when contractors
are on a cost-plus basis?—A. Oh, you are talking about the outside fellow.
The contractor’s accounts are examined by the Treasury cost accountants, not
by us.

Q. By an official of the Treasury?—A. Yes, officers of the Comptroller of
the Treasury.

By Mr. Johnston.:

Q. May I ask Mr. Sellar if the contract that originally was to cost $20,000
was the same contract that was then carried on and ultimately cost $197,000?
—A. No, they awarded new contracts, listing the work to be done.

Q. Yes, but what I have in mind is was it a much larger project than was
contemplated at $20,0007—A. Yes, it was a larger project.

Q. In fact it was a different contract from the one anticipated under the
$20,000 item?—A. Yes, I think so.

Q. I cannot, see how it would otherwise. Certainly it would not have gone
from $20,000 to $197,000 without there being a different type of construction.

The CHAmRMAN: You may note the item and when we get to National
Defence you can bring the matter up then.

Mr. JounstoN: The only reason I ask is that certainly Mr. Sellar himself
would have to be cognizant of the fact that a $20,000 contract could not be
considered to be the same project as a $197,000 contraet. I think Mr. Sellar
would have to have made himself acquainted with the differences.

The CrAlRMAN: Let Mr, Sellar comment.

The Wirness: I have no particular comment.

Mr. Fraser: In the other item, on the very same matter, you have a
contract of $87,000 cost-plus, and another contract for $160,000. I suppose that
would be cost-plus too. This work has cost up to date $445,000, with $20,000
more to go. That would be $218,000 more than what the contract calls for.
There seems to be something wrong there.

The Wirness: If you add up all the contracts they come to the figure I
gave.

Mr. CruicksHANK: May I ask a question? As I understand it, Mr. Sellar
- has this in his branch, can we not have an opportunity to .ask departmental
officials concerned?

The CHAIRMAN: At a later date, when we are on National Defence.

Mr. CruicksHANK: I appreciate the Public Works auditing is not done

by Mr. Sellar but I want to point out that the figures are too startling here.
I do know the parliamentary assistant has heard me on this, occasionally,
but I know on a certain dyke a few hundred thousand were spent and some of
the money was deliberately wasted on these cost-plus eontracts. I say “deliber-

ately”, and I want to have an opportunity to make further inquiry of some i‘

officer who does know how these ridiculous figures were arrived at.

The CualRMAN: This is the moment to ask the Auditor General his reaction

to these cost-plus contracts, but if you wish to ask details of the departmental

officials we will have to have them here.

Mr. CruicksHANK: That is what I want.«

The Crarrman: May I point out that T am directed to deal only with the
Auditor General and the secretary of the Treasury Board. Later on we are
going to go into national defence accounts and you might move that we geb
somebody from there.

¥
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Mr. CruicksHANK: At the suggestion of the parliamentary assistant we
have a financial expert sitting beside the Auditor General. I cannot see any
reason why I cannot have a Public Works expert sitting beside the Auditor
General too.

The Crammax: I have no objection but you must ask the committee.

Mr. SiNvcramr: Surely this is one of the things that will be raised when
national defence accounts are before the committee. At that time you can
ask questions of defence officials who audited these accounts.

Mr. Wricar: This matter of the dyke, mentioned by Mr. Cruickshank,
does not come under national defence.

g The Cuamman: If you wish to enlarge the scope of the enquiry I do not
object. ¥

_Mr. Cruicksank: I am anxious to get to the bottom of this cost-plus
b\gsmess. I believe a lot of members, the majority of members, think that they
stink. T certainly do, and although I am not referring to this individual item
at all, T can see no reason against having a Public Works official sit beside
Mr. Sellar,

Mr, Sincratr: It is not Public Works, it is National Defence.
Mr. Cruicksuank: All right, National Defence.

Mr. FLeming: There should be a distinction there.

Mr. Cruicksuank: National Defence, then.

Mr. Fremine: Mr. Bryce is here as an official of the Treasury Board
Who has reviewed the estimates of all departments, and he is here because we
asked him to sit in on these two matters.

Mr. Cruicksuank: I think it is an excellent idea, but T want somebody
to explain to me how it works that.there is a difference in this particular item,
why the amounts are published in dollars and cents as they appear on the sheet
there, and why. it was necessary in May to give an additional cost-plus contract
to that great extent. The other day we had referred to us something up on
the Alaska highway which I can understand. That was the Alaska highway,
hOWever, with difficult climatic conditions, and I can understand it. In this
case I would like to know why there is this difference in this cost-plus matter.

Mr. Sivcramr: I would like to reply to Mr. Cruickshank’s statement that
thesq cost-plus contracts stink. I thought Mr. Sellar’s comments regarding
conditions under which cost-plus contracts were awarded were very good
and I made a note that I should read them again when the record was available.

r. Cruickshank says cost-plus contracts stink—

Mr. CrurcksuANK: Most of them, I said.

Mr. Sixcramr: I think Mr. Cruickshank has this point—that it would be
extremely interesting to know the degree of supervision over these costs, and
O0W that supervision is exercised, especially by National Defence. I would
Suggest that this item is one that could be discussed at whatever length is
esired when the people from National Defence are here. There are treasury
officials of National Defence. Mr. Bryce is the Secretary of the Treasury
oard, but we have our own treasury board officials with the Department of
ational Defence. When they are here we can raise the question much more
effectively, especially when we only have five days on this report.

Mr. Jounston: As it was found out during the last war by the War
Expenditures Committee, this type of contract, cost-plus, does lend itself to
very exaggerated over-expenditures in the case of overtime, in the case of
Materials, and so on, and it does take very close supervision. Now, that close
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supervision, as we found out in the War Expenditures Committee last time,
was not always exercised, and in my judgment, as a result, there was a
tremendous amount of money wasted.

I think in the case of cost-plus contracts which have followed there has
been closer supervision and no doubt we have saved money. I think the remarks
of Mr. Sellar are applicable here, but there is one question I want to ask before
we leave section 35.

The CrarMAN: Excuse me, Mr. Johnston, but Mr. Cruickshank has a point.

Mr. Jounston: All right.

The CuamrMAN: We have been asked by the members of the committee to
limit our study of the Auditor General’s report to five meetings. If it is the
wish of the committee that we open the door to the investigation of any depart-
ment we can extend it very far.

Mr. CruicksHANK: That is satisfactory to me.

The CaalRMAN: The item that Mr. Cruickshank properly raises has to do
with National Defence. It has been agreed that once we are through with the
: %udtitor General we will go into National Defence—when we come back after

aster.

May I suggest that might be the time when the point will be taken into
consideration and officials brought in with respect to this contract. I will ask
the secretary to note the item so that it can be brought before the committee
when we are on National Defence. Is that agreeable?

Mr. CruicksHANK: That is all right.

Mr. Jounsron: On this section 35, and this cost-plus-fixed-fee contract
that was authorized, when the contract was first talked about it was $20,000
plus a fixed fee of $1,000. The contract then amounted to $197,505.

Mr. Browne: $465,000 at the end.

Mr. Sincrair: $445,000.

Mr. JounstoN: Now what was the fixed fee in that regard? I do not see
that it is mentioned.

Mr. Fraser: It shows on the next page that he got $16,000.

The CuamrmaN: That is ancther contract.

Mr. Jornston: What was the ultimate fixed fee?

The Wirness: Approximately 5 per cent.

Mr. BrRowNE: 5 per cent.

Mr. JounNsTton: What would that amount to?

Mr. BrowxNE: $23,000.

The Wrirxess: $23,000.

Mr. JounstoN: That looks like quite a fair fee in view of the fact that the

project was enlarged greatly. I suppose it might be all right.

The CuamrMAN: Are there any further questions on item 35? If not, we
will*go to item 36, cost audit settlements. Are there any questions?

Now I do not want to go too fast but we have assumed that members would
read the items before they came to the meeting and, if there are no questions
raised after a few seconds, I am passing on to another one.

Item 37, inventories of special equipment and tools.

Items 38 and 39, payments in advance of work performed.

, Mr. Frasegr: On item 39 the $10,000 for flatware would be knives, forks,
and spoons, I would imagine. Why should that much be spent all at once,
because each embassy is equipped, is it not?

Mr. CruicksHANK: That is due to the fact, I suppose, that they get stolen.

e _a
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The Wrrness: The department would have to answer that.

Mr. Fraser: External Affairs?

The Wirness: Yes.

Mr. Cruicksuank: Those went to the legations overseas.

The Caamrman: With the committee’s permission I would ask Mr. Bryce
to comment on that.

Mr. Brycr: I think perhaps the explanation of that question is simply that
these were bulk purchases for the missions abroad. They are furnished by the
department,

Mr. Fraser: But we have these embassies and missions and each one is
fully ‘furnished. They furnish them as they go along.. $10,000 for flatware
would cover quite a few missions and embassies, I would imagine.

Mr. Sincratr: Some of the missions have had to provide their own flatware,
dishes, and furniture.

Mr. Fraser: Which ones?

Mr. Sincrair: I think of the one in Rome, particularly.

Mr. Fraser: That is charged to External Affairs?

Mr. Sixcrar: No, the ambassador provided it himself.

Mr. CruicksHANK: Maybe he gets them from War Assets. ,

~ Mr. Jounsron: With your consent, Mr. Chairman, I would like to go back
to item 37.

The Cmamman: Certainly: “Inventories of special equipment and tools.”
By Mr. Johnston:

Q. Could Mr. Sellar tell us the general practice of the departments con-
cerned in keeping track of tools that the Crown owns? What I mean is that
during the last war in the aireraft factories and shipbuilding plants it was neces-
sary for the government to acquire a lot of tools over and above those which
the contractors had. For instance, we supplied, I should think, thousands of
dual-purpose lathes. Now, how were these tools kept track of?—A. Each of
the machines was labelled.

Q. How were they labelled?>—A. There was a brass label screwed on to
them, or welded on to them in some way or other.

Q. Was that doné in every case?—A. Yes, sir. We hope so, in any event.

d a central record was maintained of that machine by number and style and
cost. And when the machine was transferred to another plant, it was recorded
In the accounts as taken out of the one plant and put into the other. So in that
Way 1t is hoped that a complete record was maintained of the equipment
Purchased during the war.

. But after the war ended, that particular record branch was disbanded and
Since then the situation has rested between heaven and earth, or, in other words,
etween the Canadian Commercial Corporation and the Department of National
efence as to who should maintain such records. No records were being main-
ta=lr_1ed. We interested ourselves in it and we visited several airplane plants
Which are now producing. We came back and urged either the department or
€ corporation to get busy and see that satisfactory records were set up. The
anadian Commercial Corporation undertook to do so, but it had not been
Undertaken at the end of last year so that is why I noted it. But it has since
een done, and now the matter is being attended to.
. Q. You say that you visited certain plants and that you made representa-
tions ‘that these things be more satisfactorily kept track of. You spoke of a
rass label which was put on a machine. When was that practice started? Tt
Certainly was not started at the first of the last war?—A. I would say it was
started in 1941 because there was a lot of back-log work to be picked up.
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Q. Would that be after we had got well under way in the manufacture of
aircraft and ship-building?—A. We had quite a lot in 1940; we had a big back-
log. I am not disputing that. That is why I qualified my statement by saying
that I hoped we had labelled everything.

Q. I noticed that you made that qualification in your remarks because
I recall that I made this point clear in the War Expenditures committee at that
time: that in a great many of these plants which we visited, the only label on
these machines which must have cost thousands of dollars, was a number which
was painted on. Well T recall asking the manager of one of the plants what
other label was on a government machine to distinguish that machine from
their own machine, because they would have similar or identical machines right
alongside it. And the manager said the numeral was the only thing there was.
I do not suppose anyone ever did so, but I cannot see what there was to prevent
someone from taking some gasoline and rubbing that painted number right off.

Mr. Fraser: There would be a serial number, would there not?

By Mr. Johnston:

Q. There might be a serial number, but as far as plant identification was
concerned, that was all that was on it. I imagine we must have lost a tremen-
dous number of these machines—A. If I may be permitted, I must challenge
that statement, Mr. Chairman. We made it our business to follow that up.
And at the end of the war what I always worried about was that some member
of parliament might go into some foundry and find a dual-purpose lathe stuck
up against the wall and not in use. He might ask: Why is that lathe not in use? .
And they would say: It is not ours. It belongs to the government of Canada.
And I worried that you might think it very inefficient of the government of '
Canada if it does not keep track of its equipment better than that. So that
is why we interested ourselves right after the war to see that control was kept
over these machines and ‘that records were maintained.

Mr. Jounston: I am not questioning your revised system after the war was
completed. But now that we are entering another period when we shall have
inereased war production, it occurred to me that we should not get into the same
position that we were in at the beginning of the last war when certainly the
system used lent itself to a condition whereby a lot of machines could very
easily be lost. So I think that great caution should be taken now to keep a very
careful record of the machines that the government is buying, because I think
the matter was very loosely handled before.

The Cramman: Would not the fact that the government had a list of
the machines by serial numbers permit the identification of a machine, even "
though there was only a painted number beside the serial number on each
machine purchased? Would not the fact that the government had these serial
numbers in their books permit of easy identification?

Mr. Jorxston: I do not think it would be just as easy to identify a
machine after it had been moved from its location, let us say, several times.

By Mr. ’Browne:

Q. Is there any legislation which places an obligation on a corporation to
undertake this work?—A. The obligation is contained in the contract, by reason
of the contract.

Q. Who holds that contract and has a record of it?—A. It would be with
the Canadian Commercial Corporation and subsequently with the Defence
Production Department.

The CuamrmaN: Gentlemen, it is now three minutes to one. Shall we
adjourn at this point until tomorrow at eleven o’clock in the morning?
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Mr. Fraser: That is what is indicated in Votes and Proceedings.

The Cuamman: Yes. Might T ask if it is convenient for the committee?

Mr. CruicksuANK: Which item are we on?

The Crarrman: We finished Item 39, I think.

Mr. CruicksuANK: No, no, not Item 39.

The Cuamrman: Well, let us stop on Item 37, and keep “Payments in
Advance of Work Performed” open for the next meeting. Is it agreeable to
have the next meeting tomorrow morning at eleven o’clock? It is agreed.

Mr. Freming: What about next week, Mr. Chairman?

The Cuammax: When do we adjourn? We adjourn on Wednesday. Do
You want to have a meeting on Tuesday morning at eleven?

Mr. SiNcrar:  Yes!

Mr. Freming: I would rather see it Tuesday than tomorrow.

The Committee adjourned at 1 p.m. to meet again tomorrow, Friday,
March 16, at 11 a.m.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
MarcuH 16, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Publie Accounts met this day at 11 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. L. Philippe Picard, presided.

The Cmamman: Order, gentlemen:

We have a quorum so I think it is in order to proceed. When we adjourned
yesterday we agreed that we would start over again with items 38 and 39,

"‘tPayr‘x?lcnts in advance of work performed”. Are there any questions on these
items?

Mr. Watson Sellar, Auditor General, called:
Mr. R. B. Bryce, Assistant Deputy Minister of Finance, in attendance.

~ Mr. CruicksHANK: On item 39, Mr. Chairman; I don’t suppose there
is very much involved in that, is there? It says, “to make progress payments
as they become due”, and it refers to silver flatware required by missions
abl‘oqd. Apparently they gave this order for flatware to a silversmith at
Lansmg_, Ontario. It also says that it was noted that the department was
emanding delivery of the blades and dies and was taking steps to terminate
the contract. The question I want to ask is this: is that the only step that
h-as_beer_l taken with regard to this money that was paid out? The reason I am
asking is that T wondered what the situation was there; what advances you
Iflake to manufacturers of this kind. Do they get it all? I am satisfied that
the government is not going to lose anything on this, but 1 was wondering
1f you had anything you wanted to say about it. 1 am not complaining about
the purchase of blades, dies, and so on, but I notice that progress payments
amounting to $1,743 have been paid yet apparently you have received nothing
at all for that amount.

A. The situation is this, sir; the Department of External Affairs decided
that they wanted to secure silver flatware for use in the embassies suitably
marked with the arms of Canada, and so on, and in 1947 they were of the
Opinion that silverware was in short supply so they negotiated with this chap
Wwho is a specialist in this particular line; it is a part time activity with him, he

as a little place at this town of Lansing in Ontairo. They gave him a contract.
e undertook to do the work but he was short of money. He hired one or two
men and secured dies and blanks and so on; but he never had enough money to
Produce the goods and he could not get progress payments. He had been made,
as pointed out, some advances. A year ago the department decided: here, this
hing can’t go on; so they sent treasury cost accountants to examine into the
Situation. They reported that this fellow was making some DrOgress, that he
ad some pieces made, but in no instance did he have enough to make a
COmplepe set for an embassy. The department then went after him and as a
zﬁsult in August of this year terminated the contract and ordered the goods
at had been supplied to date returned to the department so that they could
get some other contractor to finish it off. The department considers that it is
reaking even, that the government is not losing any money if and when they
¢an complete these sets.
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Q. In other words, he did not do his part in this case?—A. In my opinion
the department erred in taking on this chap. 5

By Mr. Brouwne:

Q. How did they come to pick the man; he could not have had a national
reputation?—A. You would have to ask the department, I am going by the i
files. The files indicated that this chap had been recommended to the depart- 1
ment as an expert, a skilled craftsman. 1

By Mr. Cruickshank:

Q. Yes, to do this special work.—A. His regular employment is that of a.
teacher. This was a part time activity of his, and on small orders he did very
fine work. Where the mistake was made was in giving the chap a big order
when he didn’t have the facilities for doing the work.

Q. You would at least have the dies and some of the stock—A. Yes, the
dies and the blanks and whatever had been finished. The department is of the
opinion that we are not out of pocket but we haven’t secured what we wanted.

Q. In othér words, we incurred a recoverable debt.

By Mr. Browne:

Q. Item number 38 seems to me to be somewhat important: payments in
advance of work performed. Have you any record of the amount of work
done with respect to which payments were made in advance?—A. You are
speaking about ships?

Q. Yes—A. The rule of the shipbuilding trade is that when a keel is laid
8o much is to be paid; when the boilers are in the yard so much is paid, and =
from then on so much is paid as the work progresses. j

Q. Then it is a progress system of payment?—A. Yes. In the ordinary -
building trade the contractor is paid on the basis of progress of the work he
has done in a particular month. The engineer in charge, that is the government
engineer, surveys the amount of work that has been done and the contractor =
is paid 90 per cent of that, 10 per cent is held back to insuré completion of the
work. Now, in this particular care these are prefab houses. The ordinary
provision regarding progress payments was in the contract, but in the course of
the performance of that contract the Canadian Commercial Corporation added =
this proviso after the contract had been awarded: “provided that the contractor =
may include in his progress claim material on the site but not yet incorporated
in the work, an inventory of which shall be checked and surveyed by the {
engineer prior to acceptance and payment thereof”. Ordinarily he would not be =
entitled to anything even if he had it on the site until it had been incorporated,
but in these cases a variation was made. /

Mr. MACDONNELL: Your point there being that this is not a matter of a
progress payment; it was really an accelerated payment. :

The WirNess: Ordinarily he would have financed his cost as he went along;
it might not be much. p

Mr. Browne: That was a special provision written into the contract. Is

The Wirness: No. In this case the contract as awarded provided that the "_‘
claims would be for materials incorporated in the project.
Mr. MacponNELL: I know that in ordinary practice, in non-government
practice, these progress payments are made on the basis of the prefab material
on site. -
The WrrnEss: I have no knowledge of that, sir.
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By Mr. Browne:

Q. What is this prefab material?—A. These were houses.

Q. T know, but what was the nature of the prefab material?>—A. On this
type of house I understand the lumber was prepared; it comes cut to various
lengths and then is directly assembled into the houses after it gets there.

Q. It would not be like the wall of a house or the floor of the house?—A. Tt
could be, sir; but I would not say it was.

Q. And to what extent does that practice prevail?—A. These are the only
contracts, sir.

The CrarmaN: Shall we then go to items 40 and 41, “countable advances:”

The Wirness: If I may interrupt, Mr. Chairman; with regard to para-

graph 41 the government has taken appropriate action in connection with travel
advances,

By Mr. Macdonnell :

Q. With regard to item 40, how long has that amount been outstanding?
A—They have not in the past made it a practice to clean up at the end of each
year, but on the plan which has now been instituted they will clean these up
Periodically.

Mr. Fraser: T see the amount if $40,000 of outstanding advances—what
about that item of $2,000?

The Wirngss: You are on the next paragraph, item 41. I was dealing with
the $40,000 in item 40.

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. I would like to ask Mr. Sellar about item 40.—A. Yes sir.

. Reading in the middle of that section: “Treasury Board may grant
€xtensions up to sixty days. One purpose of the enactment is to safeguard
4gainst the equivalent of loans, while another is to reflect costs in the year in
Which incurred. Examinations of Navy advances made for travel expenses
disclosed that year-end accounting treatment was to transfer approximately
40’(?00 of outstanding advances to 1950-51 accounts, without the holders being
Tequired to make an accounting.”” Now, I would like to hear any comment you
ave to make on that; also, I want to ask you this question: looking back to
EOQMD;g)artment of National Defence, Naval Services—could you turn back

The Cuamman: Should we not confine ourselves to what we agreed to,
these items?

Mr. Macponnern: I only want to ask the question, whether this item of
$1,720,000 which appears there is the gross travelling expense item. That is
all T am referring to.

The Cramman: I have no personal objection to that, but I am trying to
conform to the expressed wish of the committee.

The Wirnmss: I think T can answer Mr. Macdonnell’s question. The item
to which he is referring is for $1,720,000, there are a number of smaller items such
a8 In the paragraph below that one.

By Mr. Macdonnell :

Q. Yes?—A. You see it?

Q. Yes—A. The $40,000 is incorporated in all. You will see in relation to
the big sum involved that the amount outstanding was not so colossal. Now
then, you asked a question, you say that could be the equivalent of a loan:
0 certain cases it is permissible to make standing advances to an officer who is
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frequently travelling. That is to say, he may be on the road a week, after that
he may be home for a day, and then he might have to go away to some place
where he would be away for a month. In order that he can have money to
finance his trip there is a procedure whereby he can be granted a fixed advance.
It may be $100, or it may be $500, but the risk of that sort of thing is that it
becomes a loan if a fellow does not travel as frequently; a non interest bearing

loan, which at the end of the year will just be adjusted and a new one made; S
and both the Treasury Board and the audit office try to be very careful to avoid 8
that sort of a situation arising. We think that is the bankers’ business, not

the business of the government.

Q. Would this $40,000 represent an aceumulation of advances of that kind,
each of them small?—A. The $40,000 involved covers various Naval personnel
and officers, including officers travelling; they are given an advance before they
start their trip. Let us assume they were going to Toronto. They might be

given an advance of $15 for expenses at Toronto if they were to be there one

day; or if they were going to be there for two weeks or more they would *
probably be advanced a larger sum. They get a warrant for their transportation.
They must on their return account for this “X” number of dollars. If they were.
civilians they would make an accounting of that and return the unspent amount;
in the case of Naval personnel they did not have to make an automatic accounting
on their return; and that was where this $40,000 accumulated between last fall
and the end of the year.

Q. Why were military personnel treated differently from civilian personnel
in connection with the treatment of their expense accounts?—A. Well, for various
reasons, sir; actually, they are worse off than civilians when they travel.

By Mr. Cruickshank :

Q. Why?—A. Secondly, you have to take into calculation various allow-
ances that they are authorized to receive which may not be stopped when
they are away. A civilian has to buy his own food while personnel in uniform
may be paid an allowance for rations, for living out of quarters; and when he
is travelling we say he should use part of his allowance to pay for his board.

Q. That would be all right for a married man, but it seems to me that
it is a discrimination against the men of our Navy; surely they ought to be able
to have enough to eat, like anybody else. In my opinion they should have been
paid more. Surely, the government don’t expect a Navy man to have to eat
bread and jam when he goes to Toronto.

Mr. MacpoNnNeELL: He can get the money for it.

Mr. CruicksHANK: But he does not get ihe same amount of money that a

civilian gets.

The WirNess: In the armed services as a rule their travel allowances are
based on so much per day, and that amount diminishes according to the length
of stay. If a man is there one day he would get a higher allowance than if he
were at a place for a month, on the ground that he should go to a boarding
house rather than stay at a hotel if he was going to be there for a month.
A civilian when he travels gets his actual expenses, he is not on a per diem,
and he has to prove every item of expenditure; but the military man when he 18

travelling is, as I say, on a per diem basis, and it is a modest per diem. I have ¥
heard various officers complain that when they are travelling with a general

who gets a higher rate than a lieutenant who is with him—the lieutenant has to
stay at the same hotel and often eat at the same table—

Mr. CruicksHANK: Yes, he has to eat at the same table, and so on and
so forth; it is not fair. .
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The Wirness: He can be out of pocket; however, that is actually a matter

of defence policy, a question which that department should deal with. I am
Just the Auditor.

Mr. BrowNe: There is nothing we can do about it. X
The CuamrMan: As Mr. Sellar points out, it is a matter to be dealt with
by the Department of National Defence. :
., Mr. MacpoNNELL: These incidental things are often the most interesting
ltems that come to our notice.

The CrARMAN : Yes, many of them are very interesting. Now, gentlemen,
I think we have enough on that point. I think on item 41 Mr. Bryce had an
explanation to give.

Mr. Brycn: Well, sir, I enquired about item 41 when I saw it in the Auditor
General’s report, and I might read the following information from the treasury
office of the Department of National Defence: '

Although numerous attempts had been made to obtain particulars
of actual amount advanced and the source from which the advance was
obtained it was not until Fepruary 12, 1951, that we finally ascertained
that the advance had been made by the Comptroller of Military Accounts,
Rawalpindi, Pakistan. Action was immediately taken through the
Overseas Treasury Office to effect re-imbursement through the Office
of the High Commissioner for Pakistan in London, England, at the same

time a refund was obtained from the Officer to whom the advance was
1ssued.

. That was the information which was supplied to me. I do not have any-
thing further than that. ;
«x. The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on item 40 and item 41
ACCQuntable Advances”? Then we shall pass on to items 42 and 43 “General
lection Expenditures”.

By Mr. Wright:

Q. With respect to item No. 43, Mr. Chairman, it states:
It is noted that this was relied on to_award higher amounts to some
printers than are authorized by the tariff.

But it fails to state what amounts were involved. ;
The situation arose in this way, Mr. Chairman. There is a document
known as the Grant of the Poll which is, as you know, a very large document.
W, some printers, particularly those in country places, have not presses which
are large enough, or they may not have type enough to permit them to print that
ocument all at once. They have to print it in two seetions and then paste
€m together, Of course, that adds to their cost. So they made representations
to the Chief Electoral Officer that they should be compensated. Those were the
Sort of things,

Q. May I ask what were the total amounts involved?—A. T have not got
th? amounts. Secondly, in some cases in connection with ballot papers some
Drinters agked for special adjustment. The practice of the Chief Electoral

Cer, when he receives such an account is to ask the advice of the King’s
Tnter as to the reasonableness of it. On some oceasions the request is granted.
S0 happens that T am a printer by trade myself. Such cases as these used
0 tome hefore me when I was required to have to tax them—to check the
¢ams as to reasonableness, and as to whether the amounts granted were
Teasonable. The regulations cited in the Report have to do with extra powers
i lch are vested in the Chief Electoral Officer in cases having to do with
election officers, A printer is not an election officer.
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I have an assurance from the Chief Electoral Officer that before the next
election he will submit recommendations to the Governor in Council for a suitable
correction or variation of the regulations so that he can deal with these cases.
You have asked me for the amounts involved. I cannot give those amounts to
you, sir. But I can say that they were not big. g

Q. I would like to make one comment on the scale of fees which are granted
to enumerators and to other people who are engaged in our election machinery.
In my opinion, those fees are entirely inadequate. For example, in my own con-
stituency during the last election I know of enumerators who were appointed
but who just simply could not do the work, on the basis of the fees paid. And
the result was that instead of making a house to house canvass they simply
went to the municipal office and made a copy of the voters on the municipal list.
It was entirely inaceurate as far as a federal election was concerned. So I
think that this committee should make some recommendation to the govern-
ment with regard to the remuneration of election officers before another election
because I do not think we can get efficient election officials at remuneration which
is being pald at present.

The Caarrman: I have no objection to placing this matter before the “

steering committee when we draw up our report but I doubt if I can attach

either of them to these two items here because we are considering printing
matters. But personally I agree that these men are underpaid and I think that
most members will agree as well.

Mr. CruickSHANK: Does not the Auditor-General himself make a recom- =
mendation in that regard in the wording of his report?

The Wirness: I am dealing there only with the allowance for offices.

The CaARMAN: We might tie it to that. But I do not think the remunera- 1
tion of officers is concerned in these two items. However, I shall try to find a way
to include it, although it does not concern these two items. :

Mr. Browne: Mr. Chairman, is there not a committee in existence which
deals with elections, and the revising of the election act?

The CualrMAN: I think so.

Mr. Jounsron: In regard to the statement made by Mr. Sellar concerning =
the printing of ballots and election material in rural places, I know of at leagt =
two places during the last election. I am not criticizing any particular individual
about it, but the fact is that contracts in connection with election papers were
let to rural printers, yet those rural printers were not in a position to complete
the contracts. They did not have the equipment. That fact was known hefore
the contracts were let. Consequently, those contracts were sublet to an urban
printer. So I wonder if there is any way in which the Auditor-General can check
up on that practice because obviously there is an extra charge made when &
contract is sublet. I do not think it should be permitted.

The CuamrMAN: Is there not a fixed fee for that kind of printing? And in
the case of the rural printers you nave mentioned, would they not have lost their
commission, or would they not have just made a smaller commission, while the
city printer made the money, because there is a fixed fee for that kind of
printing? ' E

Mr. JounsTox: I am not so sure of that. I think there is an added amount
given to certain printers, depending on their ability to do the job. %

The CuarMaN: The last time I read the Act I think it said: so much for
such and such type of work, so much per ballot, and so on at a fixed fee. But in
some cases we have a hard time to find printers to do the work at the price
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the government pays. However, the fact that a contract may be passed on to
an urban printer does not necessarily mean that the government pays more
than the established amount.

Mr. Jounston: I know of one case where a contract for printing was being
let to another place and the fellow who was going to get it definitely said he
Wwould not and could not print it for that amount.

The CuamMAN: Is that so?

Mr. Jomxsron: However, he did print it though. I think in that case there
Was an adjustment. That is what I meant by that statement of mine. I am
almost positive about it but I could not swear to it.

The Cramrman: The law does not provide for it. However, we can ask the
Auditor General if he knows of any case in which this sort of thing was done.

The Wirness: I am sorry, but I have not any such case in mind. It may
well be, and T am not questioning Mr. Johnston; if he would give me the name
of a case, I would be glad to look up the file and report to you.

Mr. Jomwsrox: I did not mention it to get any individual into trouble.
I_do not, think the amount was sufficient to do that. But I do know the indi- -
Vidual’s name and where he lives, and I know the individual quite well personally.
And I do think that if that practice is followed it is a wrong practice.

The CrarmaN: That is a serious thing you are saying. The only way we
an investigate a case is to get the name. As the Auditor-General has said, the
tommittee is in no way able to deal with your question unless you give the
Auditor-General the information which he asks. .

Mr. Jomnsron: I realized that, Mr. Chairman, and I just brought it to
the attention of this committee to see if such practice is continued on a very
large scale.

., The CramrmaN: We cannot say “continuec
In fact carried on. ;

Mr. Roprnson: It has not yet been established, Mr. Chairman, that there is
any such practice. Mr. Johnston quoted one isolated incident, and stated that

€ has no accurate knowledge even of that incident.

The Cmarrman: The only way in which the committee could deal with it
Would_bc to give the Auditor-General the information which would enable him
to go into the matter more closely.

| Mr. Jomnsron: If that is the general practice, I think that some steps
Should be taken to curtail it.

i kMr. Bexmickson: Mr. Chairman, has not the Auditor-General stated that

7

when we do not know if it is

nows of no such practice along that line?
Ml‘. Browng: But he speaks of higher amounts paid to some printers in
Certain cases. He says that was done.

,The Wirness: T know of one case in connection with ballot papers. There
are quite a number of cases in connection with the Grant of the Poll poster.
. tannot give you the number. There may be 23, it may be more or less. But
I each of these cases, the amount claimed was not large.

By Mr. Johnston:
~ Q. At the top of page 16 of your report you say:
It was noted that this was relied on to award higher amounts to
some printers. . . . -

That is in the plural, is it not? Can you tell us just who these persons
Were?—A. T have not got their names here, Mr. Chairman.
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Q. Then you are in the same position I was—A. I have them, of course, in
my records.

Q. So have I.—A. The essential point I am making is that a printer is
not an election officer; yet the extra grant is given by relying on that regulation.

The CHalRMAN: As to Mr. Wright’s suggestion with which I am entirely in
-agreement, I might say that there was a special committee on the Dominion
Elections Aect, 1938 which sat last year. And one of their recommendations
was that a similar committee be set up early in this session. Therefore, if such

a committee sits, that would be the place to make a recommendation as to higher .

compensation to electoral officers. Now, are we satisfied that we have dealt
with items 42 and 437

By Mr. Stewart:

Q. I have one question on item 43, Mr. Chairman. It has to do with the
scale of allowances for returning officers for accommodation. 1 wonder if the
Auditor-General can tell us if the returning officers request the actual sum
expended for rent, or do they request payment for the full rent permitted?—
A. In some cases the election officer would be using his regular office the one he
uses in his business and he will, as a rule, allocate a division of the use of
that office during the period, between his election duties and those of his
ordinary business. However, from the dudit viewpoint, we look into the

matter when the amount claimed exceeds that which is authorized. If it be the

same amount, or less, we regard it as a function of the Chief Electoral Officer
to satisfy himself that the man in question has earned that amount. So it is
only when the amount claimed goes over what the tariff provides that we are
directly concerned. !

Q. When it is over that which the tariff provides, do you demand to zee
receipts for the full payment?—A. Oh, yes. He has to justify it to the Chief
Electoral Officer. ;

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. What would happen in the case of a returning officer who used offices
in a government building, where he would not have to pay rent? Does he just put
in his charge in the same way? I think it happened in Peterboro. They used
offices vacated by the Trent Canal Department.—A. T would have to check that,
sir.. My impression is that he would make no claim whatsoever for rent. This
is supposed to be an actual outlay supported by vouchers. But I would have
to eheck that case for you.

Q. It was done in the case I mentioned. They used the offices vacated by
the Trent Canal people.

The CualRMAN: Are there any further questions on these items? May we
now pass to items 44 and 45 “Prairie Farm Assistance Act”? ’

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. I would like to ask a question here. I know that in the Prairie Farm
Assistance Act there is a levy made on certain sales of wheat and the proceeds
of that levy are available for the purposes of the Prairie Farm Act; and then it
says further on in the Act that if at any time the fund is insufficient to pay
awards made under this Act the Minister of Finance may make advances to the
furd. Now, do I understand from reading the Auditor-General’s report, section
44, that by reason of the fact that these advances have not been repaid that
the Department of Finance does not treat moneys so provided as “advances” but
instead they are recorded as expenditures of the year in which they are made?
I realize from a common sense point of view it is difficult to avoid that but
does that mean, in effect, that the Department of Finance is making expenditures
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of amounts which are only authorized as loans?—A. The distinetion is this, sir:
if the Department of Finance regarded the amount supplied or paid out in
connection with this Act as an advance they could set up an asset item in its
accounts and use that to result in a less increase in the met debt than if they
regarded it as an expenditure. They have taken the view that as this scheme

S never been self-supporting, that is, the one per cent levy has never produced
enough money to carry it, the fair thing to parliament is to state that it is
regarding this as an expenditure rather than as an advance.

Q. How is it actually done?—A. As an expenditure of the year.

Q. I realize the common sense of that but in effect does it not still remain
that there is no authority for the way it is being done; and how can the authority
be got, and how far can this be carried? It is the commonsense way of doing it,

know, but common sense often differs from the actual authority. Is the
epartment of Finance going to change the authority, or am I reading it fairly?
What is being done?

The Cramrman: Perhaps Mr. Bryce could answer that.

Mr. Bryce: I think, sir, in answer to Mr. Macdonnell’s question, the
D‘epartm-ent of Finance has taken what he describes as a common sense view.
In 1ts accounting. Now, it may well be vhat his comment, that the Act should be
amended to bring it into accord with the common sense view is correct, but I
think that i g matter for the minister responsible rather than for myself. The
Department of Finance has felt that while it might be legal it would not be
fommon sense to show these as recoverable advances.

Mr. MacpoxNELL: I was not suggesting you should show them as recover-
able, but merely as advances.

.. . Mr. Kiex (Digby-Yarmbuth): Is there anything in the Act to show that
If the one per cent levy builds up in subsequent years that these advances will
€ recoverable? Is that why the term “advances” is used?

Mr. Brycm: 1If in any subsequent year there is a surplus in the fund it goes
educe any previous advances.

Mr. Kirx: Then it really is an advance in the form of a loan which you
hope might be recovered? d

'I_‘he Wirness: That is what the aect contemplates but unfortunately
;XIS)erlelnce has demonstrated there has never been a year in which there has been

urplus.

Mr. WricaT: It states here on page 16:

It was noted in the audit that this regulation is not strictly applied,
cases being observed where payments were made to sons operating farms
under verbal leases;

glllld 1t goes on to give other instances. How common is the practice of making
€se grants outside of the regulations? It would indicate here that there are

Deople who are getting grants who are not actually covered by the regulations.

at proportion of cases are paid outside the regulations?

oy The Wirness: - Perhaps I can answer your question easiest by saying the
oard reviewed or considered last year, approximately 900 cases of verbal leases
and so on, and they allowed 488 and vejected quite a number of others. They
alloweq approximately 200 in part.

Mr. MacponneLL: How many cases in all? The figure you have given of
900? Ts that all the cases? ' :

The Wirwess: That is for the season and covers the three provinces.

to r

By Mr. Wright:

Q. Were there any paid in Manitoba last year?—A. Oh, yes, sir.
Q. There were?
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Mr. JoansTton: Can you give them by provinces?
The WrrNess: Yes. It is set up by provinces on page A-37 of the Public
Accounts. k.

The CuAIRMAN: Any further questions on this Prairie Farm Assistance “
Act? Shall we go on to “civil service superannuation,” items 46, 47 and 48?

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. What is meant by this last line on page 16, about the x-ray operators
in the Department of Veterans Affairs? Is it meant by that that they are not =
really in the civil service?—A. Yes, sir, they are in the civil service, they aré =
assigned by the civil service commission on six months certificates. The regula- =
tion says, and this is made by the Governor in Council:

The Treasury Board may designate an employee in the Civil Serviee |
who is in receipt of a stated annual salary and who is employed for

a fixed term of not less than three years, to be a civil servant for the
purposes of the Act . . .

Now, then, men are assigned on a six months certificate; they are not on
a three years employment basis. What the Civil Service Commission certified

was that in these cases the Department of Veterans Affairs will require x-ray ‘

operators for three years and based on that these people were given that status.

Now, my sole objection to what is done is that every civil servant makes his plans

according to his pension potentialities; he buys a house, he takes insurance and
so on; and I dislike anything that may bring into risk later on a man’e expecta-
tions on his superannuation; and that is why I am noting that case.

Mr. Browne: What do you suggest as a remedy?

The Wrrness: I think they are taking appropriate steps to remedy that. I
am not sure, but I believe the Treasury Board and the Civil Service Commission
have dealt with that subject recently.

The CuAIRMAN: Perhaps Mr. Bryce could comment further on that?

Mr. Bryce: The problem here is really the nature of the employment. The

Civil Service Superannuation Act provides for these term employees, but they
are not provided for under the Civil Service Act. There are certain parts of the
civil service where employees can be appointed for a term—for instance, in the
National Research Council—and they may come under the Superannuation Act.

The Department of Veterans Affairs did not wish to make certain of their

employees permanent in the sense that that term is normally understood in the
public service. They had what the Treasury Board regarded as valid reasons

for that departmental policy. The Auditor General has commented, and cor- =

rectly so, that since these employees had been appointed under the Civil Service
Act they could hardly have been appointed legally for a fixed term. Consequently,
following the Auditor General’s drawing of this to our attention and the investi-
gation of it by the officers of the Department of Justice, the Civil Service Com-

mission has now issued permanent certificates for those individuals and they
are covered under the Superannuation Act on that basis, although I believe
they understand that the department does not regard their employment as
necessarily permanent. W

Mr. Fraser: But it would be permanent for the three year period anyhow.
Mr. Bryce: Well, of course, legally, anyone employed under the Civil Service

Act is employed at His Majesty’s pleasure and has no legal claim for indefinite

employment.

}?/Ir' JounsToN: I do not think that would overcome Mr. Sellar’s objections
to that.
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Mr. Bryce: It does in a sense that the nature of their legal appointment
and the nature of the certificates issued are in accordance with all the laws, but
1t does not mean that the employees have any real assurance of employment.

: Mr. FRASEg: It is merely a form that will enable them to have superannuation
while they are in the employ of the Department of Veterans Affairs, which they
should have.. They should have security of some kind, as Mr. Sellar says.

Mr. Brycr: The important thing was that they shall be able to acquire
pension rights through such term employment.

Mr. Fraser: That is only fair.

The Cramrman: Any further question on these three items?

; € come now to “financing of services by the use of corporate credits”,
ltem 49, v

By Mr. Wright:

. Q. T think I should ask the Auditor General a question on case III here in
W_hlch'he indicates that under the Agricultural Prices Support Act and the
Fls_herles Prices Support Act, these organizations, especially the Fisheries branch
of it, have made certain donations to relief funds and yet these show as deficits
n thap account. Why should they be shown as deficits in the accounts of the
Fisheries Prices Support Board when they are in reality gifts by the people of
Canada? Yet, they appear as deficits and indicate that the Fisheries Prices
upport Board has made a loan when in reality they were gifts of the people
]03f Canada?—A. The fish in question, were acquired by the Fisheries Support

oard to support the price of fish in Canada. They sold part of it to the trade,
part of it for export, and they had a balance on hand. They are given power
¥ the Act to sell or otherwise dispose of such fish. In the course of the year
Onations of fish, to get these out of their inventories, were made to Canadian
ospitals and to the refugee relief organization in the far east, and UNICEF
and so on. In the report of the Fisheries Prices Support Board, which has been
table_d in the House of Commons, they give the disposal of the fish that they
dcquired, ;
(1) Commercial sales to exporters at prescribed prices, 2,810 cases.
(ii) Sales to UN International Children’s Emergency Fund at discount
of 15 per cent, 7479 cases.
(i) Government authorized gift to Middle East Relief through Canadian
Red Cross Society, free at dockside Saint John, N.B., 40,000 cases.
(iv) Government authorized gift to United Nations for relief of displaced
persons in Middle East, free at dockside Saint John, N.B., 55,662 cases.
(v) Government authorized gift to Canadian public and charitable insti-
tutions, free at cars Saint John, N.B., 45,044 cases.

,A year ago, I mentioned this subject to this committee. It came to my
Notice by reason of the fact that T am auditor of one of the international agencies
‘oncerned. I said it involved a question of policy. Therefore I was much
Interested later on in observing that when the supplementary estimates were

rought down for the current year provision was made in a vote of the Depart-
ment of External Affairs for the grant of $750,000 in the current year for relief
Purposes in the near east. Therefore, the question you asked, sir, has been
aswered by the government anticipating you and putting the vote in first, and
W-hlle: I have not looked at the records my assumption is that if the Board does
acquire some fish and it is used as a contribution, it would get a credit from
the vote to the value of the fish. Therefore, you should not have that deficit

gure appearing next year.
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Q. I was not objecting to the gift, I was objecting to the method of saying
there was a deficit in this account.—A. Of course I cannot speak for government
policy but the action taken last year would indicate that it is in harmony with
what you have in mind. E

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. On this case what was the date of the contract? When was it entered
into?—A. I am sorry, sir, I have not got the date, but I think it was in 1946.
Q. Right after the war?—A. Yes. il
Q. You do not know how many ships there were?—A. No sir. Again, I say =
“no” quickly, but I think it was either seven or nine. 3
Q. Were those the ships which were completed at a cost of $80,000?
The CuarmaN: The last two paragraphs of the section give you the details.
Mr. Fraser: Just part of the details.

Mr. Larson: Is this $11,400,000 the total amount?

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. No, and I just want to know how mueh they each cost. Mr. Sellar has |
not got that information—A. No, sir. T have not that because this is the loss on
the thing—we were not the contractors.

Q. No, I know that.—A. The Chinese firm was the contractor.

Q. Yes.—A. We were dealing with the builder and his financial problems, so
I would never have the contract before me, sir.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions?

By Mr. Larson:

Q. In Case I is this $11,400,000 the total amount of the subsidy paid by the
government, to the Canadian people for these grants in 1948 and 1949?—A. That
$11,400,000 was made as an advance; there had been an advance the year before
which had not been fully accounted for so I would say that you would have to
regard that as an approximate sum.

Q. You have not any figure of the total advance in that connection?—
A. No, sir, I have not. I could get it of course, but the Department of Finance
would be in a better position to answer than I am.

The CuHAlRMAN: Are there any further questions?

By Mr. Macdonnell :

Q. Yes, I would like to go back to section 49. The first sentence of section 49
points out the old rule whereby financial undertakings are conditional upon the
grant of money by parliament. You then point out the change that has arisen,
wherein Crown corporations are allowed to operate to some extent on their own.
Can you recall, in a general way, which ones operate on their own and which are
still dependent—the main ones, for instance? Polymer is independent is it, and
carries on just like an ordinary business enterprise?—A. Yes, it carries on just
like an ordinary business enterprise. However, you have Canadian Arsenals as
an example of a case where it has the use of its own revenue, but its revenue has
never been in the past sufficient to carry its overhead in connection with idle
plants of which it is custodian.

Q. Its revenues do not go into consolidated revenue?—A. No; in all cases
these companies retain their revenues.

Mr. Browne: There is a list at the beginning?

The Wirness: Yes, in some cases they have to be supplemented by a vote—
Canadian Arsenals being one.
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By Mr. Macdonnell :

Q. T am interested in case II, in connection with a shipbuilder, and I want
to read section 4 of the Act which, I take it, is the only authority, if there is any
authority, for the advance of those moneys:

The corporation is established for the following purposes:
(@) To assist in the development of trade between Canada and other

| nations, and

(b) To assist persons in Canada

(1) To obtain goods and commodities from outside Canada;

(ii) To dispose of goods and commodities that are available for

export from Canada.

The corporation shall comply with any general or special direction given
by the Governor in ‘Council, or the minister, with reference to carrying
out its purposes.

Now, if T understand that correctly, that is to assist the trade to obtain
goods and commodities, and to dispose of goods and commodities. Now where,
n that, do you find authority to do what was done here?

Mr. Fraser: To build ships for China—that is what it was.

The CuarMAN: We are dealing with item 49.

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. Let me read the next paragraph:
Section 8 directs that all moneys of the corporation shall be
administered “exclusively in furtherance of the purposes for which it is
counstituted.”

My question is: I do not see where the authority came from?—A. In this
barticular case, sir, it has already been discussed in parliament.

Q. Yes, T know.—A. And you have already granted an appropriation to
reinburse Canadian Commercial Corporation,

Q. I know.—A. Now, at that time I was worried as to what my situation
Was going to be, as auditor of that company. What liability rested on the -

rectors of a Crown company—directors who served without remuneration, and
Who are merely nominal shareholders—if they made an ultra vires payment of
corporate moneys? :

Q. You don’t say “when they made it.”—A. Fortunately your supplementary
estimate removed my worry. Therefore, I had only to look at it as a business
transaction from then on as they were then acting as agents.

_ However, as pointed out there, this company is under obligation to receive
directions of its minister. Now if your memory is still fresh on this subject—

Q. It is— —A. —parliament was asked to make two grants: one was in
connection with these contracts, or the completion of these contracts; the second
Wwas to pay,for certain tin and antimony required for stock piling purposes. I

ad no worry in my mind with regard to the stock piling, but I did worry over
Whether the advancement of trade section did contemplate financing an exporter
In performing a contract. In each of these cases there has been legislation since,
but they are put in to illustrate.

Q. Legislation, or an item in the estimates?

The CrAmrMAN: It is the same thing.

The Wirness: An item in the estimates, which becomes part of an
appropriation.

Now, my thought is this, sir. The corporate device is a most useful device
and, on the scale of government today, you cannot use anything else for certain
classes of commercial transactions. However, we cannot ignore the constitu-
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tional history of Canada. Back in the 1830’s in particular, a problem arose

when Papineau, in Quebec, and Mackenzie and others, in Ontario—those prov-
inces were then Upper and Lower Canada—were in controversy with the Crown
over the sale of Crown lands and so forth, where the money was retained in
a special account of the Crown. You could have a recurrence of that situation if
you do not regulate the use of corporate money satisfactorily. My thought is,
and I give it only as my thought, that the appropriate action is to see that
corporate moneys are applied only to purposes within the ambit of the legislation
covering the corporation.

Mr. MAcpoNNELL: It raises this question, which I may say I have never
thought of before. We have no protection from the directors of these companies
if they do something they have no right to do. The minister can say quite
frankly, because he said it when the estimates were up, that when we passed
the item that settled it. I raise the question because I think it is important. It
seems to me that we have no control over the directors unless they are independent,
outside men. After all, it would be too much to ask a group of people in the
department to say that they will not do what the minister tells them.

The CHAIRMAN : Is not the minister empowered by the Act to give direction?

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Not as I read the Act. He is empowered to give direc-
tions with reference to the Act in carrying out its purpose. I think that Mr.
Howe said: What is the use of arguing, if we pass that item does not, it settle the
matter? That was pretty sensible too, because it does.

Mr. BeowNE: When was this passed?

Mr. MacpoNNELL: It came up in an item and we passed it. Mr. Howe said:

What is the use of arguing about it; if we pass it that settles it.
Of course it does, but it does not settle the fact—

The Cuamrman: The prineiple.

Mr. MAcpoNNELL: Yes. It raises a question I have never thought of before.
What protection do we have? T am not going to get too excited about this, but
it involves a loss of several hundred thousand dollars, which is not exactly
chicken feed. We have no protection at all, and the minister can work on that
principle and say: don’t worry about that, we will put it through the estimates
and have a second line of defence, or a second line of attack. I think it is a
serious matter. Mr. Howe says it is not, but I think it is.

The CuairmaN: I think the Auditor General may have a word to say on
that.

The Wirness: I do not think I am divulging any secret when I say I know
that the Department of Finance is giving very serious consideration, in its
revision of the Consolidated Revenue Act, to providing some general safeguards
with respect to financial administration of Crown corporations. What they
have finally decided to do, I do not know, but I know they are thinking of it.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: We hope they are.
The CuamrMaN: Shall we carry on?

By Mr. Browne:

Q. This item of $440,000 has not been settled since you wrote this report?—
A. No, sir. It will not be settled until we know the actual loss. It is $440,000
but they have to make certain adjustments.

Q. Who is carrying that now?—A. It is being carried in the books of
the Department of Trade and Commerce.

Q. But it is the government that pays the money?—A. Yes, the govern-
ment.

e
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Mr. MacponngLL: I presume that will appear as another item in the esti-
mates and we will argue that it be passed—

The CramrMAN: The only way we can claim that is from the Mao govern-
ment, successors to Chiang-Kai-Shek.

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. Well, there is one section here that interests me, because I do not fully
understand it. You say: “At no time was the capacity of the purchaser to
g;&r’l the contract price in question.” Who was the purchaser?—A. A Chinese
o Q. Have they paid the contract price in full>—A. They paid the contraet

ice.

Q. T see.

The Cuammax: Now, we are heading for the “balance sheet of Canada.”

I think we had better treat the next 29 items as we did before. Let us start with
90, 51, and 52, the first three preliminary numbers.
... The Wirness: Mr. Chairman, might I say that the form has changed a
little from last year after what occurred one day when you were absent and
r. Croll was presiding. The statement which appears in paragraph 53, and a
little later on page 60, was just listed as such. Mr. Fraser said that it did not
mean a thing to him, and Mr. Croll agreed. I at once decided that when two
dl?‘tlnguished gentlemen were unanimous in the opinion that we did not explain
t,lr}gs I should revise my style. Therefore, this year I have proceeded by
glving a brief explanation of the items. They are not there as criticism but
Just as information.

Mr. MacpoxyeLL: Can you tell me at what page in the balance sheet you
show what appears here?

The Wirness: On pages 16 and 17 of the Public Accounts.
The Cramrman: We are on items 50 and 52.

By Myr. Fulton:

Q. Mr. Sellar, the last two sentences of paragraph 51 say: “However, the
$75 million gold and $6,500,000 United States currency included in Canada’s
Subscriptions were not revalued for balance sheet purposes. Accordingly, as at
March 31, 1950, that gold continued to be recorded at $35 per fine ounce and
the United States currency at par of exchange.” Your reference to “for balance
sheet purposes” means Canadian purposes?—A. Government of Canada. They
could have claimed that extra amount if they had wished.

Q. Do you know why that was not done?—A. No, sir.

The Camammman: Mr. Bryce will answer. ; .

Mr. Bryce: I think the answer to that question, sir, is that the only assets
On our balance sheet which we re-value when exchange rates alter are cash and
other current assets. These other items which Mr. Sellar has set down there
I his list we do not re-value when exchange rates alter. Now, our subscription
to the International Bank and the International Monetary Fund are listed with
oans and investments. If you will look at page 16 under the assets column,
Ine 3, at the little (1) and the little (ii), you will see where they appear; conse-
Quently, since we treat them as loans and investment we do not re-value those
Wwhen exchange rates alter. There is an incidental point. There are complicated
Provisions in the terms of the articles of agreement with the International Bank
and the International Monetary Fund that call for certain adjustments in sub-
Seriptions when the currency rates of a country alter. That has called on
Occasion for further subscriptions when our exchange rate decreased. That
explains, I think, the net increase and decrease, as I recall it. But the real
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point is that the alteration in exchange rate would not automatically result =
in our re-valuing. Our principle is to value these things at cost. rather than =
- current rate of exchange. g

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. Can you tell me whether the exchange rate increased the amount t0
our credit on the books of the International Bank?—A. I think one might ¥
summarize it by saying that we are required to maintain the value of our
subseription in terms of gold .or U.S. dollars so that when our exchange rate
alters—say that the Canadian dollar is not worth as much in terms of US. =
dollars—we have to make good the difference and make an adjustment. Those
regulations are complicated. I cannot recall the details of them. o

Q. In this case you would not actually need to do that, would you?—A.
These are not “on deposit” funds. I think perhaps Mr. Sellar in generalizing
very briefly may have given the impression that these are on deposit, but they =
are not, in fact. Our subscription required the payment of so much in gold, 80
much in Canadian funds and so on; and when paid they do not remain on deposit |
to our account there; they are part of the way in which our subseription was
made up. =

Mr. Fraser: I wonder if Mr. Sellar would give us a little further informa- ‘
tion with regards to items 51 to 53. ol

The CuaremaN: You mean that we should pass on to “assets” item 537

Mr. Fraser: Mr. Sellar made some reference to them.

The CramrmaN: We will get to them in a moment, just now I thought we
should finish with items 50, 51 and 52 so that we should proceed in an orderly :'7¢
way. d!

Mr. Macdonnell, did you have a question? !

Mr. MacpoNNELL: May I ask one or two questions which arise out of
the balance sheet on this item? Would that be proper?

The Cuamrman: If this is the only place. We will deal with the summary
of these items a little later on, but if it has reference to any particular item
it might be well to deal with it now; but if it can be dealt with later on, I
think we better leave it. Does it deal with one of these items from 53 to 797
If so, we had better leave it until then, so that questioning may proceed in an
orderly manner.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I am not quite sure.

The CramrmaN: The headings are not numerous. Suppose we leave open
these items 50, 51 and 52, and go on with item 53; then, if you do not find @&
place there to deal with your question we will come back to it. Is that fair?

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Yes.

The CuAlrMAN: Item 53, “assets.”

~

T

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. I would like to have Mr. Sellar comment just a little further on “assets”
—they appear in these items, 53 to 60—assets and liabilities—A. Well, I am not
sure exactly what you want, Mr. Fraser; but my last paragraph, which is number
79, expresses the hope that in the revision of the Consolidated Revenue and
Audit Act they will make an endeavour to declare what are assets and what
are liabilities for balance sheet purposes.

Q. Is that the point you have in mind there?—A. Yes. Item 53 is an
example to give you what items of assets are; and then items 54, 55 and so on
give you an explanation of what are in these big totals.

The CuamrMax: On item 54, “cash and other current assets”: ”
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By Myr. Stewart:
Q. With regard to item 54 I notice that the amount we have in blocked

- turrencies increased by an amount of $1,250,000. I was wondering if we could

With a settlement, with the Netherlands, finally settled off. You will remember

that after the war there was some trouble with blocked currencies there in

tonnection with soldiers during the period of occupation; and, of that amount,

$1,652,000 came in by reason of the Netherland blocked currenecy.

. Mr. MacponneLn: I think my question arises really under item 53. For

:;Sti;lce, I want to ask a question under the first item, cash and other current
sets. ‘

The Cuamman: That is the one we are on now.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Yes.

ave an explanation as to how that decrease occurred?—A. Mainly in connection

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. T am looking at the balance sheet, page 16, and I notice for 1950 a figure
of 37,9‘19,000, sinking fund; which apparently is a new figure because there is
Dothing in the preceding year. Can you explain that?—A. That is by reason
of the government of Canada assuming certain commitments of the govern-
ent of Newfoundland and associated with that issue, it is an English issue,
Was a sinking fund, and we took over the sinking fund. '

Q. Yes, that is right. Then, the next item, loans to crown corporations,
and so on, '

. The Cmamrman: Are we through with item 54? Item 55 “loans to, and
Ivestments in, crown agencies”: :

Mr. MacponNeLL: Mr. Chairman, I think we are still on item 53. I raised
& question on the balance sheet. '

.. The Cmamrman: They are all contained in a later item. We are now on
tem 55, loans to crown agencies.

Mr. Fraser: Would it not be wise, Mr. Chairman, just to take this now?
The Cramrman: Well, you see, Mr. Fraser, I just want to keep from going
I a haphazard direction.

Mr. Frasgr: That would not be haphazard, they are all related to one
another,

The Crarrman: We have them under their different headings. If we start
Questioning on all these twenty-two items we might run into an awful lot of
trouble. T suggest that we take item 54, and when we have dealt with that we
Proceed to item 55, Loans to and Investments in Crown Agencies.

Mr. MacponnNeLL: There is a question there. - I notice there that under
that heading in the balance sheet, railway and steamship companies, there is a
Teduction from $764 million to $743 million; is that an operating profit of the
Canadian National steamships?—A. Mr. Bryce will have to correct me, my
mpression is that the Canadian National Railways floated an equipment issue
In New York and took over certain advances that we had made and thereby
reduced our commitment.

Q. Well, could Mr. Bryce give us any information on that?

_ Mr. Brycr: Excuse me, sir, I was just trying to find the explanation of that. .
It is given I believe in a notation in the public accounts here, at page XLIV. In
the front part of the public accounts there is shown an explanation of the changes
I the railway item.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: An increase to the United Kingdom and other govern-
Mments of $104 million. Would that mean that there are other loans?
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The Wirness: Yes, those are advances made during the year. '

The CuAIRMAN: The next is item 56. Are we through with item 55? Then 56, :
“other loans and investments”. ‘

Mr. Browxg: How does that stand?

Mr. Fuuron: I see there is an increase of approximately $122 million; 18
that the total amount? N
The Wirness: No. Wait a minute I am taking the total figure. They aré =
up a little, sir. I am just running through them, but they are a few millions up. i
What happened, I might explain, is that the Parliament of Canada, I think, =
in 1946 granted authority to make loans to a total of $750 million to various =
other countries. But that loaning power expired at the end of some year, =

December 31 of either 1948 or 1949. I think it was 1948. There were some loan =

authorizations which had been approved then, but not all the money had been
advanced by that time. So this was just a cleaning up of those little pieces
that were left. I think you will find there has not been any substantial varia-
tion, bearing in mind that we are dealing with big figures.

Mr. Fovron: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Parliamentary Assistant con-
templates going to the Soviet Socialist Republic to see about this matter?

Mr. Sincrair: I would love to have an opportunity to go and if you would
urge the government to send me, I would be very grateful to you. ‘

Mr. Furrorn: Yes, and we would all be there to give you a final good-bye.
The CuamrMAN: Are there any further questions on item 56?7 ‘
Mr. MacponNELL: May I ask how these loans stand at the present time? "
The CrarrmaN: For what purpose, for the balance sheet?

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. Yes. Could anything be said about that?—A. You are now looking ab
that list in item 56, are you not, sir? >

Q. That is right.—A. “France, Netherlands, Belgium, China, Roumani,
gorway, Czechoslovakia, Indonesia, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, and

reece.” o

As I told Mr. Thatcher the other day, the loans to Greece and to Roumania
have been in default for quite a number of years, but they are still carried m =
the balance sheet at their face value.

Q. Is that done as a matter of international courtesy?—A. In all other
cases the interest has been regularly paid by the borrowers.

Q. Is there any sinking fund?—A. Whatever provision there is in the =
agreement for payment of principal by instalments is being honoured. T am =
talking now of the fiscal year ending last March. 'They have been honoured and
they are carried at their face value.

Q. Even those that are in default?

The CualrMAN: No, except Roumania and Greece.

By Mr. Macdonnell: :

Q. I thought you intimated that they were being carried too.—A. Those
are the two which are in default. The rest are not in default yet.

Q. But did you not say that those two were being carried at their face
value?—A. Yes, sir, despite the fact they are in default. :

Mr. Fuuron: Mr. Chairman, have we had a previous explanation of what .
the loan to Russia was made for?

The CuarRMAN: I think we went into it last year.

The Wrrxess: I would have to speak from memory. But my recollection
is that it was mainly for flour. :
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By Mr. Fulton:

1 Q. During the war?—A. At the end of the war, right at the end of the war

gllen the Germans had been pushed out of Russia, there was great distress

Bere and they needed certain food supplies and possibly some farm implements.
ut essentially my recollection is that it was for flour in particular.

A Q. Do you recall the terms for repayment? Is it due for repayment?—
ar Mr. Bryce would have to reply to your question, because the basis was not

nalized at first.

The CrHarvAN: Would you care to speak about that, Mr. Bryce?

48 (%\/Ir. Bryce: Mr. Chairman, it might help to refer to page 24 where under
t tedule H you will find under the heading “Union of Soviet Socialist Republies”

Wo items. This $11 million odd that Mr. Sellar reports is divided into two items,
555)0, a loan under the Export Credits Insurance Act, which is shown at

r866,098.63. This was a loan for the purchase of electric generating equip-
,Tll‘llﬁnt. I believe it was originally arranged in 1944 and was completed in 1945.
12t loan has been repaid in the past year, repaid in full. The second is for
advances that were made just following the close of the war, in the month of
eptember, 1945. The armed forces of the USSR at that time were engaged in

Operations on the mainland, in Manchuria. They had requested flour and
certam_o_tl;xer supplies. These were being shipped as Mutual Aid prior to the end
of hostilities. I do not have the amount shipped following the end of hostilities,

}_ﬂ; the general understanding was that the USSR was to repay it in accordance
With terms and credits to be arranged. I am sorry that I cannot tell you from
n}emory exactly what the arrangement was with the USSR but I believe
We have now worked out the terms of repayment, within the last six or eight
months.

Mr. Furron: Thank you. What about this $125,000 odd which is shown
48 a net decrease in the year in question? Is that an actual repayment, or is it
4 result of revaluation of currency?

Mr. Bryce: It would not be a question of currency revaluation. I am not
certain of the reason for it. It would be necessary to look under the Trade
and Commerce items here. It would take a moment or two, but I could do it
for you if you wish. I am only speaking from memory, but I believe it
Tepresents an item which was originally billed to the USSR, and when we went
mto the details we found it was diverted at the last moment and this adjust-
ment really represents a proper change in the accounts presented to the USSR.

The Cramrman: Are you satisfied with this? All right.

Mr. Fuuron: China has reduced their loan by $277,000 odd. Is that just
éhboolgkeeping adjustment? Surely there is no money being collected from

ina?
~ Mr. Bryce: China’s loan called for certain repayments of principal, I believe,
In the year in quetsion, which were made at the time, sir. This was prior to
March, a year age.

_ The Wirxmss: With respect to the tin you mentioned a while ago in connec-
tion with the Canadian Commercial Corporation, that tin was acquired from
China and China applied the value on her loan here. :

_ Mr. MacponneLL: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if anything can be usefully said
With regard to the financial operations of the International Monetary Fund and
the International Banks for Reconstruction? We have got a fairly heavy invest-
ment in both, and after all they are business enterprises as well as public
Institutions? :

Mr. Brycr: Are you asking, sir, that we make a report here on the status
of those institutions?

Mr. MacponNELL: I am. You have got a large investment in them.
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Mr. Bryce: The Bretton Woods Agreement Act is the statute which auth-

orizes our adherence to these institutions. It calls for a report which is tabled
in Parliament each year. It is a separate report and you can get it.

The CaAlRMAN: You can get all the details in the report.

Mr. MacpoxNeLL: I thought it might be of interest if Mr. Bryce himself
would care to say a word about the position.

The Cramrman: He might summarize it in a few sentences for us, but I would
call attention to the fact that we are only up to item 56 and we have had three
meetings so far. I would like to keep to the schedule given to me by the com-
mittee. However, if you want to spend the rest of the morning on this subject,
I would not object.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I did not intend to spend more than two or three minutes.

Mr. Bryce: These are very large financial institutions, Mr. Chairman, and
I have not been closely in touch with them in the last year or so. Therefore, I
would not be able to give you a very good account.

The CuamrMmAN: Let us refer the members to the report tabled in the House

on these institutions. Now, item 57 “Deferred Charges”. Are there any

questions?

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. I would like to hear a comment on it.—A. This is simply amortization
of the cost of loan flotation as started in 1931. In that year we had a tremendous
refinancing operation in connection with the first war maturities, something in
the order of $15 hundred million. That was then regarded as an almost incon-
ceivable sum. We did not know how we were going to deal with it. So this
represents an amortization of those operations, and of operations plus loans made
gince. They make up that item.

The CuaRMAN: Are there any further questions?

The Wirness: If you want the details, you will find them on page 54 of the
Public Accounts.

The CuAarMAN: Now, item 58, “Sundry Suspense Accounts”.

The WirNess: That haq dwappeared sir.

Mr. Macpox~eLL: How?

The Wirness: By payments to the government of Canada.

The CramrMAN: Item 59 “Reserve for Possible Losses on Ultimate Realiza-
tion of Active Assets”.

Mr. MacponNELL: Might we have a word as to the inerease from $25 million
to $75 million, and just how the basis was arrived at?

The CrairmaN: Would you mind repeating your question, please.

Mr. MacoonNELL: Might we have a word as to the basis on which this was
arrived at? We have come up from $25 million to $75 million. Is it just a good
guess, or is it the result of a caleulation?

Mr. Bryce: In order to answer your questmn I would have to go into
broader questions on this reserve. I shall put it as briefly as I can.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Is there any reason why we should not go into them?

Mr. Bryce: Not at all, sir.

The CuamrMAN: I am in the hands of the Committee.

Mr. Bryce: The increase in the amount set up was made after we had gone

“extensively into the foreign lending field. It reflects the fact that we have a good
many substantial loans to other countries outstanding and it seemed to the
department and Minister of Finance that it was appropriate, when that was the
case, to make a larger provision than had been made previously.
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Mr. MacpoxNeLL: How is that treated?

Mr. Bryce: Well, sir, this reserve is merely a device that is used in valuing
our assets on the balance sheet. You will recall that we include as active assets,
as was Indicated to the committee last year, only those which are of a cash or
Similar nature, on the one hand, or which yield us a return, on the other, or
Which have yielded us a return.

Tl}ose are normally valued at cost until they are written down under some
authority to write down the value. In order to be more conservative, however,
In the valuation, the Minister of Finance, as noted here by the Auditor General,
tommencing in 1941, adopted the practice of putting in an amount to reserve,
Which, in effect, was merely writing down the total value put on all active assets
0 the balance sheet; it does not represent anything more, in my opinion, than
simply reducing the valuation.

Mr. Macoonxern: But you do really make that actual reduction of the
assets in your balance sheet.

. Mr. Brycr: Yes, sir, but it is not marked against any particular items
n ’C.he.balance sheet. Particular items are only dealt with by writing them off
against that reserve in the way that Mr. Sellar recounts here in this paragraph.

ow, the reserve is established and the amounts are added to it under the
general authority, and instructions to the Minister of Finance contained in the
Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act in regard to keeping the Public Accounts.

e have been advised that it is not necessary to secure any statutory authority
for setting up the amounts in this reserve; however, we do not make charges to
that. reserve without statutory authority. Consequently, the point at which
Parliament enters into the process, is really twofold: first, in the basic direction
to the Minister of Finance to keep the accounts on a basis which gives a proper
Picture of the government’s financial position and, secondly, in authorizing the
writeoff of particular items. Now, when one gets into the question of writing
off ltems, claims that the government of Canada has, one gets into a very
Intricate legal argument that I cannot attempt to expound in detail because
1t leads into the various prerogatives of His Majesty in regard to foregoing
claims and things of that nature, which, I understand, from discussing it with

e Department of Justice from time to time is an exceedingly intricate matter.
0 general, I would say the practice has been that no items are written off to
Teserves. In other words, we do not translate this general reduction that is made
In the value of all our active assets into reductions on individual items, without
pal‘h_amentaﬂry authority to do so. Now, as Mr. Sellar points out, in 1946-47,
and in 1947-48, fairly substantial amounts were transferred in effect from this
general reserve to be reflected in the lower value of individual items in the
balar}ce sheet on the authority of the Surplus Crown Assets' Act and the Western
Tovinces Treasury Bills and the Natural Resources Settlement Act. During the

- Year which the committee is reviewing there was only a small write off of a

alance of a loan made to the High Test Lignite Coal Company.

Mr. MacponneLL: As a result you show practically $75 million as in
addition to this reserve.

Mr. Bryce: Yes. That particular writeoff was made under the authority
of the Department of Justice Act, which authorizes the Minister to make com-
Promises during the course of litigation. :

: Mr.. Masor: In other words, you are increasing your reserve just to be
I a position to meet your writeoffs, as they would come, if necessary.

Mr. Bryce: Yes, sir. Now, as to the amount of the reserve, obviously no
one can be precise; at least it seems to us in the department that no one can be
Precise in this day and age, saying how much we can expect to recover on loans
made to various countries in various parts of the world.
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Mr. MacponNeLL: Will you just make clear what happens, what is the
practlc‘z;l effect of making a loan? Where does it appear when we actually make
a loan 3

Mr. Bryce: Take, for example, the loan to Rumania, which Mr. Sellar =
pointed out has been in default for many years. If we wished to write that off =
entirely, and not put any value on it, as I would picture it we would have to =
get authority to do that in some legislative form. We would expect to have an
item in the estimates authorizing the writeoff, and then we would take this item =
out and we would reduce the amount of the reserve by an equivalent amount. =

Now, there are various reasons that determine when you want to do that. =
You do not want to do it if there appears to be some chances of obtaining settle-
ment, which would be prejudiced by public action recognizing that it is worth- =
less. Moreover, in cases of this kind there may be diplomatic questions involved; =
you may not want to do it at a particular time for one reason or another. =
There are a whole variety of considerations that enter into the question of the =
writeoff. In general, we endeavour to build the reserve up to the point where =
we are not really inflating the total of our active assets. .

Mr. BrowNE: Is this $320 million represented by bonds or cash or is it just =
an entry in the books? '

Mr. Bryce: Not at all, sir. It is just an entry in the books, in the balance
sheet. We have shown, as you will note on page 16, the total of active assets as
$5,427,000,000 just below line No. 6. Now, if it is the judgment of the Minister
of Finance that that is probably too high—the value is high—he merely makes &
deduction from it on the books of this amount. l

Mr. BrowNE: It is increased by $75 million over last year.

Mr. Bryce: Yes this increase is practically $75 million over last year. I

matter, would want to claim that there is omniscience in the Department of g
Flnance which engbles it to say that $75 million is the exactly right figure rather
than $85 million or $65 million. It is just a question of judgment. .
The CuamrMAN: Shall we pass on to “liabilities”, item 60?. Item 60 i8
covered in detail by items 61 to 67, which we now pass onto. We will take up
each of these items in turn. Item 61, “Floating Debts”.
Mr. Furron: There is no paragraph for the Province Debt Account?
The CuARMAN: That is later on, in item 78.
Mr. Furron: I beg your pardon. :
The CrarMaN: Shall we go on with item 61, floating debts? Any questions? =

By Mr. Macdonnell :
Q. That item of $51 million of matured funded debt securities not presented
for reduction. Are any of these long outstanding?—A. Some of them are, sir.
Q. It seems to be a large amount.—A. It is a habit of human nature to
be slow in turning in their matured bonds and securities.

By Mr. Browne:

Q. Are they liable to have been lost or destroyed?—A. We do not know.
Q. How long do you keep those items going?—A. Always. We have the
hablhty However, we do not pay interest after maturity.

Mr. Fraser: Somebody might find them in an old mattress or something
and turn them in.

The CuHAIRMAN: Let us all have a mattress hunt.

The Wirness: I know of a case where a $1,000 certificate was framed and
hung on the livingroom wall.
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The Cuamrman: Shall we pass on to item 62?7 :

Mr. Fraser: Common school funds, what is meant by that? There is an
account, for that amounting to $2,678,000.

The Wrrness: It is also referred to in item 74. Shall I take the two of
them together, Mr. Chairman?

The Cratrman: Yes.

The Wrrngss: A little over 100 years ago one million acres in the counties
of Huron, Grey, Perth and Bruce were set aside for the support of schools in
the province of Canada. A little later it was provided that 25 per cent of the
revenue from the sale of that land would be applied to the construction of roads.
Thg land in question was sold on an average at 10 shillings an acre, payable
by instalments. At the time of Confederation there was still some of the land
to be sold, and a great deal of the money to be collected.

The money that had been received had just been thrown into the ordinary
accounts of the government and had disappeared. As a result of Confederation,
the provinces of Quebec and Ontario each became entitled to a share of this
money. It was a matter of great controversy. Ontario took the view that, as
this land was in Ontario, they should not be required to support schools in the
Province of Quebec.

An arbitration board in the 1870’s came to the conclusion that until all of
the money was collected and the land sold the distribution of the money could
not be made, and it directed the Canadian government to continue to be the
custodian and to hold the money. In the 1890’s it was decided that the exact
sums could be fixed, and it was determined that Ontario was entitled to so
much and Quebec to so much.

The dispute then was about the interest rate which the government of
Canada should pay. The arbitration board decided that 5 per cent was a
fair rate, and ever since that day we have paid 5 per cent of the share of the
province of Ontario and 5 per cent of the share of the province of Quebec.
ther 1;/[1*. Browxe: That is another book item; there is mo cash represented

e

The Wrrness: There is an actual cash outlay every year. As a matter of
fact, the government of Canada never got this money from the old province of
Canada—the old province of Canada had spent it—but the government of
Canada assumed the obligation.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. That interest is paid out of consolidated revenue fund?—A. Every year.
Q. That will be forever, will it?—A. Unless you take some action. The prov-
ince of Ontario is annually paid $71,229.86, and the provinee of Quebec $62,658.68.

Mr. Sincramr: Another handout to Ontario and Quebec.

The WrrNEss: At the time of this arbitration back in the 1890’s, the parlia-
ment of Canada passed an Act to the effect that as the result of this arbitration,
the government might pay off the sum to the provinces of Ontario and Quebec.

0 action was then taken and no action has since been taken. It seems to me
a_l{ttle unrealistic in this day and age when the provinces are spending
millions of dollars on education that the government of Canada should be
required to be the custodian of $2,600,000. I think that some time, when
there are negotiations proceeding between the provinces, this matter could
be settled and the amount taken out of the balance sheet. ]

Mr. Sincratr: We are still paying the 5 per cent?

The Wirness: Yes, and we also have to handle the school land funds of
th_e _prairie provinces. That also is an allied matter, and it amounts to $33
million, in round figures, and the rate is 4 per cent.
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Mr. Fraser: What do we pay on that?

The WitNEss: 4 per cent.

Mr. Sincrair: It is the old story, nothing for British Columbia; no
percentage.

Mr. Bexmickson: Well let us recommend that we do something about the
settlement of these accounts.

The CaARMAN: Yes, we will take that into consideration for our report.

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. What are Indian trust funds?—A. Indian trust funds are derived from
more than one source. Indian trust funds arise from the sale of Indian lands.
They are also moneys arising out of treaty rights which the Indians have, m
some cases from the United States government, and in other cases from the
British government.

Q. What is the nature of the trust?—A. It is provided by the Indian Act that
these moneys shall be held by the government of Canada, and that the band
has control over'the funds and may apply the interest on them for the purchase
of various things, such as the erection of schools, purchases of farm implements,
pure bred stock, and so on, but that requires the consent of the Governor in
Council.

Q. That is earmarked for each local band?—A. Each band has its fund.

By Mr. Browne:

Q. Is there any accounting of that here?—A. No.
Q. Where would it show?—A. In Department of Indian Affairs, although I
am not sure where it would be. I will find out for you.

By Mr. Fraser:
Q. Out of that money the Indian bands pay their people? They give them
allowances out of the fund—so much a month?—A. Yes, that also comes into it.
Q. That comes out of the band funds?—A. Yes.
Mr. CampNEY: I notice the item of deposits in post office savings bank—can
you tell us what rate of interest is paid on those deposits?
The Wirness: 2 per cent.

Mr. Browne: What interest is paid on the $20 million for Newfoundland?

The WirNEss: 2 5-8 per cent.

The Cramrman: Shall we go on to item 63, “insurance, pension and guar-
anty accounts?”

Mr. MacpoxNELL: In the second paragraph I see: “Although the unemploy-
ment insurance fund totalled $594,920,000 as of March 31, only $16,889,000 is
reflected in the balance sheet under this heading, as it is an administrative
practice to treat uninvested amounts as a liability of the government.”

I am just wondering if there is any point of interest that arises out of the
‘second paragraph?

The balance of the $594,920,000 is invested in our own obligations?

The Wirness: Yes, sir, and that list is set out on page K-33. It is all in
government of Canada and Canadian National Railways Securities.

The CrAlRMAN: Perhaps Mr. Bryce would like to speak on that?

Mr, Bryce: If you would permit me I would just point out that actually we
show on the schedules to our balance sheet the total amount of the unemploy-
ment insurance fund, less investments in bonds and accrued interest. Mr, Sellar’s

records here note the amount, but the schedules do show the total less the
investments.
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Mr. Browxe: Where is that?

Mr. Bryce: On page 32 under schedule O, under Department of Labour,
unemployment insurance fund, $594,920,000 less $578,000,000 invested in bonds
and accrued interest.

Mr. MacponNgLL: Will Mr. Bryce explain to us the exact effect of taking
these contributions under the unemployment insurance fund and then lending
’g}%eltill to ;ohc Dominion of Canada, instead of making an independent investment

hem

off i\gr. Bryce: Are you speaking, sir, of the financial effect or the economic
ect?

Mr. MacponxeLL: Both.

Mr. Bryce: Economically, it is just a form of savings done through contri-
butions to the fund by employers and employees, and by the government through
1ts contribution. I would say, economically, it is on much the same footing as
Sayings carried on through many other institutional channels. Financially, it is
Just a means of recording future obligations under the Unemployment Insurance
Act, which are contingent of course upon the degree of employment.

Mr. MacponneLL: To what is there really a concealed liability of our own?
When we come to pay that out we have not got any outside assets ourselves? We
have to find the money somewhere else? g

Mr. Brycr: It would have to be found from the fund—selling Dominion
Government, securities.

Mr. MacponNeLL: Which we pay?

The Wirness: They purchased those securities on the market.

Mr. MacponnenL: Yes, I realize that, but when they have realized the
money_

The Wirxess: They sell them back to the market.

Mr. Bryce: They would sell them back again on the market. There is a
question of the effect of putting them on the security market.

_I\C/lIr. Browne: Everything is all right unless we strike a bust, or depression
period.

The Cramman: Shall we go on to item 64, “deferred credit.”

_ Mr. MacpoxnyeLL: What is the expectation of being able to work this out
with the Netherlands?

The Wirngss: It is all arranged. In my own opinion there was a little
slowness in the beginning in working out the accounting application; it should
not have been necessary to put it in, but everything is in order.

The Cuamrman: Item 65, “sundry suspense accounts.”

Mr. MacponngLL: There is nothing in that.

. The Cuamrman: Item 66, “reserve for conditional benefits under Veterans
Land Act 1942.”

bl

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. Now what is meant by this?>—A. If a veteran carries out his contract
under the Veterans’ Land Act, at the end of ten years he becomes entitled to a
credit of 23-3 per cent of his loan. Ten years has not yet elapsed, and therefore
the government is accumulating these eredits for loans in good order on which
men will qualify. .

Q. They pay so much into the fund each year?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So at the end of the ten year period— —A. You have not got a sudden load
On your expenditures.
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it in full? .
The WrrNess: You will have to ask the Veterans’ Land Act people. 13.
think I know the answer, but I am not sure. 3
Mr. Fraser: They are not entitled to the land until the ten years are up?
The WrrNess: No, not the credit. -
Mr. Fraser: Not even if they pay 1t in full.
Mr. WricHT: Is this amount credited to this account when the veteran
completes his contract, as far as payments are concerned, or is it left there
until the end? B
- g‘lée Wirness: My opinion is that he is protected, but I am not sure of i
e Ac .
The CuAlRMAN: Item 67, “funded debt.”

By Mr. Browne: -
Q. I would like to ask Mr. Sellar a question here. Why does he represent
the Newfoundland debt in dollars when it is a sterling debt?—A. By the law
governing the preparation of the sccounts of Canada we are requlred to set
them up in dollars. N
Q. I understand that the British Government required that to be paid in
Canadian dollars?—A. No, payment is in accordance with the terms of the

issue.

morning.
Mr. Fraser: What item have we finished?
The Cramrman: We have finished item 67, and the next item will be 68.

The committee adjourned to meet again Tuesday, March 20, 1951 ab
11.00 a.m.

The CuAmRMAN: Well, gentlemen we shall now adjourn until Tuesday ‘
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T The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11:00 o’clock a.m.
he Chairman, Mr. L, Philippe Picard, presided.

B Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Blue, Boisvert, Boivin, Brisson,
IFOWpe (St. John’s West), Cauchon, Cavers, Cloutier, Croll, Cruickshank,

Memmg, Fraser, Gauthier (Portneuf), Helme, Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Larson,
acdonnell (Greenwood), Major, Nowlan, Picard, Riley, Robinson, Sinclair.

In attendance: Mr. Watson Sellar, C.M.G., Auditor General; Mr. R. B.
Iyce, Assistant Deputy Minister of Finance.

The Chairman paid a tribute to the memory of the late Mr. Karl Homuth
Who was g member of the Committee at the time of his sudden death. He
lnforn)gd the Committee that on behalf of himself and the members of the

ommittee he would convey an expression of sympathy to the family of the
eceased member,

a Th’e;‘ Committee resumed article by article consideration of the Auditor
eneral’s Report for the fiscal year ending March 31st, 1950.

R Mr. Watson Sellar was again questioned on the various articles of his
€port, under study, and Mr. R. B. Bryce was asked to answer certain specific
Questions arising out of the Auditor General’s examination.

At 12:45 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to meet again at the call
of the Chair, ;

ANTOINE CHASSE,
Clerk of the Commattee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoOMMONS,
Marcua 20, 1951.

Th The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.00 a.m.
e Chairman, Mr. L. Philippe Picard, presided.

1 The Crammax: Gentlemen, I feel I should not open this meeting without
ofvior'd to express my feelings, and, I am sure, the feelings of all the members
this committee, on the demise of one of our members, Mr. Karl Homuth.
¢ ith your permission, I intend to convey our condolence to Mr. Homuth’s
amily. Mr. Homuth had been a very active and energetic member of the
ouse and of its committees up to the time he became ill a year or so ago.
: sat with him on the War Expenditures committee and on one of the sub-
omn}lttees, and I appreciated the work he did there and his fair approach to
guestlons brought before the committees. I think it is proper that we should
onvey our sympathy to his family.
T 1B3€f0re we carry on with the next item of business, “Foreign Exchange Con-
Sk oard advances,” T think Mr. Sellar has an answer to one or two questions
sked the other day by Mr. Fraser.

Mr. Watson Sellar, Auditor General, called:
Mr. R. B. Bryce, Assistant Deputy Minister of Finance, in attendance.

the f;rhe Wirxess: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Fraser asked me two questions. On
o rst day he asked: What were the surrendered profit of the Foreign Exchange
ontrol Board for the year 1949? The figure is $8,438,000. That is for the
calendar yeat 1949,
& tThe other question was asked at the last meeting when Mr. Fraser enquired
I‘etuo what was the amount of the allowance for rental in connection with the
m rning officer in Peterborough West who occupied a government office. The
emorandum I received from my officer who examines these accounts reads:
ere has been no payment for rent of space during the general election to Mr.
- A. McClellan, returning officer, Peterborough West.

B The Crammaxn: We have reached item 68: “Foreign Exchange Control
oard advances.” |

By Mr. Fleming:

M Q I would like to ask one question about the first answer. The figure
is L. Sellar gives us was a figure of profit?—A. The surrendered profit. There
also the profit by appreciation of securities arising out of sale of securities.

Q. Could Mr. Sellar give us the figure on profit?—A. Surrendered profit?
b Q. Yes—A. This was at the year end what they surrendered and turned
ack to the government. £
Wb Q. Is it the practice of the board each year to surrender all profit, to turn
A f‘:}; to the government?—A. Yes, at the end of each year. They are required

si Q. So they start each new year with an absolutely clean slate?—A. Yes,
I, they are required by law.

99
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Mr. Fraser: That profit goes into the consolidated revenue fund?
The Wirness: The general consolidated revenue fund of Canada.

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. Since you have had that brought up to date, there has been no shift it =
the Canadian dollar since? And, were these, as a matter of interest, ever brought
up to date?—A. The profit for the year 1950 was $7,400,000—I am using round
figures.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. You are distinguishing profit from revaluation? When they revalue
there would be a surrenderable surplus remaining? The information given was
that this revaluation made no difference in the surrenderable profit, that the =
surrenderable profit is the profit they make on the actual sales?—A. Yes, s8I
that is what was realized. ;

Q. Could Mr. Sellar tell us anything about the effect of the revaluation
surplus or loss in connection with the last revaluation of the dollar?—A.
would be going from memory, sir; and I would hesitate to state the figures,
although I examined that financial statement about 10 days ago and it will
be submitted to the House of Commons very shortly. T haven’t the figures
clearly in my head.

Mr. Fraser: With regard to the last sentence of that item, could Mr.
Sellar actually state what happened to that $46,000,000 of the remainder?
It is not reflected in the balance sheet of Canada here.

The Wirness: That remains with the Foreign Exchange Control Board
until the money is realized. It will be then, at the end of the next year, paid
over to the government of Canada.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. I wonder if Mr. Sellar could tell us in what form the Foreign Exchangé
Control Board is now holding its reserves? Have you the proportions 1B
United States dollars and gold?—A. They are permitted to make investments
in short term securities and some of them will be in dollars, and some in U.S.
trelasury securities—short term, of course—and so on, and they will have someé
gold.

Q. Do you know the proportion of gold as compared with United States
dollars?—A. The amount of gold has always been relatively low in relation
i to what we need because gold does not produce income and costs money t0
! keep.

Q. What has been the trend of the holdings as to the gold on one hand
and United States dollars on the other?—A. When they use the term “United
States dollars” you include U.S. securities?

Q. Quite so—A. They have always been much larger. I would say the
ratio might be ten to one.

Q. Has there been any change in the trend in that respect?—A. There
has been no change in practice, as far as I can observe.

) Q. May I take it in so far as the holdings of the board are concerned as
§ between gold and United States exchange whether dollars or short term
° securities, that it would be about one dollar of gold to ten dollars of securities?
| —A. I may be accurate there, I may not be but I am emphasizing that the
| vast majority of the securities in the portfolio of the Foreign Exchange Control |
flo3 - Board are U.S. securities that are producing some income.

i Q. There has been no trend toward an increase in the proportion of gold
i in the light of the inflation in the United States and the loss of confidence in
i the United States dollar?—A. I have no information as to that, sir; because
|
ﬁ
i
!

, T audit the accounts, I do not watch foreign exchange policy.
i Some Hon. MemBErs: Hear, hear.
.‘; - v
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By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. Was the ordinary investment policy followed—I mean, just as in any
other portfolio—has there' been an endeavour to build up that portfolio; or,
would you know that?—A. I would not know that. You would have to have one
of the officers of the Foreign Exchange Control Board here, or someone from
the Department of Finance, ¥

The Cramrman: Perhaps Mr. Bryce would care to say something on that.

Mr. Bryce: As I understand it, the report of the Foreign Exchange Control
Board was not available when the legislation was brought down in the House
the other day, but it was indicated then that it would be brought down to the
Hoqse very shortly. I expect as usual it will deal with that question of the
details comprising the holdings of the board at the end of December. I am
sorry that I do not know the details myself at this stage.

Mr. MacpoxNeLL: Is there any reason you can think of why that would
figt;l‘?e dealt with like any other investment—keeping a constant eye on valua-

Mr. Bryce: No, sir.

The Cramman: Are you satisfied that we have finished with item 68?
Shall we go on to item 69, “securities investment account”?

. Mr. MacponseLL: Would Mr. Bryce give us some details of that security
Mvestment account? I know in general it has to do with supporting the market.

at was stated in the memorandum used by the minister in the House
yesterday, and you will recall that he &tated that that account was made up
of several accounts, several investment sources.

Mr. Bryce: In answer to that, sir, I may say that I believe there are
Several sub-accounts within this. There is one known as the “X” account,

ealings in marketable Canadian securities; then there is another kind known
s the “Y” account, dealings in securities of the Canadian government; and
& third, 1 believe, an account in which securities were held that were being
Purchased by the government for its employees under the employees purchase
Plan. T am not certain—I do not believe that I have here the details as to
these three separate accounts and how they relate; but the total balance in

at account at the end of the year is, of course, shown on our balance sheet,
Page 16, under assets, under cash and other current assets, in the security
mvestment account—$18,690,000 odd.

Mr. MacponneLL: Was that account closed out?

Mr. Bryce: The account as a whole was still open at that time, but I am
ot sure of the details; I think the “X” account operation, the operation for
deahng in Canadian marketable securities, had been closed out by that time.

Mr. Macpon~NELL: Why?

Mr. Bryce: Because the securities in it had been sold; as part of the market
Oberations being carried on through that account.

Mr. MacpoxneLL: If it had been operated in the way you stated would it
Dot naturally have been a continuing account?

_Mr. Brycr: This account, of course, does not include actual cash balances
Which are used for the purchase of our securities. It was an account which
Was automatically created by the purchase of securities and other holdings for
this purpose and when the securities are sold that have been purchased and put
Into that account, then the account itself diminishes or disappears.

Mr. MacpoxNeLL: What is the employees purchase account?

Mr. Bryce: The employees purchase account, sir, is in Canadian savings
b_onds. The government just like any other employer makes payroll deduc-
tions on behalf of its employees; and when the payroll deductions have been
completed the bonds are turned over to the employee.
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Mr. CroLr: Would Mr. Bryce tell us whether these check offs are voluntary
or revocable, or both?

Mr, FLeming: Well, they are not statutory anyway.

Mr. Bryce: They are certainly voluntary. Whether they are revocable
without loss, I am not certain.

Mr. MAcpoNNELL: Just one question there. Mr. Chairman, there has been
a loss there of $8,000,000. Am I right in assuming that none of that loss has
been applied to the employee purchase scheme, but they did have a yery con-
siderable loss.

Mr. Bryce: No. The arrangement for that was not such as to involve any
loss; except an occasional loss where a bond has not been delivered, and those
are covered by a specific appropriation under the Department, of Finance in the
estimates. I can look that up for the year the committee is reviewing. If you
look under the demobilization and reconversion votes in Finance, for 1949-50,
you will see a heading Employees Plan—and two votes, vote 95 for purchase
of Canada Savings Bonds, administration, $89,710; and vote 96, “to provide,
subject to the approval of Treasury Board, for replacement of bonds lost in
mails and for reimbursement of accounts incorrectly charged with repayments,
$2,500.”

The CrARMAN: I think the Auditor General might want to comment on
this item of securities investment account.

The Wrrness: There is very little I can add to what Mr. Bryce has said.
I can give you the figures of Canada Savings Bonds, they amounted to
$9,066,000 that year. The other two big items were United Kingdom Treasury
bills representing 2,225,000 pounds, and the Newfoundland 3 per cent guaranteed
stock, representing £761,000. Both of those arise out of the sale of codfish by
the Newfoundland Association of Fish Exporters Limited. They were sales of
codfish in sterling areas under an agreement with the United Kingdom whereby
the money would be held in the Bank of England. By the terms of union, and
the supplementary replies to questions tabled by Mr. St. Laurent, the govern-
ment of Canada undertook to take over those sterling balances. They were
in that account at the end of the year. It was an unusual place to put them,
and I think they have been transferred to a more appropriate account.

Mr. Freming: Before we go any further, I have one more question I
would like to ask Mr. Bryce about that “X” account. What relationship has
the use of that “X” account to attempts made through other government
channels; which I understand to be principally the Bank of Canada, to support
the price of Dominion of Canada Bonds on the market?

Mr. Brycr: Well, this is one of the accounts at the disposal of the govern-
ment and its fiscal agents, the Bank of Canada, for operating in the securities
market. Just how they use it in relation to the funds of the Bank of Canada
would be something that would be better learned from someone who is more
versed in the actual operations. It is used that way, as has been indicated, but
to what degree and in what manner I cannot say from personal knowledge.

Mr. FLeminG: You are not in a position to comment on the way the govern-

ment and the Bank of Canada operate together in using such a fund as this?

Mr. Bryce: No, but I know that it is used in that way from time to time.
Just in what manner I cannot say, because I am not sufficient of a marketing
technician to explain it.

The CHARMAN: Are there any further questions?

By Mr. Browne:
Q. Yes, I was going to ask Mr. Sellar how that sterling arrangement is being
carried on now? The fish is sold to Europe and paid for in sterling. How is the
conversion into dollars made?—A. When you use the word “now” I am not able
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to answer. The original agreement was between the Newfoundland government

- and the Newfoundland Association of Fish Exporters Limited. My understanding

18 that the Newfoundland government and this corporation had an agreement

Whereby the Newfoundland government placed Newfoundland currency at the

disposal of the corporation in exchange for those sterling securities. The
veoundllan-d government accumulated those securities as a form of reserve for

retirement of its debt, and that was how, at the time, the government of Canada

agreed to assume those sterling balances. You would have to ask the Department

of Finance what the situation is today. I will know it in three weeks but at
€ moment I do not.

Q. Is it related to the Foreign Exchange Control Board, and does Mr. Bryce
know ahout it?—A. No; it has no relation to the Foreign Exchange Control
Board but it is blocked currency.

Mr. Brycm: It relates more to the United Kingdom Foreign Exchange
Cont.r()l. The government, through this arrangement for the disposal of fish,
acquires certain sterling that cannot be used except for limited purposes, and, by
arrangements with the United Kingdom, we are able to invest some of if in these
fecurities, Those investments being temporary and made with idle funds,
teCthaHy should go in this security investment account, although this is not
the Sort, of investment that is normal. My explanation of the categories covered
I this account was deficient, and, frankly, I did not mention it, because I did
Dot realize that was where we put these securities, although I see them there
NOW in the Public Accounts.

Mr. Browne: What securities do vou buy?

Mr. Brycr: That is noted on page 36, in paragraph F, treasury bills of the

_United' Kingdom and 3 per cent Newfoundland guaranteed stock.

Mr. Browne: You buy up stock over there?
Mr. Bryce: Yes, some of it.
Mr. Macpox~rLL: Referring to Mr. Fleming’s question about the effect of

‘these funds on the support of Canadian securities, in the statement, filed by the

Mmister vesterday, I think the total figure of the operation was given at $2,715
illion, if my memory serves me correctly. Could Mr. Bryee give us, by
educting that from other funds, the magnitude of the operation. It may be
t at there was active buying and selling and that it dees not amount to as much
81t sounds,  What is the sienificance of that $2,715 million in terms of support?

. The Cuamman: That is a question which is not relevant to what we are
OINg now. It js most interesting after last night’s statement, but we would be
gr.nl?ftil‘kin‘g on this year’s accounts when dealing with the statement made last
1ght.

. Mr. Macooxxgrn: I think the statement made was with reference to the
Writing off of $8,300,000. :

The Cramrman: Yes.

Mr. Bryce: I believe that Mr. Macdonnell’s figures are approximately
orrect. I am speaking from memory, but that $2,700 million in purchases or
I sales (the two would not differ very much from the total purchases and total
Sales) extended over a period of ten years, or nine years. It would work out
sOm‘:x)%thing on the order of $300 million to be purchased per year—perhaps

million.

Mr. MacpoxxeLL: Of course it would only be done in times of need and we
are not getting the real picture if we average it over ten years?

Mr. Bryce: Quite right, and in some years, purchases would be very much
ore than sales, and in other years it would be the other way around. It is
really part of the whole process of monetary management. This element is an
additional instrument of the monetary management—in addition to the operation
of the central bank. : '

0
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T8
Mr. MacpoxNELL: I don’t know whether the chairman will allow this, b“‘fb i

future?

The CuamrmMaN: That will be a matter of government policy and not oné
on which either the witness or the chairman can answer. T

Mr. MacponNELL: I have just one other question. Why were the earnings —§
taken in full, and no provision made for this loss until it was all over? Or 18 “ff
that a correct statement? e i

Mr. Bryce: It was very difficult to say in advance whether there would
be a loss. As you will note a loss of $8 million, on purchases and sales of $2,700, =
million is a pretty small proportion. It is difficult in advance to know whether
or not in fact there is going to be a loss. It was felt by the minister and f;h?‘
deputy minister that this was the more appropriate way to record the situation
—coming to parliament if there was any loss, and requesting authority to write
it off the books. |
A d’,I"he CuarmaN: Can we pass on to item 70, “Newfoundland loan sinking
und”.

Do you wish to ask any questions here, Mr. Browne?

Mr. BrownNE: No.

The CramrMAN: Item 71, “working capital advances”.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Mr. Chairman, we have reference here to a revolving account. That 18
to some of us a rather ominous expression. The item says: “Inventories of
stores are not included in the balance sheet, with the exception of those of the
Department of Public Printing and Stationery, the Mint, and the Department
of Transport, each of which enjoys statutory power to purchase stores by use
of a revolving fund account.” ;

We had a warning that there is going to be a similar revolving fund, I
think of $100 million, in the new Department of Defence purchases. I would,
like to ask Mr. Sellar how many departments enjoy the privilege of operating
a revolving fund account or accounts, and what is the scale of their operations
in such funds?—A. Revolving fund accounts, sir, are regulated by statute. In
the case of the King’s Printer, parliament has authorized up to $2 million.
That is used by the King's Printer to buy his supplies, and pay his staff, before
the departments reimburse him for their printing. In his case it is $2 million.

In the case of the Department of Transport Stores Act, that is their legis-
lation, parliament last year increased the amount to $4 million.

The National Film Board, by its legislation, last year had $750,000 pro-
vided as a revolving fund. i

The Mint is indefinite. Tts legislation is in more general language because
it 1s founded on the purchase of gold and the procurement of silver -and bronze
for the making of coins. Therefore, the size of that account is regulated by the
volume of its business. It is assumed its purchases are the equivalent of money.

Q. May we take it then there are only these four agencies, at the present
time, apart from the new department, that have the privilege of operating &
revolving fund account?—A. Pardon me, it is tricky thing to depend on
memory, but I think there is either $75,000 or $100,000 in the Indian Act to
finance muskrat hunting, and so on, by the Indians.

Q. T guess we will not worry too much about muskrats.

The CHAIRMAN: You are not interested in muskrats?

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Not at the moment, but looking at these other four revolving funds you
refer to, Mr. Sellar, what in general is the set-up? Does it mean that not more
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than the amount authorized, we will say in the case of the King's Printer
$2 million, or the Department of Transport $4 million, can actually be laid
out at any one time or expended in advance of purchases of stores?—A. In the
case of the Department of Transport the $4 million is absolute. In the case of
the King’s Printer the Act provides that in addition to the $2 million, he can take
mto account the amount payable by departments. All departments-are required
to pay monthly and, therefore, you have the equivalent of one month’s advance
i‘;a department on top of that $2 million. That is the maximum that he can
ve,

Q. At any one time?—A. At any one time.

Q. But in that limit existing from time to time the transactions could be
very much larger than that?—A. Naturally.

Q. Could you give us some idea how much these transactions have run in
the fiscal year, in connection with the amounts authorized for the revolving fund
account in each case?—A. Last year I think the sales of the King’s Printer were
I the neighbourhood of $12 million.

Q. Did he finance $12 million of operations on this revolving fund of
$2 million?—A. Yes. '

By Mr. Macdonnell:

Q. One thing surprises me. I understand the revolving fund is for use in
connection with supplies, but you said the King’s Printer also pays his own staff?
Is that not an unusual provision? When was that arrangement introduced ?—
A. Tt has always been in the Act.

Q. Why?—A. Tt was set up as an industrial establishment and provides that
the King’s Printer should pay his employees comparable wages to those paid in
the trade in Montreal and Toronto.

Q. Are the employees of the King’s Printer all eivil servants?—A. No, sir,
0t in the true sense of the word. They are actually; but, literally, for a long
time they had no superannuation protection. They have now.

Q. That is what I wanted to know. Do they come in under civil service
superannuation or do they come under a plan of their own?—A. Under the
ordinary civil service superannuation; not all of them, though, not the temporaries.

Q. From the point of view of superannuation, are they treated just as if
they were civil servants?—A. Those who are under the Act get the same
treatment as any other person under the Act.

By Mr. Fleming :

Q. Coming back to the Department of Transport: To what extent are
the financial operations of’ the Department of Transport financed with that
$4 million revolving fund?—A. I have no figures with me but I could try to
get them for you. They are spread over all their votes.

The Cuamman: Perhaps Mr. Bryce could enlighten us on that.

Mr. Bryce: I am sorry, sir, I was only just pointing out to the chairman
that this point which the Auditor General has raised here in Ttem 71 (b) at the

ottom, is covered by an item in the further supplementary estimates tabled in
the House yesterday to provide for the reimbursement of the Department of
Transport stores account of the value of stores destroyed or -damaged beyond
repair in 1950 to the value of $31,764. i

By Mr. Fleming:
_ Q. I am rather interested in the ramifications of these various departments
through their revolving accounts, and I would like to get some conception: of the
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extent of the turnover that is carried on year by year with these revolving fund
accounts. For instance in the case of the King’s Printer the $2 million revolving
fund account has financed operations extending to $12 million, and I wonder
if we could have similar information in connection with the other revolving funds
that Mr. Sellar has referred to—A. I speak with some reserve on this. You
will see on page Z-67 that the department had debit charges of $8,332,437 that
year. I'assume that is the volume of transactions carried through that account
last year.

Q. Where would we normally go for information on the results of these
various accounts?—A. Ordinarily, to the department concerned or to the
Comptroller of the Treasury, in other words, the Minister of Finance.

Q. What have you to say in general about the propriety of using the method
of revolving fund accounts in relation to strict parliamentary control over "
expenditures?

Mr. CroLL: Is it right to enter into this now? Does it not go beyond the
scope of our work?

The CrHAalRMAN: That is a very important question, but I think the member
who stated he was not so much interested in muskrats might be trying to see
if there is a possibility of a skunk getting in somewhere. That is why the
question is put. Really, it is beyond the scope of our work at the moment
because it asks for an expression of opinion on questions of policy, but I let
%t. p?ss because we have been somewhat lenient as to these borderline questions
ately.

Mr. CroLL: It seems to me he could ask this question quite properly: Has
there been any abuse of these funds?—but as to the propriety of using this
method, that is not a question for Mr. Sellar, it is a question for parliament.

The CHalRMAN: Yes; of course the witness may be asked questions as to
what has happened in the past, but I think we should also accept the present
question.

Mr. Freming: We have not only received but have welcomed from
Mzr. Sellar in the past, and particularly on several conspicuous occasions last
year, comments from him about methods by which strict parliamentary control
over expenditures might be maintained. Now, here is an item in his report
in which reference is made to the revolving funds—apparently there are four i
or five of them—and I think it is a natural and eminently fair question to ask
Mr. Sellar how this business of revolving funds ties in with the principle of
strict parliamentary control in these operations. His opinion on various
subjects was in the past welcomed by us and I do not know why we should
hesitate about it now. Here is the man who is expected by parliament to be
the principal champion of the rule of striet parliamentary control over public
expenditures. X

The CuamrmAN: That is the spirit in which I accepted the question, not
as an opening of a discussion as to what may be the policy in the future.

Mr. SiNcrLAIR: Any comment that Mr. Sellar would have on that would i
surely be in his report because his report draws to our attention items on which b
there is lack of parliamentary control. For every payment made by the King’s
Printer there is an estimate made and it appears in the estimates of parliament.
It is only when a payment is made which has never been approved that
Mr. Sellar calls our attention to it here. :

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Is that a correct statement? He is given working capital
to carry on business, but we do not get the details of all his operations in the
public accounts.

Mr. CrorL: But Mr. Sellar does. Has that method been abused?—that
would be a proper question. |
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Mr. MacponngLL: Last year we asked Mr. Sellar’s frank opinions and
welcomed them, Why cannot we have them this year?

Mr. CroLL: You must not persist in your mistakes.

Mr. SiNcram: It would not be proper if the King’s Printer made expendi-
tures out of the revolving fund unless there was an appropriation in the
department concerned. 2

Mr. FLeming: We do not in this committee, surely, confine ourselves just
to What Mr. Sellar says in his report here. Those observations of his are
Decessarily pithy and we use them as the basis of questions to elicit relevant

* Information.

. The Cuairman: That is what we did last year, and for doing that exten-
S‘VEIB_’; and, I think, with a good result, I suffered attacks in the House from
certain quarters to the effect that I had sidetracked the committee into things
other than the proper study of the public accounts. This year I am going to

guided by the wish of the committee which is that we should at this point
€xamine the Auditor General on the text of his report and not go into any
study that might lengthen the procedures beyond five meetings. I will allow
the question though, because it has a bearing on the point we are studying
Now and I think it is interesting. However, I think I am stretching the point

~and T think that Mr. Croll and Mr. Sinclair are right in reminding us that we

ad agreed to limit ourselves solely to the questions on the report itself and
NOW we are going to go into a question of policy, as to which are the best
methods; but I think the question should stand anyhow. Will you explain,
Mr. Sellar?
. The Wirngss: Well, sir, the easiest case to give you as a concrete application
18 the Department of Transport stores account, which is $4 million. Now, why
does that, $4 million exist? The reason is that the Department of Transport has
canals and a large number of services all over this country which are closed
n tl}e winter and in the Spring of the year have to be put into operating
condition. The experience was that they could not accumulate the necessary
Materials and supplies before the opening of the season because their votes were
either exhausted or they were financing on interim supply. For that reason the
government of the day, in 1937, decided that there should be a revolving stores
account of, I think, it was $2 million but it has since been increased to $4 million.
; Now, every purchase that the department makes against that account ultimately
has to be charged against an appropriation, therefore, it cannot make any
burchase through the stores account without meeting the test of being a proper
charge to an appropriation. The benefit of the stores account is that you avoid
& degree of duplicating of estimates, that is why that revolving fund is. In the
case of the National Film Board, the board may be making a film for, let us
say, the Department of Labour. If the film board had to provide for the cost
of that in its votes and the Department of Labour had to provide for the cost
of the finished article in its vote, you would have the cost of that film appearing
twice. You would be asked to vote for that film twice. Through use of the
revolving fund the effect is one of eliminating duplication of estimates.
] The CaamrMAN: It does not mean that parliamentary control is diminished
In the end?

The Wirngss: In my opinion, no.

By Mr. Browne:
Q. How is the fund replenished?—A. It is replenished by charges to the
appropriation, as they take the supplies.
Q. Yes, but they spend the money and take in the supplies. How is the
money replenished?—A. The money in the first instance is paid out of this
revolving fund which is supplied by the Minister of Finance. When an issue
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is made, let us say, to marine agencies, of $100,000 worth of supplies, that marine
agency vote is charged $100,000, and that is re-credited to the revolving fund
so that your $4 million is worklng back and then at the year end they must clear
the $4 million.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Can those departments which are given revolving funds by statute
draw on the Consolidated Revenue Fund, say, earlier in the fiscal year, in
accordance with their requirements, we will say, before the appropriation is voted?
—A. They are drawing on it constantly for their operations all the time.

Q. Then, at the end of each fiscal year, is there a strict accounting of the
revolving fund as applied to the appropriation authorized by parliament?—
A. Very striet, sir; we make a special audit or that account.

Q. In every case?—A. In every case.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: My recollection is, when they got the increased amount
on the revolving fund in transport, it was pointed out there had been an overrun
of something like $70,000 the year before and it was to prevent that happening
that there was a suggestion that the working capital should be increased.

The Wrrness: The trouble was that the cost of material and expansion of
activities in the department made it necessary to have this inereased amount of
money.

Mr. Roinson: Would it be desirable to have such a fund available for the
Department of Public Works?

The WrrNess: In my opinion, yes, sir, but that is just my opinion.

Mr. FLeming: Has Mr. Croll any objections to that?

Mr. CroLr: He is sitting too close to me here. I tried to kick him but I
did not succeed.

Mr. RoBinsox: Let me ask one more question. In your opinion would such
a fund eliminate a good many revotes that we presently have in pubhc works?

The Wrrness: I doubt it because revotes are for works.

By Mr. Browne:

Q. I would like to ask about this account on page Z-67. Would Mr. Sellar
explain to the meeting the open account on page Z-67, stores account—Trans-
port? It shows a debit balance of nearly $3 million dollars—A. The Treasury
at'the year end sets up in the public acecounts a record of all the accounts which
are not strictly appropriation accounts and that is the summary of the transac-
tions with respect to the stores account. You will find that in other departments.

Q. I see. This debit balance of $3 million approximately would be the
charges to it? That has nothing to do with the revolving fund?—A. No, sir.

The CuamrMan: Shall the item carry?
Carried.

Now, we will go on to Item 72 and Item 73, “advances not listed as assets.”

By Mr. Macdonnell :

Q. I would like to know something about Item 73. What is the reason
for the apparent inconsistency there?—A. In 1920, Sir Henry Drayton was
Minister of Finance, and in his budget speech that year, he advised the House
that he was changing the form or treatment of assets in the public accounts of
Canada, that only those assets that were interest-producing would be treated as
active assets, and that plan was followed. At that time the only two harbour
commissions—all were then all independent bodies—paying interest, were the
ports of Montreal and Vancouver. Those two were set up as assets, the others
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were not. Over the years, since the national harbours board has taken over,

“Various other ports have paid interest: Three Rivers, Saint John, and Halifax.

do not think it is a good test, I think it is out of date now. These should be
taken together.

Q. What test would you suggest?—A. I feel that in the revision of the
Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act there should be a definition as to what is
to be treated as an asset and what is to be treated as a liability in the public
accounts of Canada.

Q. Can you suggest any reason for the present difference of treatment in
these two accounts?—A. I have taken it up with the Department of Finance and

have never been convineed by their reply.

The Cramrman: Maybe we should ask Mr. Bryce if he has any comments
to make.
~ Mr. Bryce: The explanation that the Department of Finance makes is a very
Simple one, Mr. Chairman. It is that these are the two ports that we believe
tan be expected normally to yield sufficient profit to pay interest on the loans
made for their equipment and property.

Mr. MacponNELL: Is there any loan made to Toronto?

Mr. Bryce: Toronto is not operated by the National Harbours Board. We
regard these two ports as being in a different category because of the profitable
Cha;'acter of their operations. That is all there is to it. And we have felt that

melude the loan to the Harbours Board for other ports would not be as
Conservative in valuing our assets. We felt that to exclude the loans for the
Ports of Montreal and Vancouver would mean that we would be leaving out of
our active assets loans made for the ereation of facilities which, in fact, do return
d revenue to the government.
I can well understand Mr. Sellar’s concern that once the ports have been
rought together under it, the National Harbours Board ought to be considered
as a whole. That would be the contrary logic. But the Department of Finance
as really continued to look through the National Harbours Board to the various
Ports which it was administering to see whether or not the operations of the
Particular ports were profitable. That is the simple basis on which we make the
Istinction.

Mr. Crorn: What do you think of his presentation, Mr. Sellar?

The Wrirness: I do not agree with it, sir.

Mr. Crorn: And can you tell us why.

_ The Wrrness: My view is this: let us consider the port of Three Rivers
Which is a self-supporting port, which has paid interest regularly, and which
1as ended the year with a surplus. I submit that we have an asset there that
18 worth while putting into the balance sheet. '

But in the case of Halifax and Saint John it is true that they are not able
pay all of the two and three quarter per cent interest but one of them was
able to pay $100,000 that year, while the other was able to pay $200,000.
erefore, I submit they have got some value, and that there is something
hind it all. Here again it is none of my business, but I think our National
arbours should be recast; I think that their financial structure should be
Tecast, because I think that the National Harbours can never repay the total
amount, of $180 million of debentures. I feel that we should make an engineering
Valuation of those assets to a fixed and reasonable amount, bearing in mind
that they are national ports in the economy of Canada. \

Mr. MacpONNELL: Are there any sinking funds?

The Wirxess: Yes, the National Harbours Board established certain sums
ach year for replacement and it has accumulated $28 million, which is invested
In securities of Canada.
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Mr. CrorL: In the light of Mr. Sellar’s statement, Mr. Bryce, Three Ri v»w'-..
18 11;1 th; same category as Vancouver and Montreal. What have you to say
to that ;
Mr. Bryce: I would have to look further into the facts. We have nevw‘
felt the same assurance in regard to the profitability of Three Rivers as we
have in regard to the profitability of Montreal and Vancouver. But as to what
facts there are to back that up, I do not know. I do not have them at my -
finger tips. :
Mr. CrorLL: Carried! a9
Mr. Bryce: And I think that the whole question is somewhat similar, |
perhaps, the larger question that Mr. Sellar raises to the question consxdered
by the Transport Royal Commission in regard to recapitalization of the Cana=

a period of years?

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. You show an amount which we are talking about here. But when you
speak of having an engineering survey of the value of the assets, might I ask
if there is any such figure now in existence?—A. The National Harbours Board
over the years has been trying to establish the real value of the assets whlch
are in its possession, because it has assets which are not reflected in its indeb
ness certificates to the government. During the war we made very substantial
improvements to the ports of Halifax and Saint John. Those improvements '_
were paid for out of war appropriations. But subsequently the administration =
of those assets was turned over to the National Harbours Board. :

Q. But not the assets themselves?—A. Yes, the assets themselves. The =
title of all such assets remains in the name of the crown. -

Q. It was just the administration of them that was turned over?—A. Yes.

Q. So these improvements that you speak of do not appear in the assets
of the National Harbours Board?—A. Yes; the National Harbours Board regard
themselves as a trustee in that regard for the government.

Mr. Fraser: The improvements in most cases were made in order to glve
facilities to the navy, were they not? ,

The Wrrness: To improve the harbour facilities generally.

Mr. Fraser: But for the navy mostly?

Mr. FuemiNng: What amount are we talking about, Mr. Chairman?

The Wirness: I have no figure.

Mr. Major: Do you believe in the principle of partial writing-off of the
assets when they become too high?

The Wirness: My thought is that assets should be -as realistically va.luEd
as possible and that we should not inflate or unduly depress them. We knoW
that they cannot be sold, but we do want to have something in which you caﬂ
have confidence.

The CuARMAN: The next item is 74, “common school fund,” I think 15
was dealt with when we passed over item 62. So I think we are now on item 75 J

“civil service superannuation account.” 1

Mr. BrowNE: Did we not vote $75 million for that yesterday? 2
The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions? -

By Mr. Browne:

Q. Was that done as a result of any representations made by you?—A. NOI
Q. Was it on your recommendation that we voted that $75 million yesterday ?

b
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The Cramrman: I think that is beyond the point of this item that we are
dealing with now.

Mr. Browne: I did not think there was any secret about it.

. The CuarmaN: There is no secret but we are working as a committee dealing
with public accounts, and I do not think this is a proper question to ask the
witness.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. My attention was drawn to the last sentence in item 75. Might I ask:
what is the significance of drawing attention to the fact that it is not established
on any actuarial or sound basis?—A. The superannuation account you have

efore you is regarded in two ways. First, it is a provision to provide for civil

servants upon their retirement, and when they die, for their widows. And for
that purpose the civil servants contribute various amounts. For example, T
contribute five per cent, because I was in the civil service before 1939. Those
who came in since, in an equivalent salary rating, would pay six per cent. That
18 one side of it. ‘

The second side of it is that the superannuation scheme is provided in
order to get employees to make the civil service their life work, and also to
accept salaries, lower than they might possibly get in outside industry.

For that reason we set up a fund. The Act provides that the government
add a contribution to that fund, and it also provides that the government pay
four per cent, for the use of the money.

This fund is not invested in bonds. It is used by the government of Canada,
and the government of Canada pays four per cent for the use of the money.

Y point is this. We set up $103 million. That is the liability. But that
tannot be strietly the case. I submit that we have a liability representing the
contribution made by employees, and we have a liability for every award of an
annuity which is actuarially caleulated over the life of the individual, and
that we have a liability for the amount paid for the use of the money.

What that figure would be, I have no idea. It might be more or it might
be Jess than $103 million. But I think it would be a clearer figure to consider.

As things are today, that fund is self-supporting. The income for the year
Was approximately $20 million, while the out go was approximately $11 million.
S0 that currently the fund is growing over the years. :

Q. Was this fund ever established on an actuarial basis?—A. The super-
annuation Act was drafted in 1924 by the Superintendent of Insurance and
therefore T think you can take it for granted that in all his calculations he took
nto the consideration the actuarial treatment of the accounts.

In the early 1930’s studies were made of the state of this fund. But if you
Should ask me the direct question: has there been any actuarial report on it, I
Would have to say no, because I have never seen any. I think there have been
Studies made, but I do not think there has ever been a published actuarial report
on the state of the fund. ‘

Q. It may be one thing for the fund to be in receipt of income which is
larger than its out-go, but that does not touch the question of the actuarial
Sotndness of the fund as between its capital assets on the one hand and its
Proved contingent liabilities on the other. Does your audit touch upon that
arger question with respect to the capital soundness of the scheme?—A. No.

¢ are auditors. We are not actuaries. :

. Mr. Sincratr: I think the Minister of Finance made a statement last night
With respect to that $75 million vote. He said that the superintendent of
surance had an actuarial study under way and that his report would be in
shortly, and would be available. '

82652—2
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The CuairmaN: Perhaps Mr. Bryce would like to make a comment. 3
Mr. Bryce: Mr. Chairman, the main point is this: the Minister stated last =8
night that a couple of years ago he had requested the actuaries in the Department
of Insurance to make a valuation of the fund. He expects to get that report =
today or tomorrow or next day, or some time soon. We were hoping to have =
the report in time to use it as a basis for the appropriation introduced yesterday. =
While the minister did not receive this report before bringing down the i
appropriation, he had received a verbal report from the actuaries indicating that ‘.
the outstanding liabilities of the fund, the net liabilities of the fund, were =
several times the amount suggested in the estimates. And I believe he said 181.8t
night in the House that it would be necessary to make further appropriations 1 =
future years to transfer to the account enough to represent the total liabilities. §
I think it is desirable to point out that Mr. Sellar’s suggestion here as t0 =
how the liability is determined is not quite the way in which the actuaries =
determine the liability. Mr. Sellar suggested that the liabilities are made up of
two parts: first, the present value of the pensions already in effect, plus secondly
the contributions received and the interest on such contribution. Now, the
actuaries, normally, in valuing a fund of this kind estimate what benefits would "
be payable in future years, to those who are contributors to the fund and what
future contributions might be anticipated from them. e
You take the difference, the present values of the differences over a series
of future years there is a net liability that should be shown. Now, the differencé -
between these two items, Mr. Sellar’s basis and the actuarial basis, may be
substantial because Mr. Sellar’s basis would not take into account annuities that -
you might expect to grant this year to a civil servant who has not yet retired:
Mr. Sellar’s basis would include contributions which the civil servant had made
and interest thereon but not the present value of the annuity that you might
expect him to obtain; so there is a. rather subtle difference in the form of
evaluation. ;
Mr. FLeminGg: Not merely subtle; it may be very substantial.
Mr. Bryce: It may be substantial, but anyhow it is subtle in the distinction: ‘
That is the only point I am making. I would expect the Minister would have Z
this report shortly. I do not-know whether it is his intention to table it, but 5
think he has indicated that he would. This was the first report made in many
years and it has been a very large operation just to get it done, because it has
been necessary to check up all the records of the superannuation branch and
examine them in great detail. .
Mr. SiNcrar: I am not certain about the tabling of that report, but ¥
know the report is being prepared. This $75,000,000 item put in this year was
essentially a guess, resulting from the preliminary study of the report. It was
hoped that the report would be available at the time that item of the estimates
was up for consideration in the House; however, it was not thought advisable 0
hold up the item in the estimates until the report had been completed. Work on
it is being pressed and, it will be available as soon as it is prepared after the
Easter recess. . '
Mr. MacpoNNELL: I presume there will be an item in the estimates next
year for the same purpose? S
Mr. Sincrair: That is quite possible. v
The CoARMAN: The next item is “permanent services pension account”
number 76: |

77—reserve for possible losses on ultimate realization of active assets:

Mr. FreminG: That is a rather important item and a broad subject. I3
wonder if Mr. Sellar would review the item for us in view of the large sum$
involved. Is there anything you would Iike to add to what you have said heref

i o=l 34
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The Wirness: No, sir, I have nothing to add to what I have said on
previous occasions, which is that I think in the revision of the consolidated
revenue and audit act they might well take notice of this. I think it is sound
In many ways, but I think there should be a yard stick by which the amount
should be calculated in such a way—for instance, if I am auditing the accounts
of a corporation and they want to set up a reserve for bad debts I examine
those bad debts and satisfy myself whether I would agree with them or not.
In .this case I cannot; and I think there should be some yard stick set up by
which one could determine whether it is a proper amount or not.

. Mr. MacponneLL: What it amounts to then is this, that the government
In setting up this item of $75,000,000 is just going by guess and by God. I am
not, trying to be critical of it at all. 'We make appropriations now in anticipa-
tion of possible losses. There is the suggestion that we have same basis upon
which we can regulate it.

_ Mr. CroLr: What difference would it make mot having an analysis, we
will pay it just the same, perhaps one year sooner or later, but in any event
We would have to pay it. Would that not be the case, Mr. Sellar?

The Wirness: My reply to that, Mr. Croll, is that it seems unreasonable
to assume that the assets of Canada diminish by an even $75,000,000 every
year. That is something which just cannot happen three or four years in
Succession. It is not reasonable to expect. This whole reserve as I pointed
out before which is now relatively $320,000,000 is set up by the Minister of
Finance so that he does not over state his net debt position to the House of
Commons and to the public of this country. It is an attempt to be absolutely
honest with the public of Canada and not to mislead them by putting assets
In there which he cannot realize on; at the same time he feels that he should
not declare to anyone what these assets are. I think some scheme could be
worked out whereby we could put a realistic value on certain loans and
advances. Let us not go into the Foreign loan picture—for instance take the

anadian National Railway, I do not think there is any expectation of the
anadian National Railway repaying some of these old advances. I do not
think they could. Let us say that when we come to the year end the Minister
says I do not think we should carry these bonds, we should have a reserve
against these assets of “X” dollars—Iet us be realistic about it, they should be
Written off in & lump sum each year. That is my only reason. I respect the
mnister for setting up the reserve. '

The Cmamrman: We touched on that last year in the committee report
Wwhen we suggested

Your committee is of the opinion that the Revenue and Audit Act
should be amended to authorize writing off uncollectable debts that have
accumulated up to 1940 in the government accounts. It also considers
that proper regulations should be drawn for writing off yearly debts that
have been considered uncollectable for the previous ten years.

Mr. Freming: You would deal with this by a revision of the consolidated
reventue and audit act. This matter is one which could be dealt with through
the legislation you have referred to here, by an amendment to the consolidated
Tevenue and audit act?

The Wirness: Yes sir.

. Mr. MacponNELL: I suppose this is a point that will not arise. You take
In the case of a bank, it makes a substantial appropriation for a debt which
1S owed to it by one of its borrowers, it is not going to notify him of what it
1 doing, or tell him that in its opinion it will recover only so much of that debt.

Mr. Sincrair: No, and it is not going to notify his competitors either.

~ 8265293}
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Mr. MacponNELL: I suppose there may be a difficulty there; if you publicly
write down these debts you invite people to make a little less effort, to meet
their commitments.

Mr. CroLn: I noticed in a return brought down in the House a few days
ago that there was an increase of something like $25,000,000 in the amounts
which it was proposed to write off. Personally, I should be opposed to that
particular writing off. I am opposed to the thing in principle. It would seem

to me to be a mistake to write these debts off completely when they might still

be collectable at some future date.

The Wrrness: There should be a reserve for that in the account, although
that would be showing that we do not hope to get the money that is due us.
However, it is not a thing that you can detail, it is definitely just a total figure.

Mr. CroLL: Mr. Sellar, let me just say this: 1 think the last time we were
discussing this matter it was suggested that any account which had been out-
standing for ten years might be considered uncollectable. If you were to list
those accounts and lay them on the table you would have more copy than you
have had in a very long time. That is my own view of it. I think there would
be very grave danger in it and it might make for injustices.

Mr. Sincratr: One point that has been raised is giving the public knowledge
that you are writing off certain debts, and the consequences which would follow

from such action. That is one of the arguments which was advanced in con- -

nection with the writing off of soldier settlement balances following the last war.
Possibly if they had been written off then we should be in a different position
today, but it would have an effect on those who took up land under similar terms
since World War II, and those people would be coming along, not trying to
meet their commltments and asking us some years hence for a write off in the
same way to aid them. Then another angle to it is the question of international
debts. Once these international debts are written off as bad debts, it will
become a matter of public knowledge; and if you have such an item in the
accounts then you certainly are going to encourage other countries which may
not be in so bad shape—you invite them to wait and look for write offs instead
of making an honest effort to pay their debts.

The CHARMAN: If there are no further questions on 78 we will go on to
79—“the form of the balance sheet:”

Mr. MacpoNNELL: There is just one question which I would like to ask in
connection with item 78; you ‘say, “On each side of the Balance Sheet is &
heading, ‘Province Debt Accounts’”. Readers might assume, therefore, that the
amounts opposite the headings represent the precise financial relatlonshlp between
the Government of Canada and the provinces. Actually, they relate only to
matters arising out of the British North America Act. Various other provincial
credit and debit balances are included under other classifications. What would
be the amount involved?

" The Wrirness: If you look at page XXXVI of the public accounts—that
is roman numerals—if you look at the top of that page you will see an amount
there—British Columbia, Manitoba and so on—they total $11,919,000; and then
there is another item below of $2,296,000. These amounts represent what are
known as the debt allowance at the time of Confederation. Take New Brunswick
for example. Section 116 of the B.N.A. provides that Canada pay the province
5 per cent interest on the difference between the actual debt as of Confederation
and $7,000,000. The amount was $529,000, and we pay 5 per cent to the
province on account of that. ‘And now, the items below the line; in the case
of Prince Edward Island, it had no land and they wished to acquire some land
when they came into union—so it was provided that the government of Canada
would loan them, would advance to them up to $800,000 at 5 per cent interest
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In order that they could purchase land from large land owners; therefore, the
province of Prince Edward Island has to pay us interest on the amount it took
ut it never has to repay the principal. Now then, the other point was in the
last sentence which you read. If you will look at paragraph 56 of my report
you will see that loans to provinces represent $93,796,000. If you will look at
65, you will see that we hold $50,681,000 of corporation tax payable to the
Provinces; and in paragraph 74 I have referred to the common school fund,
$2,678,000; and when I was explaining that I also covered the school land fund
In the prairie provinces in which there is $33,000,000 available. I merely put
those in to indicate to you that you should not assume that this item in
schecllule S, $11,919,000, really explains the current situation between the
Provinees and the government of Canada. That is all, sir.

The Cramrman: Ttem 79, “the form of the balance sheet”: .
! Now, gentlemen, we reach the last part of the Auditor General’s report, -
miscellaneous audits”. I think that item 80 is just a list of the various cor-
Porations, so I suggest that we should pass on to item 81, “Canadian Arsenals
mited”. T see that item 81 to 86 inclusive relate to Canadian Arsenals Limited.
Are there any questions on those items? I am assuming as I stated at our first
Meeting that members have already read this report, so after waiting for a few
Minutes I am passing on to the next item, as was agreed.
Carried.

Items 87 and 88, “Canadian Broadcasting Corporation”;

. Mr. FLeming: I have some question on this subject, particularly in relation
to item 88,

Mr. Sellar has raised here a rather far-reaching question about the basis
of financing and bookkeeping of the C.B.C. with, I may say, particular reference
0 the purchase of the Ford Hotel building in Montreal, now known as

adio Canada. I would like to hear Mr. Sellar enlarge on the purport of his
Temarks here, particularly such remarks as those appearing on page 27, where

€ says in the third paragraph under item 88: “the situation now existing in
ontreal and, to a limited degree at Sackville, where the shortwave transmitter
18 located, merits consideration.”

. And then, in dealing with the way in which the amounts have been set up
With reference to the purchase of this property in Montreal and the management
of 1t, the rental charge, and the distribution of costs as between the domestic
Service and the international shortwave service of C.B.C., Mr. Sellar concludes:

Ahe status of the international service vis-a-vis the Canadian Broadcasting

Orporation is, of course, one involving public policy, but accounting experience

0 date indicates that parliamentary control could more easily be preserved
Were the subsidiary international service merged into the Corporation on a basis
Which is equitable to purchasers of receiving set licences.”

hat is a very big subject. I think Mr. Sellar has raised many questions
"h&t_ will probably engage our attention now, Mr. Chairman?

The Cramrman: Do you care to comment, Mr. Sellar?

The Wirness: Well, sir, Mr. Fleming has referred to various point, but
Sverything revolves around one—the particular status of the C.B.C. and the
International shortwave service.

The international shortwave service is financed out of appropriations from
Parliament. The activities of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation are

Danced out of its revenue from the sale of receiving set licences, plus its com-
nercia] revenues from sponsored programs. The agreement is that the Canadian
roadeasting Corporation operates the shortwave service on a cost-plus-5 per
ent fee. That fee presents no problem to us. The accounts are well kept
and easily separated; but, sir, when you come to the Radio Canada building

i



116 ] STANDING COMMITTEE

in Montreal, we have the peculiar situation there of the C.B.C., the real tenanty : & |
the main tenant, acting on behalf of the landlord, the shortwave service,—8 —§

situation which is embarrassing to the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation. The
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation has a problem in determining what 18

a fair rental for the same studio which may be used for shortwave and then for

ordinary broadcasting.
Mr. MacpoNNELL: Is the whole building used for broadcasting?
The Wirness: Yes, sir.
Mr. Fueming: And executive offices?

The Wirness: Yes, but I am taking it all in—when you say broadcasting
you mean the operation of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.

Mr. MACDONNELL: Yes.

The Wrrness: Yes, and it is also used for television studios.

We have a very good relationship with the Canadian Broadecasting Corpora-
tion and I do not wish you to infer, from this text, that I am having trouble,
they are in the same position as we are. They do not know exactly where they
stand with respect to what is a fair division of the work between themselves and
the shortwave service.

A very good example of the difficulty is the library of recordings. They
may pull a record out for a shortwave broadecast, put the record back in, and
it is pulled again for a local broadcast. Who should pay for that record? What
should be the charge to each program? .

Those are petty things but, in the larger sense, you have in effect the tail

wagging the dog, when the building in Montreal is shortwave and the big user

the C.B.C.

- The Canadian Broadcasting Corporation attitude is that they do not wish
to exploit the shortwave vote. Neither are they going to allow their revenue to be
used to finance the cost of the shortwave service. It seems to me that some way
should be devised of transferring everything to the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation, and that the government of Canada pay the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation so much for all of its shortwave broadcasts. That is my own thought-

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. That is to say you would do away with this cost-plus-5 per cent division,
because you do not think it is possible to work out an exact separation of finances
as between the domestic and the shortwave international broadcasting services?
—A. I take it this way, sir. Shortwave broadeasting is not supposed to be for
Canadian consumption; it is for other countries; and these broadeasts to other
countries are not a matter of any interest to the Canadian Broadcasting CorpoI-
ation. They are of interest to the government of Canada, as they are allied W}th
international policy. Therefore, I say, let the government of Canada decide
_ how much it wants to spend in a year for those shortwave broadcasts, what typé
of programs they want, and then let the government pay the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation for that service. They should carry it on as an ordinary
business proposition.

Q. Coming back to the Radio Canada building in Montreal, when that was
bought C.B.C. acted simply as an agent for the Crown, and carried out negotia-
tions on behalf of the Department of Public Works. Now what would be
your proposal as to the way in which that asset should be held, first of all
with respect to title and, secondly, how the asset should be carried in the
government, accounts or C.B.C. accounts?—A. That building is now used for
a special purpose. That purpose has nothing to do with the activities of the
Department of Public Works. I would favour the building being in the namé
and the responsibility of C.B.C. That is a personal opinion, now, and I am

i
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ot trying to say what the outside policy viewpoint is. I am speaking to you
48 an accountant, and I think as an accountant, because that building is designed
for studios, with special wiring, lighting, and so on, that the only sound adminis-
trator of the building is the user—namely the C.B.C.

Q. And, therefore, the only sound owner?—A. Well it is the government
of Canada, whether it is the C.B.C. or any other department. The government
of Canada put up the money in the first place. ;

Mr. Macpoxxern: May I ask a question here. Is there not a first class
confusion arising over money being used for one thing when it was voted for
another. I am reading from paragraph 87 where you are speaking of the
$4 millions paid for the Ford Hotel. “The major portion of the money was
drawn_ from appropriations provided for the international service, with C.B.C.

hancing about $150,000, out of interest-bearing advances made by the govern-
ment to the Corporation for either capital works or developing television
facilities.”

. Now, we have slipped there into a situation where money is voted for one
thing and used for another?

. The Wrrnmss: No, sir, they are all allied with the activities of Canadian
BI‘O&dcasting Corporation. The first purchase was for the hotel, getting the
tenants out by the 15th of September 1948, and so on. That represented
$2,200,000. Then, in 1950 they purchased two houses or buildings on Mackay
Street in Montreal—I have not seen them. They were not large investments
but the buildings were bought and they have been charged to the loan made
to CB.C. for the development of television. C.B.C. is now obligated to repay
that amount, but for the life of me I cannot see where C.B.C. is ever going to

e able to find the money.

Mr. FLeming: Well, Mr. Sellar, you have got to remember, that last year,
for the first time, parliament did make an appropriation to C.B.C. to assist it
In meeting the deficit. In the past everything has been done by way of loans
but we had a new departure in policy last year. I think that fact should be

me in mind when we are considering that $4 million loan made the previous
year for the development of television.

The CuamMmaN: Perhaps Mr. Bryce would say something here.

- Mr. Bryce: I might say that we have endeavoured to take note of the
Auditor General’s comments here and to meet them, First of all, in regard to
the use of rental funds, the item in the main vote for the new year requests
authority to credit to the appropriation—vote 53—an amount of $100,000 from
rental which may be expended for the purpose of international service. That
'S Intended to make what is proposed quite clear, to set limits on it, and to
meet, therefore, one of the points made by the Auditor General.
In regard to the other point, it is a question of setting a rental rate and
a date from which it commences. I believe the Auditor General has commented
here that, the rent, and the date on which rent will be paid, has not been set.
‘e have now reached an agreement between the Treasury, the Minister of
Finance on the one side, and the C.B.C. and the Minister of National Revenue
on the other, that the C.B.C. domestic service and television service will pay
rent as from the 1st of April last. It was in April 1950 that the C.B.C. national
service commenced to occupy the building with units other than the architectural
and engineering units engaged in supervision of its construction.
Mr. Macpon~NELL: But who does it pay rent to? Itself?

. Mr. Bryce: It will pay rent to the Crown and the international service
Will be authorized by the wording of the vote, if passed by parliament, to apply
an amount up to $100,000 only of that rent; toward the appropriation for the
International service. That would put it on the same basis as it was on during

A
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the current year. With respect to the rate of rental, the basic C.B.C. rate,
we propose to have that determined by an independent valuator in Montreal.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I understand the business background is that the
international service is operated by a different set of officials? Is it a separate
organization in that sense?

Mr. Bryce: The actual broadcasting is done very largely, or almost entirely,
by a different set of officials. The business administration is carried on largely
by senior officers and specialized departments of the C.B.C. There is a group of
senior officers in the international service engaged in the rather ticklish business
of determining the nature of programs and the way in which they are handled.
That is entirely specialized, but we pay the C.B.C., as Mr. Sellar has pointed (_)ut,
5 per cent of the cost of operating the international service for their services
in providing overhead, supervision, and administration.

Mr. CroLL: But is it not common business practice to charge a department
a certain amount of the total overhead?

Mr. Bryce: I believe it is.

Mr. CroLL: Mr. Sellar, take a large corporation like Ford Motor Company,
the Chrysler Corporation, or others, they will charge a certain amount to the
truck division, a certain amount to the car division, a certain amount to the
accounting division, a certain amount to another division, and so on. Is that
not what they are trying to do here?

The Wirness: Yes, but there is this distinction. We have two services
which we are assuming are two different creations—the shortwave service being
one of the government of Canada, and the ordinary broadcasting being an
activity of a corporation. I am saying that they should be one.

Mr. CroLr: But are we not playing with terms. There is no one here that
believes they are two separate corporations.

The Wrrness: They are, as far as the C.B.C. accounts are concerned.

Mr. FLeminGg: Yes, and as far as parliament and its appropriations are
concerned—

Mr. Crorr: You do not believe that, Mr. Fleming, although I know what
you are getting at.

Mr. Freming: What we are concerned with here is the parliamentary
financial setup. We have this annual vote in parliament for the purpose of
earrying on this shortwave broadeast, which is built up on the basis of cost plus
five per cent. Now, the five per cent does pay the cost of the overhead of the
Canadian Broadeasting Corporation, there is no doubt about that. It strikes
-me that while it may be very simple to divide the rental for the building on the
basis of space actually occupied between international shortwave on the one
hand and domestic on the other, that just does not reduce the difficulty of trying
to reach a sensible and fairly exact division of costs in other respects such a8
Mr. Sellar refers to here. Mr. Bryce will agree to that in other respects than
this one subject of the rental of the building?

Mr. Bryce: I think it is true, sir, that there must be a great many points
where it is difficult to make a division of costs. ,The alternative is, it seems
to me, that we should negotiate each year with the C.B.C. a fee for their
operating the international services. I am not sure how or by whom this
negotiation would, in fact, be carried out, but it seems to me that is the only
alternative, that somehow or other the government, or the Treasury, or some body
representing the government will negotiate with the C.B.C. a fee for them to carry
on the international service, say, a fee something in the order of $14 million, oF
$1,500,000; and then, of course, arguments might arise as to whether the C.B.C.
were supplying the quality of service that was desired by the government. It
seems to me that it is simpler to divide the costs, as we are doing even though
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there may be difficult marginal cases such as these recordings than to negotiate
a fee, and a settlement in detail of the standard of service that they will

Provide for that fee. I do not think one can escape the difficulty one way or
the other.

Mr. Freming: I think the matter may well be taken up further in the
Committee on Radio Broadeasting which should be set up again this year. Last
year, the two items in connection with the parliamentary grants for shortwave

I'Oadgasts were referred to that committee and it was very helpful for the
tommittee probing into this question. I hope that the committee on Radio
Sroadeasting will be set up this year again.

The Cramman: 1 agree entirely with that. Now maybe that we are dealing
more here with the question of possible change of policies than we are on the
Auditor General’s report, but the last sentence here in the Auditor General’s
on Item 88 observes that in such a readjustment Canadian radio licence fee
Purchasers should be equitably dealt with. If we merged the international service
With the regular C.B.C. domestic service we have to consider the last sentence
€re, which reads: “The status of the international service vis-a-vis the Canadian
Sroadeasting Corporation is, of course, one involving public policy, but account-
g experience to date indicates that parliamentary control could more easily
€ preserved were the subsidiary international service merged into the corporation
% @ basis which is equitable to purchasers of receiving set licences.”—We should
10t make the listeners, those who buy receiving set licences, pay for the inter-
Dational service which is more or less in the nature of a government propaganda
agency, I think this last sentence here is very important; that a solution being
reached, it should be on a basis equitable to purchasers of receiving set licences,
0 erwise, there will be a necessity to increase the licence fee if we merged the
two without taking that angle into account.

Mr. MacpoxnELL: It seems to me that this is an unnecessarily complicated
and unnatural relationship and I think a simpler relationship would do away with
S0me of these questions coming up from time to time.

By Mr. Fraser: :

M Q. In connection with the maintenance of the Radio Canada building in

ontreal, does the Public Works Department maintain this government building?
mean does it provide the char service and so forth?—A. No, sir, they have

n?thmg to do with that. ‘

b Q. That is one public building in which they do not do that. I am glad to
€ar that,

h Mr. BrownE: Why should not the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation do
€ same thing as is done elsewhere, operate an international and domestic

Service? Tt is actually being done—a domestic service operating an international
Shortwave?

The Wirness: The C.B.C. is operating the international shortwave as an
agent of the governement of Canada. !

Mr. Freming: It is only in the position of rendering a service as an agent
of the government for a fee.

The Cramman: Items 89 and 90. “Canadian Commercial Corporation?”’

Mr. Fraser: We would have a better chance of going into that when we
I;f:ch gle accounts of the Department of National Defence after Easter, would
no
. The Cramrman: Yes, but before we go into National Defence we want to
finish this and write up our report on the Auditor General’s report. Discussing
€se remarks of the Auditor General now would not prevent us from taking this
Question up in the committee later on.
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By Mr. Macdonnell : -
Q. Just a question as to the operation of the corporation. I am referring

now to Item 89. Their total income amounted to $1,166,000, they have a salary
expense of $913,700, and they end up the year with a surplus of $52,190. Do they

occupy government offices? Do they pay rent? How is this surplus of $52,000
arrived at?—A. They receive money from two sources. There is a vote by
parliament each year reimbursing them for their expenses in connection with
national defence contracts, and they also buy for other governments and for
international agencies such as the United Nations Children’s Emergency Fund,
in which case, they get a commission, and out of their activities they do a little
more than break even.
Q. Do they publish an annual report?—A. Yes, sir, and it is tabled.

The CuHAlRMAN: Any further questions?

By Mr. Fleming:
Q. On the next item, No. 90, the Auditor General is raising an important

question about advances, drawing attention to the fact that at the end of the

fiscal year Canadian Arsenals were holding at the fiscal year end approximately
$10 million, for which Canadian Commercial Corporation is accountable pending
delivery of the manufactured replacements. The Auditor General goes on t0
say this:

“In view of the fact that parliament had provided Canadian Arsenals
with $5 million working capital, doubt must necessarily be entertain
as to the administrative prudence of making such large advances, even
to a crown company, before the scale of production justifies pa.ymel_lt-"

Is that an observation that is likely to have relevance now, Mr. Sellar,
with an expansion in production of defence material?—A. No, sir, that was an
exceptional transaction involving,—you remember you discussed it last year—
the sale of certain ammunition to the government of Pakistan in which the
ammunition was supplied out of the stocks of the Department of National
Defence and it was provided that money Pakistan paid would be used to produce
like ammunition in Canada by Canadian Arsenals. Pakistan paid, of course,
on delivery of the ammunition to them and they paid Canadian Commercial
Corporation here, but instead of retaining that money and paying Canadian
Arsenals against deliveries, for some reason, it made advances of very largeé
sums to Canadian Arsenals. I remonstrated after I saw the transaction saying
I did not think it right. I pointed out that the Canadian Commercial Corpora-
tion should have treated Canadian Arsenals as they would have treated an
outside supplier, that is, pay them on delivery or make progress payment t0
them. However, Canadian Arsenals got the money and it was reflected in their
accounts; the money is still safe, though, but it seems to me it should be in the
accounts of Canadian Commercial Corporation. It is not a big matter, bub
nevertheless I draw it to your attention.

Q. If there were less in the accounts of the Canadian Arsenals there would
be more in the accounts of the C.C.C.2—A. Yes, sir. I might add that I think
they agree with me now. «

Q. Now, in future operations between these two, do I correctly understand
the situation, that the C.C.C. may be figuring in these transactions to a much
lesser degree than hitherto, the reason being the setting up of the new depart-
ment, of Defence Production?—A. I know nothing about that because the new
department is not operating yet. 3

The CHAIRMAN: Are we through with these two items? Gentlemen, it 8
a quarter to one. The meeting stands adjourned at the call of the Chair after
the recess, and I wish you all and every one of you a pleasant holiday and &
pleasant Easter.

—The committee adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or Commons, Room 430.
WebNESDAY, April 4, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.00 o’clock
am. The Chairman, Mr. L.-Phillipe Picard, presided.

. Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Benidickson, Blue, Boisvert, Boivin,
Tisson, Campney, Cauchon, Cavers, Cloutier, Croll, Fleming, Fournier (Maison-
neuve-Rosemont), Fraser, Fulford, Gauthier (Portneuf) Helme Macdonnell
\(gfemwood), Major, Maltais, Picard, Riley, Sinclair, Stewart (Winnipeg North),
right,

In attendance: Mr. Watson Sellar, C.M.G., Auditor-General; Mr. R. B.
Iyce, Assistant Deputy Minister of Finance.

The‘ Committee resumed and completed article by article consideration of
the Auditor General’s Report for the fiscal year ending March 31st, 1951.

Mr. Watson’s examination in respect to the said Report was continued and
Completed. Mr. Bryce was asked a few questions on certain specific points
alsing out of the witness’s examination.

g The witness was directed to prepare and file a statement in connection with
wources and Application of Funds of various Crown Companies. (See Appendiz
A" to to-day’s Minutes of Evidence.)

The witness was retired.

h The Chairman thanked both Mr. Sellar and Mr. Bryce for their valuable
eIp to the Committee. ‘

; At }112.35 o’clock p.m, the Committee adjourned to meet again at the call
¢ chair,
ANTOINE CHASSE,
Clerk of the Commattee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House of CoMmMoONs
ApriL 4, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. 1,, Philippe Picard, presided.

The Cuamrman: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. The last time we adjourned

We had reached item 91, Canadian Patents and Development Limited. Are

€re any further questions on this item? If not, we will proceed. The

Auditor General has a remark to make about the correction of a statement he
made the other day.

Mr. Watson Sellar, Auditor General, called:

Mr. R. B. Bryce, Assistant Deputy Minister of Finance, in attendance.

The Wirnpss: Mr. Chairman, I wish to apologize to the committee, and in

Particular to Mr. Fleming, for having given figures that were not strictly -

accurate in connection with the King’s Printer’s advance account. Mr. Fleming

asked me at the last sitting what was the volume of the transactions in the

i’eal‘ and T told him $12 million [page 105]. $12 million was right for the year
949, but for 1950 the more correct figure is $14 million; that was approximately
€ turnover in 1950.

Another question that I could not quite completely answer was the amount
available in the revolving fund under the Indian Act. I stated that it was
glther $75,000 or $100,000; the Act itself provides $350,000, but that is subject
.0 regulation and the regulation limits the amount to $100,000 which the Min-
Ster of Finance can advance in any year. Finally, I overlooked one revolving
Und, that is the one under the Grain Act, where there is a revolving fund of
It 0,000 provided in connection with the operation of the government elevators.
S Purpose is to permit the elevators to pick up bills of lading for cars of grain
“Onsigned to them and.which they in turn immediately recover from the
Sippers. Accounts are rarely outstanding for more than two or three days and
8t the end of the year there was only $2,000 outstanding; so that shows you how
Guickly they collect.

am sorry, Mr. Fleming, that I overlooked that one.
" Mr. Freming: I can assure Mr. Sellar that no apology is required. At the
e, as auditor, he was, of course, merely speaking from memory.

By Mr. Fleming:
. Q. May I ask one question on that first point with regard to the $14
Willion ip the revolving fund: what is the statutory or parliamentary authority
Ich determines the nature and operation of that particular revolving fund?
refer there, of course, to the King’s Printer—A. In each case the Act fixes
A ceiling. In the case of the King’s Printer it is $2 million and outstanding
Accounts; in other words, an amount sufficient to cover one month’s outstanding
Partmental accounts. In all other cases it is specific.
Q. Then, the effect of that in operation would be that the $14 million
repreSepts the extent to which that fund was used, or revolved?—A. Yes; or,
O but it another way, it means that the King’s Printer turned over his working
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capital seven times during the year. That is perhaps a crude way of put
it and may over-simplify it, but that is how it works out.

The CramrMaN: Section 91, Canadian Patents and Development Limi ed.

Mr. Fraser: Are you going on to complete the report of the Auditor
General? g

The Caamrman: That is what we had agreed to do. This is the fifth meét“i
ing. We are on item 91. May I repeat what I said at previous meetings; =g
that it is assumed that everybody has read the Auditor General’s report beforéss
coming into the committee, so we do not read the item in detail. i

Mr. Freminag: I have one general question about a number of these corporas =
tions; perhaps it would be well for me to put it now. What department 0f =
the ministry carries the responsibility for Crown companies with respect
the discharge of their duties and responsibilities—the various functions of thé
different Crown corporations? I know that in certain cases some of these
Crown corporations come under Mr. Howe and in other cases they may comé
under the Minister of Finance, or under various ministers. Who is responsl
for superintending the discharge of the ecorporative functions, duties an¢=
responsibilities of the various corporations, and their financial operations =
in order that supervisory responsibility may be established?—A. Well, take 'bh{’
case here of the one with which we are concerned at the present moment, ¥
minister holds all the shares except the qualifying shares of the directors:=
therefore, whenever a directors’ meeting is held it is the practice for them 10
inform the minister of the various decisions taken at their meeting; while;
possibly, you might say that the minister has no power to vary the action take
at that directors’ meeting, as a matter of fact if he sees anything objectionab!
he immediately brings it to their notice. As a rule they work in very clos¢ =
relationship with him. That is particularly true of Mr. Howe. He has
always maintained a very close relationship with all companies under his
direction. ‘ o

By the Chairman.: T
Q. You mean, the shares that are Crown property are vested in the namé =
of the minister concerned?—A. Yes. -

Mr. Freming: Well, I was thinking in terms of agencies and of the
responsibility in each case, which stems, as I understand it, from the author?
of parliament. As I understand it, first of all, the Crown or the minister appoin!
the board of directors; then, as I understand it, while the minister does not SI¥
in at directors’ meetings, a copy of their minutes goes to him and if there » =
anything in them which does not look good to him and with which he does n0%
agree, he takes remedial action. y:

The CualrMAN: As a shareholder, as the majority shareholder.

By Mr. Fleming: ;
Q. He is the man who appoints them?—A. Oh, yes. o
Q. Then there may be the financial safeguards too. Suppose a corporatlon{
requires money; and in their operations they may require some money beyon¢ =
what is available to them under the statute; in such cases they have to comé
back to the minister?>—A. Yes, and with respect to all subject to the Governmen® =
Companies Supervision Act, the supervising minister concerned or the Minister
of Finance; either of them has the power to seize any of the moneys in
hands of the companies which they consider are more than adequate for ﬁhi;_
purposes of the company. ' i
Q. Well then, in your department, do you undertake to do anything along
the lines indicated in that last statement?—A. No. We, of course, bring ouv
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the actual financial position—what is in cash, and what is the volume of busi-
ness and so on and so forth—and immediately when we finish an audit and
SIgn our certificate we, of course, send the original to the company for its
Sh?ar.eholders’ meeting, but immediately a duplicate copy is also sent to the
mmister responsible for that company for his information.

Q. But as Auditor General do you not make any investigation about the
amount of money that is being employed in any corporation?—A. No, that is a
statutory discretion invested in either one of the ministers. j

Q. You will not care to offer any opinion then, as to the practice being
fOHOW_ed?—A. I think the practice up to date has been quite sound and that
there is nothing for you to worry about, sir.

The Cramrman: 94—Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation Ltd.

.. Mr. Frasgr: On that, Mr. Chairman, it says here, “these consisted of seal
oll and whale oil purchased in 1948-49, after oils and fats had been decontrolled.
€ seal oil had been obtained from a Canadian producer at a cost of $173,613
and was sold for $16,804; while the whale oil had been acquired from a New-
foundlang source at a cost of $964,136 and realized $506,893. Thus there was
a loss of $614,052 is disposing of these commodities.” That seems to me to be
3 tremendous loss.

for The Cmamman: I would ask Mr. Bryce if he would care to answer that
you. G

" Mr. Bryce: 1 had a brief explanation which I obtained from the corpora-
100, if T may be permitted to read it:

On October 2, 1945, the seal oil plant of St. Lawrence Products
Limited (Louis T. Blais) at Tabatiere on the north shore of the Gulf
of St. Lawrence adjacent to the Quebec-Labrador boundary was destroyed
by fire. The owner was disposed to discontinue operations, but he was
persuaded to rebuild in order to increase the supply of meeded oils and
fats and to avoid the undue hardship which the consequent unemploy-
ment would bring to the inhabitants of the area. To this end the adminis-
trator of oils and fats of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board strongly
sponsored the application for priorities for materials required in rebuild-
ing the plant. At the same time the government of Quebec made a
cash contribution to the cost of rebuilding the plant.

At the time this action was taken there was a world-wide shortage
of oils and fats and the decision was taken in view of this situation.
Normally, soap and shortening manufacturers prefer vegetable oils to
marine animal oil, and consequently when there was an unusually heavy
production of vegetable oils in the United States during 1948, the price
of oils and fats fell and there was relatively little demand for animal
oil at any price. Because of the encouragement given to the building
of the plant the government felt that it had implied responsibility for

© the disposal of the 1947 season production of seal oil by the Tabatiere
plant, and although Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation had
discontinued active bulk-purchasing of oils and fats in April, 1948, and
oils and fats had been decontrolled as of August 1, 1948, the Wartime
Prices and Trade Board on instructions from the Minister of Finance
authorized and directed Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation to
purchase the seal oil produced by the St. Lawrence Products Limited and
held on September 20, 1948 (at certified costs) and to dispose of the il
at such prices as might be readily available. The purchase of 1,347
drums was made on November 29, 1948, and the sale was effected on
July 29, 1949.

AR NS
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| Mr. Fraser: Then, T wonder if we might have a statement with regard to
| the whale oil which is referred to; apparently it comes from a Newfoundland
source. I was wondering if any of that had come from Hudson’s Bay?

Mr. Bryce: I have a similar statement with regard to the whale oil.

Mr. Fraser: I just wanted to find out if any of that was from Hudson’s Bay
and if it was taken from the white whales.

Mr. Bryce: 1 don’t bélieve so. J

Mr. Fraser: I was just wondering, because there is a plant up there which
I am very much against because they are destroying the white whales. You "i
can let me have it later. ' 2

Mr. Bryce: I believe it is all Newfoundland whale oil. ; *IJ
Mr. Fraser: All Newfoundland? G
"Mr. Bryce: Yes. 1

, Mr. Fraser: There was a loss of $400,000 on that; could you give us the
I reason for that loss? Would that be for the same reason?

Mr. Bryce: T have two or three short paragraphs about that here, if T might
give them to the committee: ~

STANDING COMMITTEE

Due to the decline in the market price of oils and fats, and to the %
deterioration of the quality of the seal oil while in storage the loss n i)
in the Auditor General’s report was sustained.

The seal 0il was included in the corporation’s inventory as at Mareh
31, 1949. The inventory was disposed of in the following fiscal year
and the loss thereon was reported to the Standing Committee on Public
Accounts by the chairman of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board on
May 30, 1950, and was discussed in the proceedings of the committee on
that date (pages 542-543 of the minutes of the proceedings and evidence). .

Details of the transactions are as follows:

Laid-down €08t .. .. .. .c .. .o w0 on .. ... $173,613. 955NN
Bale PriCe .. v. ci vv vu we v e e ne ee e .. 16,804
PSS C IR R Y

Particulars of laid-down cost:

Paid to Blais .. .. .. $167.298.89 |

Storage charges paid g Yala Gra s 2,008.42

Weighing, testing, inspection charges paid .. 532.31

Service charge applied .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 3,773 .8
$173613.43

Although Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation discontinued
active bulk-purchasing of oils and fats in April 1948 and although oils
and fats were decontrolled as of August 1, 1948 Canada continued t0
support the program of international allocation of oils and fats arrang
through the International Emergency Food Committee. Under this pro-
gram the total exportable surplus of Newfoundland-produced marine
animal oils was allocated to Canada. At the time, the best available
information respecting world supply confirmed the belief that the allocaz
tion was not greater than Canadian requirements. As the year progresst |
a shortage of storage facilities in Newfoundland developed and to assl ;
in relieving this condition and also to place the oil in position for delivery
in Canada, Crosbie and Company Limited of St. John’s, Newfoundland,
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transferred approximately 2,000 tons of whale oil into storage at Sorel,
Quebec. Following the availability of vegetable oils, consequent upon
the unusual heavy production in the United States during 1948, there was
little demand for whale oil, as soap and shortening manufacturers normally
prefer vegetable oils for their products when such are available.

~ As Crosbie and Company Limited had moved their whale oil to Sorel
In anticipation of sale in Canada and as Canada had not requested the
International Emergency Food Committee to re-allocate the oil to some
other country, the government felt an implied responsibility to purchase
this oil. The Wartime Prices and Trade Board on instructions from the
Minister of Finance authorized and directed Commodity Prices Stabiliza-
tion Corporation to purchase the whale oil stored at Sorel at a price of
204 cents a pound (the price paid for Norwegian whale oil earlier in the
season) and to dispose of it in Canada or elsewhere. The purchase was

made on November 29, 1948, and there being no demand for whale oil -

in Canada, sales were eventually made in Belgium in the summer and
fall of 1949. Due to a decline in the market price of oils and fats the
loss noted in the Auditor General’s report was sustained.

The whale oil was included in the corporation’s inventory as of March
31, 1949. The inventory was disposed of in the following fiscal year and
the loss thereon was reported to the Standing Committee on Public
Accounts by the chairman of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board on
May 30, 1950, and was discussed ‘in the proceedings of the committee on
that date (pages 542-543 of the minutes of the proceedings and evidence).

Details of the transactions are as follows:

Lot downCORD.. Lty s S $964,136.34
Sale prasec il COEL S B A 506,892.67
i T T R A SRR I D $457,243 .67
Particulars of laid-down cost:
Paid to Crosbie .. .. .. ... .. $908,966.06
Less recovered .. .. .. .. .. .. 6,735.19
$902,230.87
Ocean freight paid .. .. .. .. .. 39,593.01
Storage charges paid .. .. .. .. 7,039.04
Weighing, inspection
surveying charges paid .. .. 1,638.93
Service charges applied .. .. .. A 13,634.49

$964,136.34

.‘Mr. Wricar: I wanted to ask a question about whale oil, while you
are on the subject. Were there any other purchases made of whale oil from
Anadian companies in 1949? ;
Br. Bryce: I do not believe so; but I will find that out for you, and, if I
,i'}'ay, put it in today’s record at this point if the chairman will permit me. (Later:
he answer is “no”. R.B.B.) . :
The CrarmaN: Yes.

« Items 95 and 96—Crown Assets Disposal Corporation.
e Mr. Fraser: On this item 95, this corporation, if I remember correctly, used
be known as the War Assets Corporation but its name has been changed.

it
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interested. The reason I am interested in this, Mr. Chairman, is that I think =

‘tion my recollection is that that sort of thing was done in the early days oL =
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B was?wondering whether its functions were simply to dispose of surplus
assets?

The WirNess: Its function is the disposal of surplus war assets, yes; 3
to make collection, of course, from the sales of ships and so on.

Mr. FueminGg: I do not suppose Mr. Sellar is in any position to answer ¥
questions about government policy with respect to these companies. 4

The CuamrMAN: I do not think it would be proper to ask him to make any "
statement about policy. L

Mr. Freming: I do not mean about policy, rather about practice, thﬁ.f'
practice which has been followed with respect to the disposal of these surplus =
war assets. I do not know whether Mr. Bryce could give us any information
on this or not. I suppose we have all had requests for special equipment of one"
kind or another in which organizations such as cadet corps at schools are -

that it is generally understood that war assets are disposed of through this =
corporation, but what I have more particularly in my mind at the moment 1§ =
whether or not the corporation in disposing of equipment turned over to it by =
the Department of National Defence makes any attempt to find out whether
such equipment would be useful, apart from its sale value. Here is a specllic
case, band instruments, military band instruments which become surplus. There =
are cadet bodies in schools all across Canada where these band instruments are
greatly needed and the cadet bands and the schools simply haven’t got the
funds with which to get the instruments they want and need. So far as I know, =
the corporation has not made any attempt to ascertain whether they need that =
type of equipment, whether it could be usefully used by cadet organizations 0f =
similar bodies, nor have I heard of any other organization which considers that -
aspect of it. As I understand it these surplus commodities are all sold to thé
trade.

Mr. Bryce: Mr. Chairman, while I cannot speak on behalf of .thé corpora-

War Assets on a modest scale. 1 would think from what I have seen in the iy
public transactions more recently that it has become less common, becausé -
the normal operation of the company is that it offers for sale the goods turned
over to it for disposal; and unless it hears of an opportunity or unless the
government gives it some direction to seek such opportunity, I do not think =
the company would normally consider it as a part of its ordinary responsibility
to seek such outlets itself. ; 3

Mr. Fuemine: What is the practice of the corporation with respect to the
negotiation of the price on the sale of surplus war assets? .

The Wirngss: T am sorry, I am not in the position to tell you their =
practice on that. - ' -

The CuamrmaN: I think we had better call someone before the committee
who has more detailed information about that. E

Mr. Freming: Quite obviously this witness hasn’t got that information-
We might make a note of it as a matter for future reference. :

The CuamrMAN: Do you want to get that before we leave the Auditor
General’s report, or at a later date after we have finished with the Department
of National Defence? :

Mr. Fremineg: I think we should go through each of these items now, MI-
Chairman. '

The CuamrMaN: I mean this; we are to get through this morning with the
Auditor General’s report, this is now the fifth meeting on it—we are supposedj'.
to have a meeting of the steering committee and arrange to go into the work 5
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on the Department of National Defence—if we were to deal with the point
we ‘ha.vq just raised it would require the calling of special witnesses from the
appropriate department. And now, if the committee are willing to do that,

have no objection, but T am bound at the moment by the ruling that we shall
0t have more than these two witnesses, and if you wish to have someone called
from Crown Assets I would have to put it to the committee for a decision.

Mr. Fremiva: All T would ask, Mr. Chairman, is this, I do not know how

long this would take, but at some future time it would be helpful for us to have

hat information. The present indications are that this corporation is one which
shows g tendency to increase its activities, it does not appear to be one of the
€orporations which is likely to fade away.

) _‘M!‘. Crorn: Mr. Chairman, let me get this clear. We are finishing our
Original task, or we will finish with it this morning, and then it is just a matter
of calling other witnesses before the committee. Perhaps we could fit them in
when the people from the Department of National Defence ‘are here, as they
are the department more immediately concerned.

Mr. Siveratr:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, may I make a suggestion? There has
been special reference to the Department of National Defence. They are the
€partment which are turning over most to Crown Assets, and I would think
that when we are examining the National Defence people they might suitably
be asked for a statement of policy with regard to the disposition of war assets
and surplus commodities.
The Cramrman: Yes, they are the departmental officials in charge of Crown
Assets. Tn any event, Mr. Fleming is a member of the steering committee, and
€ could bring the matter up for consideration before that committee at some
uture time,
Mr. Fraser: I would like to ask Mr. Sellar a question with regard to item
96, this $50,000 for a new road, and the fact that the contract was broken; why
Was that?—A. Tt became unnecessary, they did not need the road.
Q. They did not need the road?—A. No, therefore the government’s share of
the appropriation was not required.

The Cramrman: Item 97—Custodian of Enemy Property.

By Mr. Fleming:
« .. Q. This is an item which was up three or four years ago. May I ask Mr.
Sellar, in regard to the surplus referred to, which was $1,941,412 as of
ecember 31, 1949. Now, I note, that of this amount $1,093,437 is reserved
Or the settlement of possible claims. Are there any items in either of these
gures bearing upon the settlement of claims of Canadians of Japanese racial
OMgin in British Columbia?—A. No sir, the amount deals with world war I.
. Q. Is world war IT in here also?—A. Yes, world war II is in there also, but
in another part above, I say, “The Custodian’s operations regarding world war I
ave likewise resulted in the accumulation of a surplus—"

Q. T am sorry, I am referring to the earlier sentence—A. The earlier one,
O‘f course, was not in connection with world war II. The total assets are steadily
dlmlnlshing year by year. The year before it was $100 millions, then it dropped
to $53 million, and this year it is around $33 million. They have not liquidated
all claims in connection with world war 1T yet by any means.

Q. No, no, but in analyzing these accounts is there anything in them
Yelating to these persons, Canadians of Japanese origin, who were moved out
&way from British Columbia?—A. No, the world war IT accounts are not
quidated yet, and Japanese money may still be involved because there is a
“Ustodian office still operated in Vancouver in connection with that.
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Q. There was a sum of money appropriated by parliament two years ago
to meet the claims of such persons. It is that part of the money now in the
hands of the custodian?—A. I cannot answer that, sir, I will try and find that ==
out for you.

By Mr. Stewart:

Q. I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Sellar could give the committee any
idea as to the nature of this liability of over a million dollars which has been
in existence for thirty years now.—A. That, sir, is in connection with various
claims of European countries. I understand the custodian has in the past year
been trying to clean it off. I think the deputy custodian, that is the Under
Secretary of State, made a trip to Europe last year for the purpose of trying
to straighten this out. I

" Q. That is the total amount now?—A. Yes. We are disputing their claims,
of course.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Is the custodian disbursing money in the settlement of claims from month
to month?—A. He is doing so constantly. You have to bear in mind that the
custodian handled not only enemy moneys, but also the moneys of friendly '
people in occupied territories, and therefore such funds are passing back to their
proper owners, We never seized that money in the true sense of the word. e |

Consider the nationals of France who had money in this country. When =
France was occupied, we took possession of that money but we did not take over i
the ownership of it. Therefore it is constantly going back to its real owners. ‘

Q. Do you, as Auditor General, review the settlement of claims and review
the payments which are made in settlement?—A. We audit the accounts. Bubt
where there is a discretion vested in the custodian, that is his discretion. ¢

Q. To what extent was there any review of his settlements?—A. I would
not say that I review the legality of his settlements, or the reasonableness of
his settlements, because I regard that as a power vested in him. I audit the
aecounts but if I saw anything extraordinary, perhaps I would feel that I should '
draw it to your notice. But I have not noticed anything. T
Q. You are concerned with the fact of the payment but not with its grounds?

|

. =

—A. Precisely.
The CraarmMAN: Shall the item carry?
Carried.

Paragraph 98, Eastern Rockies Forest Conservation Board. Shall the item
carry?

Carried.

Paragraphs 99 and 100, Eldorado Mining and Refining (1944) Limited.

Mr. Stewarr: Mr. Chairman, with respect to paragraph 100, I wonder if MI.
Sellar can give us any idea of how much money is saved to Eldorado Mining
and Refining by exemption from local taxation? I realize that is rather a detailed
question.

Mr. Cron: It is more than local taxation. There are various forms of
taxation.

Mr. StEwarT: Well, dominion taxation is robbing Peter to pay Paul.

Mr. Crorr: All right!

The Wrrness: The Eldorado Mines are located in the Northwest Territory,
in unorganized areas. Therefore the only property that really pays taxes is the

Port Hope refinery; and speaking from memory, I think they make a contribu-
tion to the town of Port Hope in lieu of taxes.

e
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_ Mr. Sixcramr: That is all part of the formula announced by the Minister of
Flna_nce in connection with these Crown companies. They have made or. are
making taxation arrangements so far as local taxes are concerned. But they
are making no arrangement so far as federal or provineial corporation taxes are
concerned.

By Mr. Wright:

Q. Mr. Chairman, with regard to the capital expansion of Eldorado Mining
and Refining Limited, or other Crown companies, can they use the profits which
they make from year to year for the purpose of capital expansion, or must they
tome to the government for all new capital expansion, while their profits are
turned into the general account of the consolidated revenue account?—A. No.

he profits of Crown corporations are retained by those corporations. But as I
stated earlier, the Minister of Trade and Commerce in this case, or the Minister
of Finance can seize any part of their surplus moneys which they regard as excess.

herefore if the Eldorado Mining and Refining Company Limited decides to
€Xpand facilities that is done out of profits, but only after consultation with the
’Shal:eholders, namely the Minister of Trade and Commerce for, as I stated
earlier, all the shares are registered in his name.
i ? Do you think that is quite right? Perhaps I should not ask you that

uestion, ¢

Mr. CroLr: No! No!

By Mr. Wright:

Q. But it does seem to me that the practice of allowing Crown corporations
to use their profits for capital expansion without any consultation with parlia-
ment is, in effect, expanding that Crown corporation without the consent of par-
lament, Tt does seem to me that before any expansion, a Crown corporation or
fompany should first have to come to parliament for a vote of the money for

at expansion rather than to use its profits. Otherwise parliament loses con-
ol over the expansion of that company. So it does seem to me that it is
Something to which this committee should give important consideration.

These companies are pretty free agents. They are free from any control
by parliament in their expansion. They can charge, in many cases, the gov-
ffment itself as the purchaser of the products of these corporations, a price
Which enables them to make a profit, a considerable profit. A Crown corporation
an go on expanding without the consent of parliament which originally set
Up the Crown corporation in question. So it seems to me that this committee
s.hOUld give some serious consideration to our present set-up of Crown corpora-
lons, and that we should as a parliament have control over their expansion.

nd the only way I can see of doing so is through requiring that new capital
“Xpansion must be provided from parliament, and that any profits made by

0se corporations should be turned into the consolidated revenue fund, over
and above their normal working capital and whatever their costs may be,
Otherwise we have no control over them.

Mr. Sixcram:  Once again this is a recommendation made last year, and

N view of the fact that the time for consideration of the Consolidated Revenue
udit Act is drawing eloser and closer, perhaps then would be the best time for

US 0 go into this question more fully, I mean the question of control over the
hances of Crown corporations.

Mr. Fueming: I would like to ask the Auditor General what additional
@ntrols by parliament might be useful in preserving the principle of parlia-
lentary responsibility.

The Wirness: Well, sir, that is a little out of my field but, let us take Mr.
ght’s particular case and refer to Northern Transportation Company which
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" very bad losses or has excessive revenues on hand. You have already provide

“these Crown corporations, that there is some occasion for examination by parlia-
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services the north country. TIts rates are controlled by the transport commis-
sioners. In other words, the company has not the fixing of the rates at all. That =
is done in the same way as railways’ rates are fixed.

One of the big problems of Northern Transportation Company was that
when acquired by the government of Canada the equipment, barges and so on, —
was obsolete. A large sum was invested in new ones and when they were put =
into use, the business became a more profitable one and we have recovered our =g
capital cost. Secondly, there is a long portage in the north country—about 25
miles in length—which is a major item of expense in the operation of Northera =
Transportation Company. Within the last two years they have devised a new
scheme. They load their scows in such a fashion that when they reach the
portage machinery there lifts the load out with something like a sling, and loads
it on to equipment which carries it across the 25 miles. In that way they have
reduced the cost materially. :

Therefore I do not think, sir, when you are operating a straight commercial
proposition, that parliament need be unduly concerned with it unless it is showing

for the latter because if it has excessive revenue on hand either the minister
over it or the Minister of Finance can seize the money. I am not unduly con-
cerned as far as the Northern Transportation Company and Eldorado aré
concerned. ‘

Mr. WricHT: I do not know the details of the Eldorado Corporation but
what I am concerned with is the principle under which Crown corporations are
operating. I think they can get completely out of control of parliament unless
we control all their capital expenditures. I think, because so many of them give
service to the government, they can charge prices for those services which will

enable them to make a profit. It might be government policy to permit a Crown

corporation to charge prices that would make a profit—in order to expand the
company—all without the control of parliament.

The Cuamrman: May I suggest that every member has a right, when he _‘
gets these company reports which are presented to parliament, to look through
them and if he sees something that he does not like to question the minister
responsible. There cannot be much in the way of capital expansion that woul
get out of hand. :

Mr. Fueming: It is not so much a case of capital expansion as of surpluses
from operation—revenue surpluses for capital expansion. :

The CuamMAN: Do you think it would be practical to come to parlié- ¥ 3
ment each time they need new barges or equipment, or when they wish to
dispose of their equipment for the betterment of the working arrangements?

Mr. Fueming: Those are details which no one would suggest be referred

. to parliament, but it is the broad question that is of concern. Mr. Sellar has

indicated that he does not see any problem-in connection with these two
particular corporations but it may be, in the over-all picture ;which applies to

ment into revenue surpluses and capital expansion. There may be a question
of policy quite apart from consideration of the moneys originally loaned by
parliament. i

However, I wish to come back to my previous question to Mr. Sellar. Are
there any additional parliamentary controls over these corporations that he
considers desirable for the purpose of maintaining the principle of parliamentary
responsibility and parliamentary control over expenditure?

The CramMAN: That again would involve the Consolidated Revenue Act
in which the controls would have to be provided.
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By My, Fleming.‘

Q. Quite, but would Mr. Sellar care to make an observation?—A. The only

thing I could add is this. You set up a Crown corporation to operate an
dustrial business; it is in competition with other businesses; you cannot tie
JOwn your directors, or putting it another way, you eannot put your directors
mto g strait-jacket. The corporation has got to be in a position to compete
with others,
Now, the suggestion has been made that the government is the major buyer,
but T can think of only one case where the government is the major buyer—
and that is Canadian Arsenals. In turn, there is an incentive there on the part
oI the government to get as good a price as possible because payment has to
tme out of a vote. Canadian Arsenals is the only case. The Polymer
Orporation, for example, sells to the trade almost entirely. Eldorado is not
selling materials to the government although it does provide certain things for
¢ Chalk River project. These companies are dealing, as a rule, with the
ordmar_y public. That is a point which you have to bear in mind. If you
are,'go_lng to run an industrial business do not put it into too much of a
strait-jacket,
: . I appreciate the fact that you cannot put the directors in a strait-
Jacket but I wonder if there is anything we should do that we are not doing—and
this will have a bearing on amendments of the Consolidated Revenue Act—
Ctween letting the directors run wild on the one hand without any measure
of Parliamentary control over expenditures, and on the other hand putting
el In g strait-jacket which cramps their operations?

Mr. Sixcratr: Is there not one point there—the very great degree of differ-
€hce, as Mr, Sellar has pointed out, between the types of corporations. A
Orporation competing industrially, like Polymer, has a natural check on it,
Whereas we have other corporations such as the National Harbours Board which
8 a government agency, where a greater degree of check is needed. Some

'0Wn corporations are mnot out to compete with private enterprise. The
ominion Coal Board would be another example. Is there any advantage in
aVing a check on all corporations, or should we pick out those corporations
Which are more in the nature of government agencies, leaving the others because
€y have got competition?

Mr. FLemina: Is there anything in the way of a formula which Mr. Sellar
Would suggest?

Mr. Mavrats: If it all works well I do not see why there should be a
mula to improve the system. As Mr. Sellar says, the minister being the
main shareholder, has authority to seize and get back the excess profits from

08¢ Crown companies. I do not see any danger or where the directors can
80 astray. Before they can make excessive capital expenditures there would be
EXcessive profit that the minister, under the Act, can get back into the Consoli-
ated Revenue Fund. I think parliament, through the Minister of Finance, has
SOme say in the excess profits of the company.

Mr, WricaT: Would it be possible for parliament to set a limit over which
all profits from Crown corporations would be returned to the Consolidated
fvenue Fund—say anything over 5, 6, or 8 per cent, or whatever might
€ reasonable? Deal with it in the same way that an ordinary commercial

fory

Company would.

Mr. Sixcram: Your trouble there comes immediately because of the
Various clagses. Certainly the reserves for Eldorado, being a mine and a wasting
A5set, would have to be far higher than the reserve for Polymer which is an
Ordinary commercial concern. ;

Mr. Stewarr: Is obsolescence not allowed for?
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Mr. SiNcrair: Obsolescence and depletion of a mine are completely sepé
rate items.

Mr. Fraser: May 1 ask a question?

The Cuamman: I wonder if Mr. Sellar wants to comment?

The WrrNess: Mr. Sinclair mentioned the National Harbours Board. It 8
has no shares and the Act says that it shall be “under the minister”. The
minister, being a member of parliament, is answerable to parliament so you ==
have direct control over the National Harbours Board. :

Mr. Fraser: Does Mr. Sellar know of any profits that have been turned
over by Eldorado or Northern Transportation Company to the government? ]

The Crammmax: Or profits of any other Crown companies? Ay

The Wirness: A year ago they retired shares—it took that form.

By Mr. Fraser: r :
Q. That is the million dollars and the 10,000 shares?—A. In the current
year they declared a dividend. It came to the Receiver General and 1 saw the =
cheque handed to the Receiver General. That will appear in the report to b
tabled one of these days. : ! e
Q. Mr. Sellar also said the government paid out for new barges such and
such money. He did not mention the sum and he said that the capital cost =
had been recovered. Did that come back to the Consolidated Revenue Fund?—
A. The money was advanced to Northern Transportation Company by Eldorado,
the parent company, and it has been recovered back to Eldorado company. 2
Mr. Fueming: 1 suppose we are under somewhat of a handicap dealing
with this question until we see what amendments are contained in the Con-
solidated Revenue Act which is to be introduced later on. It is an important
question, and actually parliament can be sitting here without exercising any
effective control over the expenditure of large amounts of public money.
Would it be a great task to prepare a statement of the amount of pulgh'3 ,1
money in the hands of various Crown corporations today, with some indication =
of revenue surpluses over a period of two or three or four years, just to indicate
to us in a broad way how much revenue surplus if any has been used for 1
capital expansion, and how much has been turned into the Consolidated Revenu®
Fund? That would give us at least a bird’s eye picture of the whole situation-
Otherwise, I do not know how parliament is going to exercise any control over -4
these expenditures, apart from the amount it appropriates by statute W =
x|

capitalize the corporation to begin with.
The Cuamman: Well, instead of having to dig into every report, you Would“ls
want one report given to this committee? .

Mr. FLeminG: A statement, to give us a bird’s eye view of the whole o
situation. I appreciate that you cannot make a general rule, you have to deal
with each of these on their merits. No two are alike, and I appreciate that
there is difficulty in laying down a hard and fast rule. As Mr. Sellar says, you
do not want to put those in charge of the operations in a strait-jacket. On the
other hand we, as a committee of parliament, are charged with the maintenanc®
of the principle of parliamentary control over expenditure. I wonder if we are
doing that simply by contenting ourselves with saying these facts are reportét
by the corporation to the minister? :

The Cuamman: And by the minister to the House? -

Mr. Fuemine: We get an annual statement and may ask the minister
questions, but there is no effective means of getting into the meat of any par-
ticular corporation or into the over-all picture as it applies to Crows#
corporations. i §

o
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Mr. Smvorak: Unless they have deficits?

Mr. Fueming: Yes, when we are called upon to vote more money to make
Up the deficit, as in the case of the C.N.R. and T.C.A.

Mr. Stewarr: With reference to what Mr. Wright was saying, the capital
stock of Eldorado is roughly $64 million and they have an unappropriated
surplus of $7,346,000. I should like to ask the parliamentary assistant to the
ister of Finance this question. When would he think it appropriate that
the minister step in and take that surplus?

Mr. Sixcram: In view of the comments of the leader of the opposition
the other night, about parliamentary assistants giving undertakings on behalf of
the government, I certainly would not answer that. The Minister of Finance
himself would be the one to answer it.

Mr. Stewarr: I have never seen the parliamentary assistant so humble.
As Mr. Wright says, this is a large unappropriated surplus in view of the
¢apital stock, and while I do not altogether agree with my colleague, I think
there is much virtue in the principle being established that parliament should
have some control over the capital expenditures. This is a large sum.

The Cmamman: We will have ample opportunity, when the Consolidated

R.e}’en'ue Act comes before the House, to make a thorough study of the pro- -
_Visions and to decide whether amendments should be introduced.

Mr. FLemine: 1 asked for a statement, Mr. Sellar.

. The Crammanx: Mr. Sellar is thinking about it. In the meantime I will
gve Mr. Wright the floor.

Mr. WriesT: It is my understanding that in certain provinces where there
are numbers of Crown corporations, those corporations must turn their over-all
Surpluses into the Consolidated Revenue Fund and they must get a grant from
the legislature for. any capital expansion. Those provinces think it is the
only way in which the legislature can have reasonable control over the expansion
of those corporations. I am inclined to agree with that principle.

The Cramrmax: I think that the opinions which have been expressed this

Morning will be of use to those who are still reviewing the Consolidated Revenue
¢t. I think the time for comment on them will be when the Consolidated
€venue Act comes before the House. We will then have an opportunity to

Comment, on or amend it.

.. _The Wirxess: With regard to the statement Mr. Fleming has asked for,

1 will present problems because no two companies are exactly the same. Further-

More, some companies have shares, others have not; and then there are indus-

tria] companies which have incomes. The Federal District Commission, for

€xample, is a corporation but it has no income. You are not really interested
1t If you wanted something on the commercial companies which have share
¢apital we could make an attempt to put something together.

By Mr. Fleming: :
b Q. It was the commercial corporations I had in mind.—A. Of course you
ave to bear in mind that I can only deal with those which I audit.
Q. The statement would not include the C.N.R. or T.C.A.?2—A. Or the Farm
glooan Board, Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation, the Wheat Board, and
on.
will 8 May I ask then that a statement be prepared along those lines?—A. We
1 Ty,
.,s The CuamrMaN: I think we have somewhat extended the scope of the two
ltems on Eldorado but it may be useful for those who are preparing the Con-
Solidated Revenue Act to have available the opinions of some of the members.

83836—2
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However, let us go on to Export Credits Insurance Corporation, items 101
and 102.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. In 102 it says: “The $495918 excess of payments over recoveries, how=
ever, includes approximately $300,000 which is ‘blocked’ through exchange
restrictions of the countries concerned”.

How -is that handled? That $300,000 would have to be paid out to the
exporters would it not?

A. The $300,000 is in South American currency, mainly Argentinian and
Brazilian. When we take care of the insured person, compensating him, he turns
over all his collateral, or at least all that he had with respect to that clam
Therefore, the Export Credits Insurance Corporation holds those moneys 1
banks in South America.

Q. In South America?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And they are not allowed to take it out?—A. No, sir.

Q. You are not allowed to take currency out of Argentina. When I was -
-down there last you were not allowed to take out any gold, silver, or anything

else. I believe they even searched you. If that is still in force how does the
government expect to get this $300,000 out, or will they use it down there for
other purposes—in buying things, for instance?—A. I cannot answer that. The
Department of Finance might, but. I cannot. All I know is that the amount 18
standing there.

Q. It is in Argentina and where?—A. Brazil—a small amount in Brazil.

The CaAIRMAN: Perhaps Mr. Bryce might comment?

Mr. Bryce: I can only make one general comment. Frequently it is maiqu
a question of waiting in order to get the funds. Those are really commercla
remittances. They are payments for exports. Frequently, all that is involve
is waiting until you can get the funds released. It may be a year, or more that
that, or less than that, before these blocked accounts can be paid in foreigl
exchange. In many cases the funds are not tied up indefinitely but there is delay
in getting them released. The Export Credits Insurance Corporation will take
those funds off the hands of those who have insured themselves and will hol
them until the funds can be released.

Mr. Fraser: Then Brazil or Argentina would have to have a counter account
against Canada?

Mr. Bryce: The arrangements are so varied and so specialized in different
cases that I would hesitate to generalize about that, but I do know in certaid
cases that these commercial accounts have been paid or released eventually.
has been a question of waiting in many cases rather than a question of losing
the funds or having to find some alternative investment down there. The
arrangements vary.

Mr. Fraser: The account being governmental rather than individual, theré
is a better chance of getting the funds?

Mr. Bryce: I would not like to say that is generally the case.

Mr. FLeming: The point that the Auditor General is making is that these
blocked accounts are not to be written off as losses, but that they should be
carried as a reserve or be carried as assets subject to suitable reserve. Has there
been any change since this observation was written by Mr. Sellar?

The Wirness: Yes. We have recently come to an agreement on the form

the statements will take next year—not the current year, but next year. We

are both satisfied.
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_ Mr. Stewarr: I am not talking about blocked currency but of the amount
written off as losses and the steps taken to recover those. Let us take 1946.
Assuming that $1 1,000 was lost, is the corporation still trying to recover that
loss or has it written it off as irrecoverable?

The Wirngss: If there are any assets the corporation is still trying to
Tecover; otherwise the position is the same as for any insurance company that
Pays a claim and has to write it off as a loss.

The Cuatrman: Are there any further questions on Export Credits Insur-
ance Corporation?

Carried.

We will go on to items 103 and 104.

Mr. Stewarr: In connection with item 104 the Auditor General says: “A
fonsequence is that the Commission is not in position to accumulate a fund to
Tepave roads, ete.” I think we know that, but is there anything that can be

one to encourage them to repave some of those roads?

Mr. CroLL: The alternative is given at the end. The last sentence is
your answer.

. Mr. FLEMING: Probably a fair question is what has been done as a result
0f the recommendation?

The Wirness: The Federal Distriet Commission is very anxious to have
Something done in this regard, but it is a matter of legislation and public policy.
€y are carrying on as they have in the past. During the war years when they
could not, spend money in keeping things up, they accumulated a little reserve.
Thf}y still have about $20,000 of C.N.R. bonds and that is how they are carrying
their excess, currently. From the long range viewpoint some means should be
evised whereby they can accumulate each year so much for the renewal of
Toads and other assets. As Mr. Croll says, the alternative is to wait until the

- 19b has to be done and come to parliament asking for a special vote in that year.

Mr. FLeming: Nothing has been done since you made the recommendation.

The Wirness: No, sir.

Mr. Fraser: You would not think they would have to wait for jobs to be
done? There are a lot of jobs to be done right here.

The Cramrmax: Ask a question in the House from the responsible minister.

Mr. CroLn: Mr. Mecllraith will give you the answer to that.

The Cuarman: Is item 105 carried?

Carried.

Item 106, National Harbours Board.

. Mr. Fueming: Last year we made a more extensive review of the opera-
tlons of the various harbour commissions entering into the accounts of the
National Harbours Board. Can the Auditor General say whether there has been,
SInce we were over this subject a year ago, any particular change in the method
of setting up the statements and the financial basis of the operations of the
Various boards?

The Wirngss: Well, sir, there has been no change in the general practice.
The National Harbours Board is still operating as in the past. However, when
You use the words “financial statements,” the financial statement which we
€Xpect to certify within a few days for the last calendar year will be in a
“lierent, form than the previous one. In the past we produced a financial state-
ment for each harbour. This year we are trying to give one statement that
Covers all, showing the activities of each, so that you will have a comparison of
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assets, expenditures, and liabilities. We think it will be simpler, although;»--
basically there is no change. e

Mr. Benmickson: I have forgotten, but did this committee last year 1 =
its sittings make any recommendation with respect to the accounting practices =
of the National Harbours Board?

Mr. Fueming: No, but we made a much more extensive study than We =
are now doing of the operations and statements of the National Harbours Board. _

Mr. Benimpickson: But the committee made no recommendations for =
change of form?

The CuarMAN: Noj; are there any further questions on National Harbours
Board? g
We now come to Northwest Territories Power Commission, items 112
and 113. .

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. Do you feel, Mr. Sellar, on aceount of the statement you made here:
that depreciation should be set up in these accounts?—A. They are proceeding
to do so, sir.

Q. Well, I think it would be wise—A. They first started on the principlé
that the amortization of their debt over twenty years was the equivalent 0
depreciation but we pointed out to them that they could be paying back the
Minister of Finance and needing, at the same time, money to maintain their
plant; they are now changing their practice in that regard, at least, they have =
told us they are doing that.

The CrHAmRMAN: Are we through with items 112 and 113? b

Carried.

Park Steamship Company Limited, item No. 114. ;

Mr. Stewart: “With the exception of seven ships on loan to the United
Kmgdom Ministry of Supply, all vessels formerly controlled by this company
have been declared surplus and sold.” Would Mr. Sellar tell us what was the
profit or loss on the sale of these ships?

The CuAlRMAN: Last year, we had before us the chairman of this board
who gave us quite an extensive report which can be found in the minutes 0of
evidence of last year.

Mr. Stewarr: Has there been any difference in the number of ships sold
as of last year and this year? &

The CuarmanN: Have there been any further ships sold this year? i

The Wirness: Certain ships were on charter and I think they are gradually
being surrendered—I am not sure if they have all been surrendered—and the
collection of the moneys is being handled by the Crown Assets Disposal CorI-
poration. You will see in their report that they point out they were having ;‘
some trouble making collections but with the assistance of the Canadial
Maritime Commission the accounts are now in good condition. All I know
that the charters have worked out very profitably to the Park Steamship
Company and we are getting a much better return on our ships following world
war II than we got following world war 1. 1

The Cuamrman: The detail as to the sale of each ship can be found iB
the minutes of our proceedings of last year. gy

Mr. Fueming: What has been done since the 31st of March 19507 Has the
company been wound up? :

The Wrrness: I signed a letter this morning to the Under Secretary of
State for the surrender of the charter.

Carried. PRI N L
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The CaARMAN: Now, we come to the Polymer Corporation Limited, items
115 and 116.

By Mr. Wright:
Q. Item 116 reads:

The original construction work was financed out of Consolidated
Revenue Fund, but some subsequent capital work was paid for out of
the earnings of the Corporation.

What amount of earnings were used for this subsequent capital work? And
secondly, it states that in determining their depreciation and obsolescence the
‘ompany found that formerly they were using an amount which was not a
Sufficient one and that this year the management increased the amount to
$3,606,975. What was the amount of obsolescence and depreciation last year?

at increase does this amount represent?—A. In reply to your first question,

1’70_0;000 of the company’s earnings have gone into new plant and additions,
sentially, the investment is in connection with machinery and equipment. Up
iJhe. past year, in round figures, $2,400,000 annually was the reserve for
deprecw,t.ion. This year it was increased to $3,600,000, an increase of $1,200,000.
arose in this way: we all thought after the war that building costs would
€0 down and this p'lant, had -been built in a rush at high prices. Theljefore it
Vas decided that it was not prudent to assume that we had $50 million invested
In the project, and a lesser figure was taken. Prices however have not gone
OWn.  Last year when the Income Tax department notified tax payers that
they could claim in various ways for depreciation, we and Polymer agreed a
resh look should be given to Polymer’s condition and try to make a very
tarefy] study. T am thoroughly in agreement with the addition of that amount
1S year,

By Mr. Fraser:

b Q. Does the net profit of $843,659 represent profit after depreciation has
¢en taken care of?7—A. Yes, sir. i
i Has any capital been returned to the Consolidated Revenue Account?—
- No, sir. Take for example, the expenditure for heating such as was made
En that plant when it was built. Heating is a very important factor in syn-

etic rubber manufacture. They had to pick up boilers and everything else
Wherever we could get them. They have installed an entirely new heating
S¥stem since the war and I think they recovered the capital investment within

®W years in fuel savings.

By Mr. Fleming: \
Sl Q. Just a question on the second sentence of item 116. T take it that Mr.
ellar does not review a decision on the part of the company as to the amount
€ set up for obsolescence?—A. We would, sir, if we thought it unreasonable.
Q. Well, then, can you make a comment as to the reasonableness of this
N ncrease?—A. As to that $1,200,000 increase, I suggested to them that they
Shoulq study the position and. they told me they were already studying it.
1€y asked me to send men down to Sarnia to go over the figures with their
Men, T did and they came back and reported they were in agreement that
sl’200,000 was a reasonable figure for that year.

Q. So you have reviewed the annual provision made for obsolescence?—
_A‘ Yes, but they were going to formulate a long range policy after that. We
Ve notice that their accounts are going to be ready for audit in the third week
oL April. We will be going in then. I have no men-there at the present time.

Carried.

last,
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The CramrMAN: Yukon Territorial Government, items 117, 118 and 119-,_‘;"

By Mr. Fraser: b
Q. Has Mr. Sellar any comments to make on this?>—A. The only thing
sir, that may interest you as citizens of this country is in paragraph 18, where
they deal with profits from the sale of aleoholic beverages amounting to $557,000
The agreement with Canada provides that up to $185,000 of these profits may 4
be used for territorial administration, et cetera, and the balance is to be plarﬁed;’ &9
to the credit of a special account for the construction of roads -and bridges and
other projects to develop the matural resources of the territory. = i/
Now, it happened that the profits from liquor have been year by year :1
larger than were expected— &
Q. More water in the stock.—A.—the result is they have more money
on hand than they need to spend on roads and bridges. They would like t0 =
spend more money on education and they have informally suggested that the
agreement be revised to permit a greater amount to be spent on education.

By Mr. Croll: ol

Q. The agreement with whom?—A. The agreement with the governmeﬂ"
of Canada. :

Q. When and what representations have been made? You should have told
us that two days ago and we could have raised the question on the floor of th
House when the Yukon Act was under discussion.

Mr. Sincrair: Third reading is still coming up. :
Mr. CrorL: It would be unfair to the minister to hold him up on the thiﬂf“«r
reading. . A

The Witness: It is just a little thing; there are now more children W
they would like to spend a little more money. I think it is within the powers 0!
the Governor in Council to permit this, and it would not surprise me if they
have already consulted the Minister of Finance on the subject.

Mr. Freming: You do not know if anything has been done yet?

The Wrirxess: I know the people of the Yukon were in seeing me late
last fall on the subject and I told them to ecall on the Minister of Finan¢
because I thought that he would be sympathetic. ‘

By Mr. Wright: i

Q. When you refer to the people from the Yukon you are referring to the

commission?—A. Yes, sir, that is, the commission. i

Mr. Fraser: They are all here in Ottawa anyhow. :

Mr. Crorr: Three will be elected from the territories now under the new

provision. 1
Mr. Fraser: Yes, but up to the present time they are all in Ottawa.

The CuArMAN: Are there any further questions relating to the Yukon
territory? I think, we are finished with our review of item 119.

Mr. Fueming: Yes, Mr. Chairman; there is just the appendix left.

The CuHARMAN: Yes, we are now on the appendix.

Mr. FLeming: There is one question on this item of the refunds and the
remission. Does the Auditor General make a review of particular cases or does
he simply make a report, just to report the fact?

The Wirness: The discretion is broad, “the Governor in Council when-
ever he deems it right and conducive to the public good, may remit any duty oF
toll payable to His Majesty—"" therefore, there that is a statutory discretio®
which we do not try to go behind.
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Mr. CroLL: And one which he does not exercise very easily either.

The Wirness: Yes, but the department encourages us to check the figures.

Mr. Fremrve: You check the figures in these cases? .

The Wrrness: Yes. Sometimes you have to calculate from the various
documentg what the real amount involved is; before it goes before the Treasury

oard the Department of National Revenue may ask us to check their figures
and make certain.

By Mvr. Fleming:
Q. And the figures you are reporting here are the figures youw have checked
verified as the correct related amounts involved before the remission or
refu.nd. 18 made?>—A. In most cases the duty is paid and this represents the
Temission or refund.
Q. That is what I mean, do you check those?—A. We don’t check them
» only in unusual cases.
The Cramrvan: Are the members of the committee satisfied that we have
dealt, with the report of the Auditor General except for some incidental items?
ére are two or three cases in which members have asked that an item stand.
R recall most of them dealt 'with matters relating to the Consolidated
fvenue and Audit Act. Then, I think we may take it that out work on the
Uditor General’s report is concluded. Unless there are some questions which
Tem) ers of the committee would like to ask him now, all of the matters out-
Standing. relate to the revision of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act.
at Act will be dealt with in the House and I suggest that such questions
Shoy ld be asked when the bill is before the House for consideration in committee.
O Instance, there was item 15, which Mr. Macdonnell asked be allowed to
tha'md' It deals more or less with matters relating to the revised Act, and I
Mk the other two clauses which were asked to stand also relate to that Aect;
one of them, as T recall it, deals with the payment of subsidies and the-use of
OVernor General’s warrants. I think there will be ample time and opportunity
0 discuss such matters when the revised Consolidated Revenue Act comes
efore the House,
hil Ml'- Freming: Could we have any indication, Mr. Chairman, of when the
W will be brought down in the House?
H The Caamman: My impression.is that the new Act will be before tl_le
; QUSe before we finish the work of this committee, and, as I say, when the bill
8 before the House we will have an opportunity of discussing it. I suggest,
en lemem, that this particular part of our work is completed—I mean so far as
b ? Auditor General’s report is concerned—and we can relea_se the witness, but
elore that is done I wish to be sure whether any member wishes to ask further
gu.estlons of the Auditor General before he goes. There may have been some-
Mg we have overlooked.
inf Mo, CroLr: There is just one question I wanted to ask. Have you any
Ormation ag to whether or not this committee will have an opportunity to
€al with the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act as a committee; to go into
€ draft bil] in detail®
& e Cramrrvan: That has not been indicated to us yet. The bill is not
(;;ady to be brought down in the House. However, I do think it is the intention
th_the government to refer it to a particular committee, but whether it will be
'S one or another there has been mo indication.
Mr. Stvoram: 1 might say, Mr. Chairman, that a number of technical
recor_nm(%ndaftions were made by this committee last year and they have been
“nsidered in preparing the new legislation. I might say that it was the inten-

and

all



3

it it

142 STANDING COMMITTEE

i)
tion to refer the bill to this committee but this committee has indicated it& L‘
desire to give considerable study to the Department of National Defence. I
think then I might say it will be referred to this committee or some committee:
As I see it, this committee certainly should have an opportunity of reviewing =
this very difficult legislation. As a committee it is directly concerned
revenue and audit, and as a committee it has made some proposals both new =
and certainly valuable. Mr. Sellar or Mr. Bryce may know something about it: 3.4
The Cuamrman: That all depends on the members, as to whether or not We =
devote our time to the matter of National Defence and other matters in the
public accounts. ¥ £
There is a lot of material which members want to have come before the =
committee. It will be up to us, I suggest, to suspend other work we may have
to give a certain number of meetings to a consideration of the revision of the -
Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act, providing it is referred to us. ,
Mr. CrorL: It would appear to me that members would get very little
information on the Act if it was dealt with entirely in the House. Let us clear =
this point up. It is a technical Act and it is difficult to grasp the details of i =
There is no doubt that many of the members in the House would have difficulty
in understanding much of the material involved, except for those who havé =
been in attendance at this committee. As a committee we have dealt With £
these matters during the last two or three years and the House might benefit
as the result of our study of the new Act as a committee. I can see gre#
advantage in having us as a committee deal with it, and I think that as a com-
mittee we might indicate that in our opinion it is a matter for this committeé
to deal with.

Mr. Freming: I would like to support very strongly what Mr. Croll has =
said. This is the most important Act, I think, of all on our statute books, 8114 ;
it has not been revised or amended, I believe, for at least a generation. T

Mr. Sincrair: Only twice since confederation. IRl

Mr. FLemiNG: And, we as a committee have observed, I suppose, scores 0%
places, in particular last year, where there were gaps and weaknesses in the ..‘{
present Act in the way of meeting modern conditions; and we have had & iy
number of occasions in the House in recent years where technical Acts, Such 4l
as this new Income Tax Act, were referred to committee for review. Now, I 3
should think that this committee, in the light of its experience of the last tWO
years, should be able to contribute a good deal to a review of the Act; and, as Mr.
Croll said, an Act so important would not get in the House the detailed coB= =
sideration it should have. It is going to be a very important study, and 1%
may be ‘that a committee with the information this one has available to ite
might not have to spend a lot of time on the bill; and in any event, a review by Y
this committee might be of great advantage in a consideration of the bill:

The CramrMAN: I am ready to report to the Minister of. Finance a.cool'@‘ :
ingly, and I am sure that the parliamentary assistant will also see that he 18
informed as to the views of the committee. ]

Mr. WricHT: Has the parliamentary assistant (Mr. Sinclair) any idea 8% |
to when this bill might be ready to come before the committee? With the work
the committee has it in mind to do in connection with the Departmen